
Please note: Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded on tape 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Guy Close 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74356 
 

 
 

 
Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Sandra Newbould 
Tel: 24 74792 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULT SOCIAL CARE) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Wednesday, 29th July, 2009 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
J Chapman (Chair) - Weetwood; 

P Ewens - Hyde Park and Woodhouse; 

Mrs R Feldman - Alwoodley; 

C Fox - Adel and Wharfedale; 

A Gabriel - Beeston and Holbeck; 

T Hanley - Bramley and Stanningley; 

J McKenna - Armley; 

V Morgan - Killingbeck and Seacroft; 

F Robinson - Calverley and Farsley; 

A Taylor - Gipton and Harehills; 

E Taylor - Chapel Allerton; 

 
 
 
 

CO-OPTEES 
 

Ms Joy Fisher – Alliance Service Users and Carers 
Sally Morgan – Equality Issues 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded.) 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting.) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 No exempt items or information have 

been identified on this agenda. 
 

 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 17TH JUNE 2009 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 17th June 2009. 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  LEEDS LOCAL INVOLVEMENT NETWORK 
(LINK) - ANNUAL REPORT (2008/09) 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development presenting the 
2008/09 Annual Report of Leeds Local 
Involvement Network (LINk). 
 

7 - 26 

8   
 

  LEEDS STRATEGIC PLAN PERFORMANCE 
REPORT FOR QUARTER 4 2008/09 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Policy, Performance and Improvement which 
outlines progress against improvement priorities 
relevant to the Board at Quarter 4 2008/09. 
 

27 - 
40 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  LEEDS SAFEGUARDING ADULT 
PARTNERSHIP BOARD REPORT 2008/09 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Director 
of Adult Social Services presenting the second 
annual report of the Leeds Safeguarding Adults 
Partnership Board. 
 

41 - 
128 

10   
 

  INDEPENDENCE WELLBEING AND CHOICE 
INSPECTION ACTION PLAN: MAY 2009 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development which provides 
the Board with information relating to the 
performance of Adult Social Services against the 
action plan. 
 

129 - 
146 

11   
 

  PERSONALISATION - UPDATE TO TERMS OF 
REFERENCE AND APPOINTMENT OF  
CO-OPTED MEMBER TO THE 
PERSONALISATION WORKING GROUP 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development which updates 
the Board on the revised terms of reference and 
invites the Board to agree the appointment of a 
further Member to join the working group. 
 

147 - 
160 

12   
 

  SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULT SOCIAL CARE) - 
WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development which outlines the Scrutiny 
Board’s work programme for the remainder of the 
current municipal year. 
 

161 - 
186 

13   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Board will be 
held on Wednesday 9th September 2009 at 
10.00am with a pre meeting for Board Members at 
9.30am. 
 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 29th July, 2009 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULT SOCIAL CARE) 
 

WEDNESDAY, 17TH JUNE, 2009 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor J Chapman in the Chair 

 Councillors P Ewens, C Fox, T Hanley, 
J McKenna, V Morgan and E Taylor 

 
 
 

1 Chair's Opening Remarks  
The Chair welcomed everyone to the first meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Adult 
Social Care) for the municipal year 2009/10. 
 

2 Late Items  
In accordance with her powers under Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chair consented to the submission of a late item of 
business in relation to the draft report on the Board’s Inquiry into Major 
Adaptations for Disabled People (Agenda Item 12) (Minute 12 refers). 
 
The report was late as the Council’s Constitution requires that where a 
Scrutiny Board was considering making specific recommendations, it shall 
invite advice from the appropriate Director(s) prior to it finalising its 
recommendations.  The deadline for such comments was 5.00 pm on 11 June 
2009.  Any advice regarding the accuracy of the report resulting in correction 
was undertaken prior to the report being circulated to the Board. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest  
The following personal interests were declared:- 
 

• Councillor J Chapman in view of the fact that she had a relative who 
worked in private industry as a Homecare Worker (Agenda Item 9) 
(Minute 9 refers) 

• Councillor P Ewens in her capacity as a Board Member on the 
Cardigan Centre) (Agenda Item 9) (Minute 9 refers) 

• Councillor T Hanley in his capacity as a Director of Bramley Elderly 
Action, Hayley’s Yard, Bramley (Agenda Item 9) (Minute 9 refers) 

• Councillor V Morgan in her capacity as a recipient of an old age 
pension (Agenda Item 9) (Minute 9 refers) 

 
4 Apologies for Absence  

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor Mrs R Feldman, 
Councillor F Robinson and Councillor A Taylor. 
 

5 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 6 May 2009 
be approved as a correct record. 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 29th July, 2009 

 

6 Matters Arising from the Minutes  
a)  Annual Report 2008/2009 (Minute 107 refers) 
The Chair informed the meeting that the Board’s Principal Scrutiny Adviser 
had implemented the changes to the Annual Report for 2008/2009 in line 
with the comments made by Board Members at the previous meeting. 

 
7 Co-opted Members  

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which 
outlined the provision to allow the appointment of co-opted members to 
Scrutiny Boards.  It was reported that up to five non-voting co-opted members 
could be appointed to the Board for a term of office which did not go beyond 
the next annual meeting of Council and up to two non-voting members for a 
term of office which related to a particular scrutiny inquiry. 
 
RESOLVED:- 
a) That the content of the report be noted. 
b) That the following be co-opted to the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social 

Care) for the 2009/10 municipal year:- 
 

• Ms Joy Fisher – Alliance of Service Users and Carers 

• Ms Sally Morgan – Equality Issues representative (a member of 
the public recruited with a remit to keep matters of equality at 
the forefront of the Board’s discussions) 

c) That the issue of co-opting other agencies on to the Board be 
discussed in more detail at the next Board meeting in July 2009. 

 
(Ms Joy Fisher and Ms Sally Morgan joined the meeting at 10.15am at the 
conclusion of the above item) 
 

8 Changes to the Council's Constitution in relation to Scrutiny  
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report 
requesting the Board to note the changes to the Council’s Constitution in 
relation to Scrutiny and, in particular, the new crime and disorder functions of 
the Scrutiny Board which was required to be developed further this year. 
 
Discussion ensued on the content of the report and clarification was sought 
on how wide the powers were to scrutinise partners and the limitations 
involved. 
 
The Board’s Principal Scrutiny Adviser made reference to the local area 
agreement in place and she agreed to circulate a definitive list to the Board for 
their information/retention. 
 
RESOLVED:- 
a) That the content of the report and appendices be noted. 
b) That in relation to fulfilling the role and function of the Scrutiny Board, 

this Board notes the amendments to the Council’s constitution, as 
outlined in the report. 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 29th July, 2009 

 

c) That this Board notes the likely changes resulting from the Secretary of 
State regulations regarding the provision of information from partner 
authorities. 

 
9 Input to the Board's Work Programme 2009/10 - Sources of Work and 

Establishing the Board's Priorities  
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report on an 
input into the Board’s work programme for 2009/10 and to identify sources of 
work and establish the Board’s priorities. 
 
Appended to report were copies of the following documents for the 
information/comment of the meeting:- 
 
a) Council Business Plan 2008 to 2011 – Executive Summary  

(Appendix 1a refers) 

b) Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 – Executive Summary (Appendix 1b 
refers) 

c) List of Scrutiny enquiries undertaken in the past five years that were 
relevant to the Adult Social Care portfolio (Appendix 1c refers) 

d) Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference (Appendix 2 
refers) 

e) Forward Plan and Key Decision for the period 1 June 2009 to 
30 September 2009 (Appendix 3 refers) 

 
The Chair welcomed the following representatives to the meeting who were in 
attendance to respond to queries and comments from the Board:- 
 

• Councillor P Harrand, Executive Board Member for Adult Social Care 

• Dennis Holmes, Deputy Director – Strategic Commissioning  
 
The Executive Board Member for Adult Social Care outlined some of the 
pressures on the Department for the coming year and also raised some topics 
for possible scrutiny by the Board. 
 
The Deputy Director – Strategic Commissioning summarised the key activities 
and priorities of the Adult Social Services Department for the year ahead and 
suggested topics that the Board might like to consider including in their work 
programme. 
 
Members commented on and sought further clarification on a number of 
particular issues for possible inclusion in the Board’s future work programme. 
 
The Chair informed the Board that their work programme for 2009/10 was 
demanding with a number of current inquiries continuing into the new 
municipal year. She therefore requested the Board to give consideration to 
focusing on a major inquiry for the coming year. 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 29th July, 2009 

 

 
Following detailed discussions, the Chair thanked the Executive Board 
Member and the Deputy Director, Strategic Commissioning for their 
contribution and attendance. 
 
RESOLVED -  That the content of the report and appendices be noted. 
 

10 Determining the Work Programme 2009/10  
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report 
requesting that the Board consider formulating a draft work programme. 
 
Dennis Holmes, Deputy Director – Strategic Commissioning was in 
attendance and responded to Members’ queries and comments 
 
The Board discussed the following issues for possible inquiry, update reports 
required and topics to be included in the work programme for the year:- 
 

• the Board expressed interest in holding a major inquiry in relation to 
Mental Health Services for working aged adults and also to look at 
transitional arrangements for Children into Adult Social Care 

 
It was also agreed to continue with the following work areas:- 
 

• Personalisation, including the impact on Home care provision 

• Safeguarding 

• Recommendation tracking of Adaptations 
 
The Chair informed Members that a number of working groups would be 
established during the course of the year to focus on specific areas of work. 
 
Specific reference was made to the Personalisation Working Group and 
Councillor McKenna and Councillor Morgan agreed to sit on this group. 
This was endorsed by the Board and the Board’s Principal Scrutiny Adviser 
agreed to forward a copy of previous minutes of the working group for their 
information/retention. 
 
In concluding, the Board requested the Principal Scrutiny Adviser to update 
the Board’s work programme, in conjunction with the Chair, and the Director 
of Adult Social Services. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Board’s Principal Scrutiny Advisor, in conjunction with 
the Chair and Director of Adult Social Services, be requested to update and 
timetable the Board’s work programme with a view to incorporating the above 
inquiries and areas of work. 
 
(Councillor P Ewens left the meeting at 11.15am at the conclusion of the 
above item) 
 
 
 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 29th July, 2009 

 

11 KPMG - Scrutiny Review - May 2009  
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report on a 
recent KPMG external audit review of Scrutiny. 
 
The report also provided details of management’s response to the review 
recommendations. 
 
Peter Marrington, Head of Scrutiny and Member Development, was in 
attendance and responded to Members’ queries and comments. 
 
In brief summary, specific reference was made to the following issues:- 
 

• clarification of web based forums 

• single item agenda’s and their role within the Board’s work programme 

• clarification of the role of group Whips and Scrutiny Chair’s in taking 
the recommendations forward 

• the importance of job specifications and training 

• the need for clearer roles for scrutiny with a view to focusing more on 
policy development 

 
RESOLVED:-  
a) That the content of the report and appendices be noted. 
b) That the Review’s recommendations and accompanying management 

responses be noted and that the above comments be referred to the 
Scrutiny Advisory Group for consideration. 

 
12 Inquiry into Major Adaptations for Disabled People - Draft Report  

The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report seeking 
the Board’s approval of the final report in relation to the Board’s Inquiry into 
Major Adaptations for Disabled People. 
 
Sandie Keene, Director of Adult Social Services was in attendance and 
responded to Member’s queries and comments. 
 
Discussion ensued on the content of the report and appendices with specific 
reference to mobility scooters and the lack of housing provision and charging 
points, especially for elderly people residing in flat accommodation. 
 
The Board’s Principal Scrutiny Adviser agreed to incorporate a relevant 
reference on this issue within the report and to circulate a copy to the Board 
for information. 
 
RESOLVED:- 
a) That the content of the report and appendices be noted. 
b) That, subject to incorporating a relevant reference on mobility scooters, 

approval be given to the Board’s Inquiry report into Major Adaptations 
for Disabled People, in accordance with the report now submitted. 

 
 
 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 29th July, 2009 

 

13 Executive Board Referral  
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report and 
invited the Board to consider a referral for Scrutiny received from the 
Executive Board on the role of the Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector 
(VCFS) in Council-led community engagement. 
 
The following representatives were in attendance to responded to Members’ 
queries and comments:- 
 

• Sandie Keene, Director of Adult Social Services 

• Sue Wynne, Head of Regeneration, Policy and Planning  
 
In brief summary, specific reference was made to the following issues:- 
 

• the need for an input from the voluntary sector. It was confirmed that 
this had been done as part of the inquiry 

• whether the report should have been led by the Adult Social Care 
Scrutiny Board. The Board was advised that the inquiry was broader in 
scope than just Adult Social Services 

• that the Board were not required to endorse the content 
 
RESOLVED:- 
(a) That the content of the report and appendices be noted. 
(b) That the comments raised at the meeting be fed back to the Executive 

Board via the Board’s Principal Scrutiny Adviser. 
 
(Joy Fisher declared a personal interest in the above item in her capacity as 
Chair of the Carers Alliance Group and Chair of Transitional LINK) 
 

14 Dates and Times of Future Meetings  
RESOLVED – That the following dates be noted:- 
 
Wednesday, 29th July 2009 
Wednesday, 9th September 2009  
Wednesday, 7th October 2009 
Wednesday, 11 November 2009 
Wednesday, 16th December 2009 
Wednesday, 13th January 2010 
Wednesday, 10th February 2010 
Wednesday, 17th March 2010 
Wednesday, 14th April 2010 
 
All at 10.00 am (pre-meetings at 9.30 am) 
 
 
(The meeting concluded at 12 noon) 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board:  Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) 
 
Date:    29 July 2009 
 
Subject:  Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk) – Annual Report (2008/09) 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Purpose of the report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) with 
the 2008/09 Annual Report of Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk).  This will be 
the first annual report produced by Leeds LINk.  

 
1.2 In presenting the LINk’s Annual Report (2008/09), it is intended that this will: 
 

• Continue to raise awareness of the role and work of Leeds’ LINk (both publicly 
and among members of the Scrutiny Board), 

• Provide members with more detail of what Leeds’ LINk has done during its 
first year, alongside any future plans; and, 

• Provide an opportunity for a general discussion between the Scrutiny Board 
(Adult Social Care) and representative members of Leeds’ LINk , including any 
work programme issues. 

 
2.0 Background 
 

2.1 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 gave a duty to all 
150 local authorities in England with social services responsibilities, to enable the 
formation of a Local Involvement Network (LINk).  

 
2.2 The LINk will act as the successor to the Patient and Public Involvement Forums, 

but with an extended remit covering social care.  Run by local people and groups, 
the role of a LINk is to promote involvement; to find out what people like and dislike 
about local services; monitor the care provided by services; and use LINk powers to 
hold services to account.  In summary, this will be achieved by: 

 

• Asking local people what they think about local health and social care 
services, and providing a chance to suggest ideas to help improve services; 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Sandra Newbould 
Tel: 247 4792 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



• Investigating specific issues of concern to the community; 

• Using powers to hold providers and commissioners to account and get results; 

• Asking for information and get an answer in a specified amount of time; 

• Using authorised representatives to ‘enter and view’ premises to see if 
services are working well; 

• Making reports and recommendations and receive a response; 
 

2.3 Under the provisions of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007, the LINk also has the right to refer both health and social care matters to the 
relevant Scrutiny Board.  In turn, this places responsibility on the appropriate 
Scrutiny Board to acknowledge any such referrals and keep the LINk informed 
about what actions, if any, will be taken 

 

3.0 Leeds’ Local Involvement Network (LINk) 
 

3.1 Locally, in August 2008, the Shaw Trust was appointed as the host organisation to 
support the work of the Leeds’ LINk.  Since that time it has been working with the 
LINk Preparatory Group to get a wide range of people and organisations involved in 
the LINk.  In addition, an Interim Steering Group (the membership of which was 
drawn from the LINk Preparatory Group) was established to act as a provisional 
decision-making body, pending the establishment of a formal steering group (the 
‘core group’) following appropriate elections. 

 

3.2 The LINk was formally launched on 9 June 2009.  Immediately after the launch, the 
election process to establish the ‘core group’ commenced.  Following nominations, 
the actual election period will take place during July 2009, with the announcement of 
the ‘core group’ expected in early August 2009. Until that time the Interim Steering 
Group will continue to act as the decision-making body. 
 

Annual Report 
 

3.3 LINks are accountable to the public and to the Secretary of State for Health.  As 
such,  every year all LINks are required to publish an annual report, which will also 
be sent to the Care Quality Commission, to relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees (Scrutiny Boards),  Primary Care Trusts (NHS Leeds) and the Strategic 
Health Authority (NHS Yorkshire and the Humber).   

 

3.4 The Annual Report (2008/09) for the Leeds’ LINk, covering the period 1 April 2008 
to 31 March 2009, is attached at Appendix 1.   

 

3.5 Representatives from Leeds’ LINk (the Interim Steering Group) have been invited to 
attend the meeting to both present the Annual Report and discuss any pertinent 
issues with the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care). 

 

4.0 Recommendation  
 

4.1 Members of the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) are asked to consider Leeds’ 
LINk’s 2008/09 Annual Report and the discussion at the meeting, and: 

• Determine any matters that will inform the Board’s future work programme;  

• Identify any issues that may impact/ influence the Board’s longer term 
relationship with Leeds’ LINk. 

 

5.0 Background Papers 
 

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement 
 
Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board 
 
Date: 29th July 2009 
 
Subject: Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008/09 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 
 
 
1.0  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Since April 2008 and the introduction of the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan 
we have seen a significant change to the council’s accountability processes, in particular, the 
identification of lead and contributory officers for each improvement priority and the 
introduction of a reporting process that will provide a single source of performance information 
to be used by the full range of different stakeholders in the accountability process. 

 
At the end of the first year of delivery of the Leeds Strategic Plan and Local Area Agreement 
this report provides an overview by exception (i.e. red and amber) on the progress against 
improvement priorities relevant to the Board at Quarter 4 2008/09.  

 
2.0 Purpose of this Report 

2.1 This report provides a strategic overview of performance against those improvement priorities 
within the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11, and specifically in relation to Adult Social Care 
priorities.  In particular the Action Tracker Summary Sheet (appendix 1) provides an overall 
assessment of progress against each of the improvement priorities relevant to the Board; a 
rating of Red, Amber or Green is applied to indicate the status of each improvement priority. 

 
2.2 In appendix 2 to this report the Action Trackers are provided on an exception basis for those 

areas of under performance and/or of concern in relation to the improvement priorities for 
Adult Social Care, within the Leeds Strategic Plan, as at 31st March 2009.  In addition, 
performance indicator information is provided for the full National Indicator Set together with 
any locally agreed indicators where appropriate.  Through this process the Board receives the 
full set of performance indicator information. 

 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originator:  Marilyn Summers 
 

 

Tel:  39 50786  

 

 

 

  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 27



3.0 Background Information 
 
3.1 Executive Board approved a new corporate planning framework for the council in July 2007.  

The strategic element of this framework includes two high level plans which set the policy 
objectives for the organisation and our partnership working.  These are: 

 

ØØØØ Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 - which sets out the customer/citizen (external) 
focused strategic outcomes being sought by the council and its partners for the city.  
This plan includes our requirements to produce a Local Area Agreement and is the 
main delivery mechanism for the Vision for Leeds 2004 to 2020. 

ØØØØ Council Business Plan 2008 to 2011 - which sets out what the council needs to do 
internally to enable the organisation to achieve the Leeds Strategic Plan.  That is 
outlining the business development, organisational change, process transformation 
and financial planning activities that we will be undertaking over the next three years.   

3.2 Both these plans include a set of outcomes, improvement priorities and aligned performance 
indicators with three year targets.  Through our performance reporting and accountability 
arrangements we need to track our progress against the improvement priorities as well as 
against the indicators to provide both a qualitative and quantitative picture of performance.  
This is because the scope of most of the improvement priorities is wider than that of the 
performance indicator and without some form of contextual reporting we would not be able to 
capture or monitor this progress. 

3.3 Within this report the following information is provided: 
 

Appendix 1 Action Tracker Summary Sheet - this sheet sets out all the improvement 
priorities relevant to the Board and shows the full set of overall progress traffic lights. 

Appendix 2 Action Trackers – this appendix includes the action trackers for the 
improvement priorities that have been given an amber or red rating for overall progress.  
There is a guidance sheet to assist members in interpreting the information provided. 

Appendix 3 Performance Indicator Report – this appendix provides a full performance 
indicator report including the year end results for all strategic, national and local indicators 
organised by Directorate. 

4.0 Main Issues - Progress Towards Improvement Priorities 

The Adult Social Care Scrutiny portfolio contains 4 improvement priorities. 3 of which are 
rated green, 1 amber and 0 red. The overall progress summary is provided below for each of 
the improvement priorities rated as amber as recorded on the action tracker. 

Health and Well being 
HW-3d - Improve safeguarding arrangements for vulnerable children and adults 
through better information, recognition and response to risk 
Progress has been reported to Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Corporate Audit & Governance 
on 12th March and to the Commissioning for Social Care Inspectorate (CSCI) on 19th March 
'09. Specific reports are available at website (http://www.leedsadultprotection.net/). 
All indicates good progress in this area with a full forward work programme. 

 
5.0 Recommendation 

5.1 That members of Scrutiny Board note the content of the report and comment on any particular 
performance issues of concern. 

Background Papers 
 
Council Business Plan 2008 - 2011 
Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 - 2011 

Page 28



Action Tracker Guidance 

Introduction 

The ‘Action Trackers’ are prepared on a half yearly basis and are intended to give an organisational ‘snapshot’ view 

of the progress against the city’s top level priorities as set out in the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan.  

They provide a broader range of information and progress than is provided in the performance indicator results alone.  

Each improvement priority within the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan has been allocated to a Lead 

Officer whose role is to provide leadership, co-ordinate the activities of contributing officers/partners and evaluate 

the performance information to ensure the delivery of the improvement priority.  An action tracker has been 

completed for every improvement priority by the Lead Officer who has provided an overall evaluation of progress to 

date.  Please see below a brief summary of the information that has been provided in each of the sections of the 

action tracker template. 

 

Overall Progress 

Rating 
The Lead Officer provides an overall traffic light rating on the progress to date based on all 

the information provided in the completed action tracker including the results for the aligned 

performance indicators.  The criteria for this traffic light is as follows: 

Green = Progressing as expected  

Amber = Minor delays or issues to address  

Red = Significant delays or issues to address 
 

Direction of Travel This section will be decided by the Lead Chief Officer. The criteria should be as follows: 

↑ = overall the direction of travel is improving. 

↓ = overall the performance is deteriorating. 

↔ = overall the direction of travel is static. 

Overall assessment of 

progress 
In this section the Lead Officer provides an overall summary analysis of the progress to date 

- taking a view based on all the information provided in the completed action tracker 

including the results for the aligned performance indicators.  This section should provide an 

explanation for the overall traffic light rating. 

Contributory Officers This part of the action tracker sets out who else is contributing to the delivery of the 

improvement priority and where relevant these officers/partners also appear in the main 

body against specific actions/activities. 

Performance Indicator 

Information 
In this section the results for the aligned performance indicators for this improvement priority 

are presented including the target and are traffic lighted both the result itself and for data 

quality. 

NB this only shows the indicators which are directly aligned but additional performance 

information is presented in appendix 2. 

Improvement Priority 

Key Activities  

Progress as at 31st 

March 2009 

Next Steps / Future 

Milestones for Q1 & Q2 

2009/10 

Risk / Challenges 

Timescale 

Contributory officer 

This is the main body of the action tracker and sets out the key actions/activities which are 

underway and contribute to the delivery of the overall improvement priority.  For each 

action/activity a set of information is provided that includes any risks or challenges to delivery, 

the key actions which are due to take place over the next 6 months, who the contributory 

officer/partner is and highlights where any other more detailed information can be found.  

This section could not possibly include all activities and Lead Officers have been asked to 

provide a strategic overview through including the main activities only and signposting further 

sources of information where relevant. 

 

 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 A
c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4

 2
0
0
8
-0

9

C
o

d
e

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
c

c
o

u
n

ta
b

le

D
ir

e
c

to
r

H
W

-2
b

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
, 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e
 /

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

H
W

-3
b

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 h
e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
S

a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e

H
W

-3
c

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

n
jo

y
in

g
 c

h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
ir
 d

a
ily

 l
iv

e
s

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e

H
W

-3
d

Im
p
ro

v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
u
lt
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 b

e
tt
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
re

c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 r

is
k

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e
 /

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

L
e
e
d

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



H
W

-3
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 

R
a
ti

n
g

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l

A
m

b
e
r

P
I 
R

e
f

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

a
rg

e
t

2
0
1
0
/1

1

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 Y

e
a
r 

e
n

d
 

R
e
s
u

lt
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

L
S

P
-H

W
2
b
(i
i)

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 y

e
a
r%

9
5
%

1
0
0
%

9
8
%

N
o
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

G
N

1
8
6

1
3
1
0

G
N

1
7
9

1
3
2
0

G
N

1
9
5

2
5
0
0

3
0
0
0

2
0
7
8

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

M
a
y
 '
0
9

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

 -
 T

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

.

 -
 R

e
v
is

e
d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

 -
 A

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

g
re

e
d
.

 -
 A

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

g
re

e
d
.

 -
 P

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
.

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s
 

 -
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 p

o
s
t 
in

 J
u
n
e
'0

9
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

's
 w

o
rk

.

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
4

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 U

p
d

a
te

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

u
d
it
 &

 G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 1

2
th

 M
a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
o
r 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

 (
C

S
C

I)
 o

n
 1

9
th

 M
a
rc

h
 '0

9
. 
S

p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 a
t 
w

e
b
s
it
e
 (

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.l
e
e
d

s
a
d
u
lt
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
.n

e
t/
).

A
ll 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 g

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 w

it
h
 a

 f
u
ll 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

Im
p

ro
v

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 b

e
tt

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

re
c

o
g

n
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 r

is
k

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

D
e

n
n

is
 H

o
lm

e
s

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
in

 C
A

S
S

R
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 w

h
o
 h

a
d
 h

a
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

a
d
u
lt
s
 w

h
o
s
e
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
m

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
 b

y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
e
c
to

r 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 c

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 s

o
m

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 t
h
a
t 
is

 e
it
h
e
r 

fu
n
d
e
d
 o

r 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 b

y
 

L
e
e
d
s
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

T
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

2
) 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
ip

lin
e
s
.

 -
 M

e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 o
f 
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 (

M
O

U
) 

a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 1

8
/0

2
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 i
te

ra
ti
o
n
.

 -
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 j
o
in

tl
y
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 p

o
s
t 
in

 J
u
n
e
 '0

9
.

1
) 

A
c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1

 (
1
.1

) 
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
, 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

, 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 j
o
in

tl
y
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 r

a
p
id

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 b

o
a
rd

.

- 
A

ll 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 t
o
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 c

o
n
c
o
rd

a
t 
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
e
re

 i
s
 g

e
n
u
in

e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 r

a
p
id

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e
t 
m

in
im

u
m

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
.

- 
F

o
rm

a
l 
M

e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 o
f 
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 1

8
th

 F
e
b
'0

9
- 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 i
te

ra
ti
o
n
.

- 
T

h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

re
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 d
is

ti
n
c
t 

fo
rm

a
l 
d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 

th
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 M

e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 o
f 
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

(A
n
n
e
x
 1

0
)

 -
 A

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 r
e
g
u
la

rl
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

  
a
n
d
 A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
.

L
a

s
t 

U
p

d
a

te
d

 1
5

/0
7

/0
9

Page 33



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
m

e
s

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

te
v
e
 H

u
m

e

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

te
v
e
 H

u
m

e

O
n
g
o
in

g
S

te
v
e
 H

u
m

e

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n

P
a
u
l 
B

ro
u
g
h
to

n

 -
P

A
Q

A
  
s
u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
in

 A
p
ri
l'0

9
.

 -
 A

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
  
w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
.

 -
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 Q

A
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p

 -
  
R

e
v
is

e
d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
fr

o
m

 A
p
ri
l-
0
9

 -
 T

h
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

0
9
/1

0
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
'0

9
. 

P
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 A
c
ti
o
n
 2

 

W
o
rk

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o

n
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
.

C
a
s
e
 f
ile

 a
u
d
it
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
 C

a
re

 w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
.

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
, 
a
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 m

a
p
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 r

o
le

s
 

w
it
h
 a

 v
a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 (

s
ig

n
-o

ff
) 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 d

e
v
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

u
t 
in

to
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
.

5
.2

) 
S

e
ri

o
u

s
 C

a
s
e
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
  
S

u
b

-G
ro

u
p

 

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 f
ro

m
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 i
s
 f
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
a
re

 5
.3

) 
T

ra
in

in
g

 &
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
S

u
b

-G
ro

u
p

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
, 
a
c
ts

 a
s
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
 f
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
n
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
fr

o
n
t 
lin

e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

5
.4

) 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
, 
A

u
d

it
 &

 Q
u

a
li
ty

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 S

u
b

-G
ro

u
p

 -
T

o
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
t 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

 -
 A

n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
  
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 b

y
 P

A
Q

A
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 

b
e
e
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

.

 6
) 

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 m

e
e
ts

 m
in

im
u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
te

c
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
. 

 -
 T

h
e
 M

e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 o
f 
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 (

M
O

U
) 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 a
g
re

e
d
.

 -
 A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
 t
h
e
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 f
o
r 

th
is

- 
C

ro
s
s
-r

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 a

c
ti

o
n

 3

5
.1

) 
P

o
li
c
ie

s
, 
P

ro
to

c
o

ls
 &

 P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

 S
u

b
-G

ro
u

p

T
o
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

s
, 
re

v
is

e
 a

n
d
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
.

4
)

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d
.

- 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 j
o
in

t 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

it
h
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

 H
e
a
d
 

o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 o

n
 2

8
th

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

  
2
0
0
9
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 8

th
 J

u
n
e
'0

9
.

- 
W

o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 -

 S
e
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 2

3
) 

T
h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 e
n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 
it
's

 w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
it
s
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
s
 a

re
 

re
g
u
la

rl
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

.

 -
 R

e
p
o
rt

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
  
- 

D
e
c
'0

8
, 
J
a
n
'0

9
,F

e
b
'0

9
 a

n
d
 M

a
r'
0
9
.

 -
 S

ta
g
e
 1

  
R

e
v
is

e
d
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

g
re

e
d
.

 -
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 R
a
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 f
o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s

5
) 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 i
n
 

a
s
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
f 
q
u
a
lit

y
 i
n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.

- 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
5
 S

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
is

o
ry

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 

M
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 o
f 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
.

  7
) 

S
ta

ff
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 m

in
im

u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

- 
A

 l
e
tt
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
b
y
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 C
h
ie

f 
o
ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 &

 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
) 

to
 a

ll 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
e
a
m

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

o
u
tl
in

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 l
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

- 
A

ll 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
.

8
) 

A
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
  
ta

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
.

- 
T

h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
. 

C
o
m

p
e
ti
n
g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
.

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

R
e
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 c

u
lt
u
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
.

C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
re

s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 n

e
w

 w
o
rk

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s

 -
 T

h
e
s
e
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
s
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
a
t 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 e

q
u
ip

p
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

ta
ff
 

tr
a
in

in
g
, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 p

o
lic

y
, 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
.

- 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
  
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 Q

A
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
.

O
n
g
o
in

g

A
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 f
a
il 

to
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
.

 -
 A

 f
u
ll 

s
c
a
le

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

ff
e
r 

a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 
to

 c
re

a
te

 a
 3

 

y
e
a
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
E

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
is

 f
it
 f
o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
. 

 -
 R

e
v
is

e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
ff
e
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

, 
c
le

a
rl
y
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
c
le

a
rl
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 

to
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 v

ia
 a

 n
e
w

 o
n
lin

e
 W

e
b
 p

a
g
e
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a

v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

T
h
e
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

, 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 i
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 

e
q
u
ip

p
e
d
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
.

 -
 T

h
e
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

  
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

  
a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
a
t 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 

e
q
u
ip

p
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

ta
ff
 t
ra

in
in

g
, 
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 p

o
lic

y
, 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

, 
to

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

L
e
e
d
s
.

L
a

s
t 

U
p

d
a

te
d

 1
5

/0
7

/0
9

Page 34



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

O
n
g
o
in

g
D

e
n
n
is

 H
o
m

e
s

A
p
r-

0
9

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n

P
a
u
l 
B

ro
u
g
h
to

n

D
e
c
-0

9

O
n
g
o
in

g

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n

P
a
u
l 
B

ro
u
g
h
to

n

O
n
g
o
in

g

T
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
re

g
u
la

r 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
v
a
lid

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
o
n
 c

a
s
e
 f
ile

 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
s
e
 

c
h
e
c
k
lis

ts
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

ra
w

n
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
is

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 s

ta
ff
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

T
ra

in
in

g
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
 a

 t
h
e
m

e
d
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 s

ta
ff
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 'W

o
rk

in
g
 

T
o
g
e
th

e
r'
 t
h
e
m

e
s
.

T
h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
m

in
d
e
r 

3
 p

o
s
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
.

T
h
e
s
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
is

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
:

- 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

- 
In

te
ra

g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

.

- 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

- 
re

c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

h
a
ri
n
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

- 
C

a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
.

- 
A

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
a
n
d
 S

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
.

 -
 A

 s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 a

s
s
u
ri
n
g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
 i
n
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
 T

e
a
m

 -
 T

o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

y
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t.

W
o
rk

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 o

n
 s

c
o
p
in

g
 o

u
t 
a
t 
a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l,
 t
ra

in
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

.

 -
 D

ra
ft
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
lit

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

s
.

 -
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 

e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
v
e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
.

 -
 A

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
f 
q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 

A
p
r'
0
9
.

A
 q

u
a
lit

y
 c

ir
c
le

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r-

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 i
s
 b

e
  
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

1
0
) 

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
ro

m
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 e

it
h
e
r 

c
a
s
h
 o

r 
k
in

d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

  
m

u
lt
i-
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
.

9
) 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

a
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
.

 -
 A

 m
a
n
d
a
to

ry
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 
b
y
 t
h
e
 T

ra
in

in
g
 s

u
b
-

g
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 D
e
p
u
ty

 H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

R
 c

h
a
ir
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

 -
 A

 n
e
w

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

C
ro

s
s
-r

e
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 A

c
ti

o
n

 5

1
1
) 

F
ie

ld
 w

o
rk

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 i
n
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
re

 r
e
in

fo
rc

e
d
 t
o
 c

o
a
c
h
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

- 
T

h
ro

u
g
h
 D

D
P

 S
e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

p
o
s
ts

  
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

re
a
te

d
 t
o
 p

la
y
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ro

le
 a

t 
th

e
 

fo
re

fr
o
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 b

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
, 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

, 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d
 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
lly

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

e
lf
-d

ir
e
c
te

d
 c

a
re

.

 -
 7

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
0
 p

o
s
ts

 o
f 
S

e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
a
c
h
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 o

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 t
e
a
m

s
.

1
2
) 

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

.

 -
 A

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 u

s
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

.

 -
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 &

 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
) 

h
a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

ts
 f
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

h
e
c
k
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
.

1
3
) 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

o
s
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 a

s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

 -
 S

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 u

s
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff
.

 -
 D

ra
ft
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
fo

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

1
4
) 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
  
th

e
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
.

 -
 A

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
.

 -
 T

o
o
ls

 t
o
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 u

s
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff
.

 -
 R

e
g
u
la

r 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
:

 -
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 (
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

D
M

T

 -
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 -
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 v
ia

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 &

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 S

u
b
-g

ro
u
p

 -
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

.

 -
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
 M

e
m

b
e
r.

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

A
p
r-

0
9

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n

P
a
u
l 
B

ro
u
g
h
to

n

O
n
g
o
in

g
D

e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

C
o
m

p
e
ti
n
g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
.

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

R
e
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 c

u
lt
u
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e

M
a
r-

0
9

D
if
fe

re
n
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g
e
n
d
a
 a

n
d
 l
a

c
k
 o

f 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

s
 b

y
 a

ll.

C
o
m

p
e
ti
n
g
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

R
e
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 c

u
lt
u
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e

C
o
m

p
e
ti
n
g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
.

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

R
e
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 c

u
lt
u
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e

L
a

s
t 

U
p

d
a

te
d

 1
5

/0
7

/0
9

Page 35



T
im

e
s
c
a
le

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

N
e
x
t 

S
te

p
s
 /
 F

u
tu

re
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 f

o
r 

Q
1
 &

 Q
2
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
R

is
k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

o
n
g
o
in

g
D

e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

G
ill

 C
o
p
e
la

n
d
 

N
H

S
-L

e
e
d
s

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

V
C

F
S

 (
L
e
e
d
s
 A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
)

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 O

u
tr

a
m

/I
a
n
 C

a
m

e
ro

n

J
im

 W
ill

s
o
n

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&

 N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

M
ic

h
e
le

 M
o
ra

n
/J

u
lie

 M
a
s
o
n

P
a
u
l 
L
a
n
g
fo

rd
/B

ri
d
g
e
t 
E

m
e
ry

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&

 N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

L
e
e
d
s
 A

L
M

O
W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

W
e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

o
lic

e

S
im

o
n
 C

o
s
ti
g
a
n

S
a
ra

h
 J

a
rv

is

G
e
rr

y
 B

ro
a
d
b
e
n
t/
S

im
o
n
 A

tk
in

P
a
u
l 
B

ro
u
g
h
to

n

L
e
e
d
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t

L
e
e
d
s
 T

e
a
c
h
in

g
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
T

ru
s
t

C
la

re
 L

in
le

y
/M

a
g
g
ie

 B
o
y
le

L
y
n
d
a
 B

o
w

e
n

P
ro

v
id

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s

P
a
u
l 
M

o
rr

in

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s

D
ia

n
e
 B

o
y
n
e
/C

a
ro

l 
C

o
c
h
ra

n
e
 

B
ry

a
n
 G

o
c
k
e

T
im

 W
h
a
lle

y

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s

1
5
) 

R
is

k
 f
a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 r
is

k
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
.

 -
 A

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 q

u
a
lit

y
 t
o
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 D
M

T
 b

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

 O
ff

ic
e
r

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 –
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t 
fo

r 
b
o
th

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

- 
B

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
  
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 b

y
 O

c
to

b
e
r'
0
9
.

 -
 E

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
o
u
tl
in

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
/ 
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 P

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
a
n
d
 s

e
t 
q
u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
  
R

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

im
p
a
c
t.

 -
 C

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 f
o
r 

N
H

S
 L

e
e
d
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
 C

o
n
ta

c
to

rs
 (

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

) 
a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 s

ta
ff
 w

ill
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 r

is
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
a
b
u
s
e
 o

r 
n
e
g
le

c
t.

 -
 W

e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 N
H

S
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 k

n
o
w

 h
o
w

 t
o
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

n
d
 ,
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 d

o
 o

c
c
u
r,

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
.

- 
N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
.

- 
W

e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

r

- 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 f
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g
 n

e
w

 L
e
e
d
s
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
s
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
.

 -
 D

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
b
o
u
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
q
u
a
lit

y
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y

 -
 L

a
c
k
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

d
e

m
a
n
d
  
In

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
ll 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
te

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
.

 -
 L

a
c
k
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 /
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y

C
o
m

p
e
ti
n
g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
.

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

R
e
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 c

u
lt
u
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e

N
H

S
 L

e
e
d
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
ti
v
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 a
n
d
 A

d
u
lt
s
 L

e
e
d
s
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

s
. 

- 
Id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

th
e
 A

d
u
lt
s
 b

o
a
rd

 t
h
a
t 
e
n
a
b
le

s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 

b
o
th

 N
H

S
 L

e
e
d
s
 (

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
) 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 A

rm
s
 

L
e
n
g
th

 f
ro

m
 1

s
t 
A

p
ri
l.

 -
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
L
C

C
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 C

S
C

I 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
.

 -
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 U

n
it
, 
C

S
C

I 
a
n
d
 A

S
C

 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
to

 m
a
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

a
is

e
d
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
e
c
to

r 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 o
f 
c
a
re

.

 -
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
c
ti
v
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
th

e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 b

o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

u
b
 

g
ro

u
p
s
.

L
a

s
t 

U
p

d
a

te
d

 1
5

/0
7

/0
9

Page 36



A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 Y
e

a
r 

E
n

d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
y
p

e

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

re
q

u
e

n
c
y
 &

 

M
e

a
s
u

re

R
is

e
 o

r 
F

a
ll

B
a

s
e

lin
e

L
a

s
t 

Y
e

a
r 

R
e

s
u

lt

T
a

rg
e

t
F

u
ll 

Y
e

a
r 

R
e

s
u

lt

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y

N
I 

1
3

0
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 c
lie

n
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 s

e
lf
 d

ir
e

c
te

d
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 1

8
+

A
c
c
e

s
s
 &

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

N
u

m
b

e
r

R
is

e
9

7
.7

9
7

.7
1

2
7

1
5

5
.7

N
o

 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
3

2
T

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

a
ll 

a
d

u
lt
s
)

A
c
c
e

s
s
 &

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%

R
is

e
8

0
.9

0
%

8
0

.9
0

%
8

5
%

8
4

.0
0

%
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
3

9
T

h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
 a

t 
h

o
m

e

C
ro

s
s
 c

u
tt

in
g

S
u

rv
e

y

-

N
o

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
A

2
9

.5
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
4

1
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

liv
in

g

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

a
n

d

C
o

m
m

in
is

s
io

n
in

g

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
6

0
%

N
.A

.
6

6
%

7
6

.3
9

%
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
3

3
A

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 (
D

H
) 

w
a

it
in

g
 t

im
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
 

p
a

c
k
a

g
e

s

A
c
c
e

s
s
 &

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%

R
is

e
8

5
.3

0
%

8
5

.1
0

%
9

0
%

8
5

.3
0

%
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
3

6
P

e
o

p
le

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 (

a
ll 

a
d

u
lt
s
)

A
c
c
e

s
s
 &

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
A

n
n

u
a

lly

N
u

m
b

e
r

R
is

e
7

0
.4

N
.A

.
7

2
.7

N
.A

.
S

o
m

e
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

T
h

is
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l.
 T

h
is

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 P
la

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

o
c
c
a

s
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
lle

c
te

d

O
v
e

r 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 L

e
e

d
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 3

8
1

8
 n

e
w

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

o
f 

w
h

o
m

 8
5

.3
%

 h
a

d
 a

ll 
th

e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

in
 2

8
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
b

e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
T

h
is

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
c
a

l 
to

 t
h

a
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 .
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

c
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 v

a
ri
e

s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

s
. 

D
a

y
 c

a
re

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
re

 m
o

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 l
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
, 

w
h

ile
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 n
u

rs
in

g
 c

a
re

 t
e

n
d

 t
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 2

8
 d

a
y
s
. 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
lis

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

a
b

le
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 f

u
tu

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t's

 a
im

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

's
 c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 d

ir
e

c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 

y
e

a
r.

 L
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

6
6

5
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 d

ir
e

c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
. 

9
3

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 d

ir
e

c
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

. 
T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
7

6
0

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

e
t 

a
n

d
 

e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

.

L
e

e
d

s
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 t

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 w
a

s
 8

4
%

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ti
n

g
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 8

1
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 e
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 r

is
e

n
 f

ro
m

 2
1

2
5

3
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 t
o

 2
2

8
0

2
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

, 
a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

7
.3

%
 o

v
e

ra
ll.

 I
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 t

h
e

 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 h
a

s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 a

 1
0

4
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 i
t 

h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
T

h
e

 d
e

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

ill
 e

n
a

b
le

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 f
u

tu
re

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 

T
h

is
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 A
u

g
u

s
t.

1 2 3 5 6

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
la

n
 -

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

A
g

re
e

d

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
la

n
 -

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

A
g

re
e

d

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
la

n
 -

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

A
g

re
e

d

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
la

n
 -

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

A
g

re
e

d

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
la

n
 -

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

A
g

re
e

d

4
L

e
e

d
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
la

n
 -

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

A
g

re
e

d

E
a

c
h

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

N
I 

1
4

1
 s

u
b

m
it
s
 a

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 w

o
rk

b
o

o
k
 o

n
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 r
e

c
o

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 l
e

ft
 t

h
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

N
u

m
e

ra
to

r:
 N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
liv

in
g

. 
 D

e
n

o
m

in
a

to
r:

 T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 l
e

a
v
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
r.

  
C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
: 

N
u

m
e

ra
to

r*
1

0
0

/D
e

n
o

m
in

a
to

r.

Page 37



A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 Y
e

a
r 

E
n

d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
y
p

e

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

re
q

u
e

n
c
y
 &

 

M
e

a
s
u

re

R
is

e
 o

r 
F

a
ll

B
a

s
e

lin
e

L
a

s
t 

Y
e

a
r 

R
e

s
u

lt

T
a

rg
e

t
F

u
ll 

Y
e

a
r 

R
e

s
u

lt

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y

L
S

P
-

H
W

2
B

(I
I)

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

s
e

c
to

r 
re

g
is

te
re

d
 c

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 

L
e

e
d

s
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 o
n

 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 a

d
u

lt
s
 t

h
a

t 
is

 e
it
h

e
r 

fu
n

d
e

d
 o

r 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 b

y
 L

e
e

d
s
 A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a

re

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%

R
is

e
9

1
%

9
1

%
9

5
%

9
8

%
N

o
 C

h
e

c
k
lis

t

N
I 

8
A

d
u

lt
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

c
ti
v
e

 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n

S
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 A

c
ti
v
e

 

R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%

R
is

e
2

0
.6

%
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
2

8
.4

%
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

N
I 

1
2

5
A

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
h

a
b

ili
ta

ti
o

n
/i
n

te
rm

e
d

ia
te

 c
a

re

A
c
c
e

s
s
 &

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

8
4

.6
S

o
m

e
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
3

5
C

a
re

rs
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
 

a
n

d
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
a

re
rs

 s
e

rv
ic

e

A
c
c
e

s
s
 &

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%

R
is

e
1

6
.2

0
%

1
6

.2
0

%
1

9
.3

0
%

2
0

.5
0

%
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
4

5
A

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 i
n

 s
e

tt
le

d
 

a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 &
 

D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

h
e

c
k
lis

t

N
I 

1
4

6
A

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 

D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

h
e

c
k
lis

t

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

te
ri
m

 f
ig

u
re

. 
 P

re
d

ic
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 r

e
s
p

it
e

 c
a

re
 f

ig
u

re
s
 (

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

ro
u

n
d

 9
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
rs

 f
ig

u
re

).
 O

n
c
e

 r
e

s
p

it
e

 d
a

ta
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
w

e
 a

p
p

e
a

r 
w

e
ll 

o
n

 t
ra

c
k
 t

o
 m

e
e

t/
s
u

rp
a

s
s
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

 N
o

te
 t

h
a

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 t

ry
 a

n
d

 g
a

in
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

it
e

 d
a

ta
 o

n
 a

 m
o

re
 r

e
g

u
la

r 

b
a

s
is

 s
o

 a
s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 f

in
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

.

A
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s
e

c
to

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 o
f 

L
e

e
d

s
 n

u
rs

in
g

, 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

 d
o

m
ic

ill
a

ry
 c

a
re

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
9

 .
  

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s
e

c
to

r 
s
e

e
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

s
u

g
g

e
s
ti
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
is

s
u

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

a
is

e
d

.

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 f
ig

u
re

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

s
 w

e
 a

re
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 a

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 a
 q

u
e

ry
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 i
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 (
th

e
 b

o
d

y
 t

o
 w

h
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
tu

rn
 w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
).

 I
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 f

in
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
J
u

ly
.

It
 i
s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 f
ig

u
re

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

s
 w

e
 a

re
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 a

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 a
 q

u
e

ry
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 i
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 (
th

e
 b

o
d

y
 t

o
 w

h
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
tu

rn
 w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
).

 I
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 f

in
a

l 
fi
g

u
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
J
u

ly
.

L
e

e
d

s
 h

a
s
 m

o
v
e

d
 t

o
 1

6
th

 (
E

n
g

lis
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
) 

in
 2

0
0

8
 f

ro
m

 a
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
2

0
8

th
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

, 
th

e
 4

th
 b

ig
g

e
s
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

. 
 L

e
e

d
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 5
%

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
  

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
.

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 f
o

r 
a

 n
e

w
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 I

t 
re

lie
s
 o

n
 n

e
w

 d
a

ta
 f

o
r 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e

 o
n

ly
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 f
ro

m
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
0

9
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 n
o

 c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le

7 9 1
0

1
1

1
2

8

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
la

n
 -

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

A
g

re
e

d

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

P
la

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

A
g

re
e

d

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

Page 38



A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 Y
e

a
r 

E
n

d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
y
p

e

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

re
q

u
e

n
c
y
 &

 

M
e

a
s
u

re

R
is

e
 o

r 
F

a
ll

B
a

s
e

lin
e

L
a

s
t 

Y
e

a
r 

R
e

s
u

lt

T
a

rg
e

t
F

u
ll 

Y
e

a
r 

R
e

s
u

lt

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y

N
I 

1
2

4
P

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 a
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n

L
e

e
d

s
 P

C
T

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
2

9
E

n
d

 o
f 

lif
e

 c
a

re
 -

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

a
re

 

e
n

a
b

lin
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 c
h

o
s
e

 t
o

 d
ie

 a
t 

h
o

m
e

L
e

e
d

s
 P

C
T

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
3

1
D

e
la

y
e

d
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a

re
L

e
e

d
s
 P

C
T

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u

m
b

e
r

F
a

ll
5

.2
4

N
.A

.
3

.6
8

4
.4

8
N

o
 C

h
e

c
k
lis

t

N
I 

1
3

4
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 b

e
d

 d
a

y
s
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

w
e

ig
h

te
d

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

L
e

e
d

s
 P

C
T

A
n

n
u

a
lly

N
u

m
b

e
r

F
a

ll
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
4

9
A

d
u

lt
s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 s
e

tt
le

d
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

h
e

c
k
lis

t

N
I 

1
5

0
A

d
u

lt
s
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t

A
n

n
u

a
lly

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

h
e

c
k
lis

t

N
I 

1
3

8
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 o
v
e

r 
6

5
 w

it
h

 b
o

th
 h

o
m

e
 

a
n

d
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g

S
u

rv
e

y

%

N
o

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
8

2
.8

0
%

N
o

 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

1
4

2
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
liv

in
g

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

a
n

d

C
o

m
m

in
is

s
io

n
in

g

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
9

9
%

N
.A

.
9

9
%

9
8

.7
8

%
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
, 

is
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 0
7

/0
8

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 I

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
s
 d

e
lib

e
ra

te
ly

 s
e

t 
a

m
b

it
io

u
s
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 b
a

n
d

e
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

. 

A
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
s
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
J
u

ly

T
h

is
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l

N
.A

.

A
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
s
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
J
u

ly

N
.A

.

N
.A

.

1
7

1
5

1
4

1
9

1
8

1
3

1
6

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

2
0

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

 E
a

c
h

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

N
I 

1
4

2
 s

u
b

m
it
s
 a

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 w

o
rk

b
o

o
k
 o

n
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 r
e

c
o

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 s

ti
ll 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 

o
f 

th
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
r,

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 t
y
p

e
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 l
e

ft
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 N
u

m
e

ra
to

r:
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 o

r 
re

m
a

in
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 

e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

r.
 D

e
n

o
m

in
a

to
r:

 T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 C
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
 N

u
m

e
ra

to
r*

1
0

0
/D

e
n

o
m

in
a

to
r.

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

Page 39



A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 Y
e

a
r 

E
n

d

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
y
p

e

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

re
q

u
e

n
c
y
 &

 

M
e

a
s
u

re

R
is

e
 o

r 
F

a
ll

B
a

s
e

lin
e

L
a

s
t 

Y
e

a
r 

R
e

s
u

lt

T
a

rg
e

t
F

u
ll 

Y
e

a
r 

R
e

s
u

lt

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y

B
V

-5
6

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

it
e

m
s
 o

f 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

w
it
h

in
 7

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
.

A
c
c
e

s
s
 &

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%

R
is

e
9

0
%

9
0

%
9

2
%

9
3

.3
0

%
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

L
K

I-
S

S
2

3
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

th
e

ir
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t

A
c
c
e

s
s
 &

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%

R
is

e
9

9
%

9
9

%
9

9
%

9
9

.3
0

%
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

L
K

I-
S

S
3

5
A

d
u

lt
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

s
 a

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

th
o

s
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
.

A
c
c
e

s
s
 &

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y

%

R
is

e
6

2
.5

0
%

6
2

.8
0

%
7

6
%

6
5

%
N

o
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s

w
it
h

 d
a

ta

C
P

-O
P

5
1

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

a
d

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

n
d

/o
r 

n
u

rs
in

g
 c

a
re

 p
e

r 

1
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 6

5
 o

r 
o

v
e

r

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
/A

c
c

e
s
s
 &

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n

A
n

n
u

a
lly

N
u

m
b

e
r

F
a

ll
6

9
.4

7
1

6
5

N
.A

.
N

o
 C

h
e

c
k
lis

t

B
V

-5
3

In
te

n
s
iv

e
 h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 

6
5

 o
r 

o
v
e

r

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

A
n

n
u

a
lly

N
u

m
e

ri
c
a

l

R
is

e
1

1
.4

1
1

.4
1

3
N

.A
.

N
o

 C
h

e
c
k
lis

t

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 r

a
te

d
  

in
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

b
a

n
d

 (
v
e

ry
 g

o
o

d
) 

b
y
 C

Q
C

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
0

8
/0

9
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
rp

a
s
s
e

d
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 i
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

te
ri
m

 f
ig

u
re

N
.A

.

N
.A

.

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

te
ri
m

 f
ig

u
re

. 
T

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 f
o

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 r

a
te

d
 b

y
 C

Q
C

 a
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 4

th
 b

a
n

d
 (

g
o

o
d

).
 O

v
e

ra
ll 

th
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 f
a

ir
ly

 c
o

n
s
ta

n
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r,

 w
it
h

 a
 s

lig
h

t 
u

p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

ig
h

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
.

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

te
ri
m

 f
ig

u
re

. 
L

e
e

d
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 1

2
,2

2
9

 p
e

o
p

le
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r,

  
o

f 
1

9
,3

6
7

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
. 

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
v
e

r 
2

0
0

7
/0

8
 b

u
t 

fa
lls

 s
h

o
rt

 o
f 

it
s
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

L
e

e
d

s
 h

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
in

g
 y

e
a

r.

2
3

2
4

2
5

2
1

2
2

L
o

c
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

L
o

c
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

L
o

c
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

L
o

c
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

L
o

c
a

l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

Page 40



 

Report of:     The Director of Adult Social Services 
Board:         Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board  
Date:              29th July 2009  
Subject:        Leeds Safeguarding Adult Partnership Board report 2008/09 
   
 

        
 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
This report introduces the annual report for 2008/09 of the Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership 
Board.  The Annual report provides information on how all agencies with responsibilities in relation to 
safeguarding adults, under the leadership of the Director of Adult Social Services, have built on the 
proposals contained in the first annual report of the partnership (presented to the Executive Board in 
July 2008) and then responded to the recommendations of the 2008 Independence, Wellbeing and 
Choice Inspection of Adult Social Services.  
 
That response, detailed in the report, includes the introduction of significantly revised governance 
arrangements with regard to the Board, the nomination to the board of a cohort of senior officers from 
the partnership organizations, the inclusion of citizen representation and establishment of focused, 
purposeful sub-groups to support the work of the board.  
 
As well as significantly revising the structure and purpose of the Board, the report highlights the 
successful creation of an infrastructure designed to better promote and assure the work of the Board 
and the partner organizations in their efforts to safeguard and protect. The report also highlights the 
work that has been undertaken in the last year to radically overhaul the Leeds Safeguarding Policy, 
which supports a significantly revised set of multi-agency procedures that are in the process of being 
adopted by all partner organizations. 
 
Finally,  the report contains more detailed information on the direct work undertaken in 2008/09 by 
officers within the wider partnership and within adult social care with significantly greater numbers of 
people  who were referred because of their  need to be safeguarded or otherwise protected from 
harm.  
 
The report concludes by setting out the detailed work programme for the Board in 2009/10 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originators:  Dennis Holmes 
  
 
Tel:74959  

X 

X 

X
 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 41



 
1.0 Purpose of Report. 
 
1.1 This report introduces the second annual report of the Leeds Safeguarding Adults 

Partnership Board , the report sets out how the respective partners have built on the work 
programme set out in the first annual report of the Board published in 2008 and have 
responded to the recommendations of the Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI) 
Independence, Wellbeing and Choice, area Inspection conducted in the late  summer of 
2008. 

 
2. Background  
 
2.1 Members of the Executive Board were presented with the first annual report of the Leeds 

Safeguarding Adults Board in July 2008. That report set out activity which had taken place 
in the previous year to establish steps that would need to be taken to reinforce the 
safeguarding partnership, augment the infrastructure supporting it  and to drive up 
standards of safeguarding practice in front line services within all partner organizations. 

 
2.2 The outcome of the Independence wellbeing and Choice inspection of adult social care 

services was reported to the Executive Board in November 2008. That report drew attention 
to areas of deficiency in both the strategic oversight of safeguarding and the quality of 
practice identified within the casework which had been under inspection. 

 
2.3 As a consequence, a number of recommendations were made in relation to the overall 

safeguarding arrangements  in the City. The actions in relation to the responsibilities of the 
safeguarding partnership, under the leadership of the Director of Adult Social Services, 
have been regularly reported to both the Executive Lead Member, the Adult social care 
Scrutiny Board and within the governance structures of the statutory partners. 

 
2.4 In addition, the revised governance arrangement s of the partnership have been the subject 

of two reports to the Corporate Audit and Governance Committee. 
 
3. Current Position in Respect of Safeguarding Adults 
 
3.1 A very  significant amount of work has been undertaken (and continues to be undertaken) to 

ensure that  safeguarding arrangements in Leeds reflect national best practice models and 
aspire to excellence. First and foremost this stems from the determined view by all agencies 
that Leeds citizens have a right to expect that all are safeguarded by responsive public 
bodies working in partnership and that the most vulnerable are effectively protected when 
they need to be. 

 
3.2 The annual report which sets out the activity that has been undertaken in relation to all 

aspects of safeguarding activity in the 2008/09 year, the report also sets out the prospective 
activity planned for 2009/10(for both the Board and its sub-groups)  The report identifies the 
very substantial growth in numbers of  safeguarding referrals and the increasing proportion 
of those referrals that are concluded by the establishment of a safeguarding plan for the 
individual concerned.  

 
3.3  Finally, the report indicates the intention towards the end of the current performance year to 

formally recruit an appropriately experienced chair for the Safeguarding Adults Partnership 
Board. Since June 2008, the Board has been chaired by the Deputy Director (Strategic 
Commissioning) within a separate accountability agreement to the Director of Adult Social 
Services. All the Board initiatives set out in the attached report have been put into place 
under this arrangement, however, it is recognised that this period of stabilization and 
embedding of new arrangements should be a temporary one and that national best practice, 
to which we aspire, requires the appointment of an independent chair. The recruitment 
process will commence in early Autumn with the objective of the new Chair taking up their 
role in April 2010. 

 

Page 42



3.4   Against the criteria used by the Care Quality Commission Adult Social Services have 
advised that they regard their performance as being adequate and therefore having 
demonstrated improvement over the judgment for 2007/08. The CQC will provide their 
formal definitive response to the self assessment  in November. 

 
 
4.0 Implications for Council Policy and Governance  
 
4.1 The adoption in February of improved arrangements for partnership and Board governance 

means that the Board now operates within a nationally recognized set of best practice 
arrangements designed with the assistance of leading national figures. These arrangements 
were twice reported, in detail, to the Corporate Audit and Governance committee. 

 
4.2 The Board has agreed to keep all the governance arrangements set out in the 

‘Memorandum of Understanding’ under review during the current performance year, 
adjustments to the constitution will be made in order to address any anomalies or 
deficiencies. This is particularly important in the light of the likelihood of further guidance 
emerging for Local safeguarding Partnerships as a consequence of the outcome of the 
Governments review of the 2000 ‘No Secrets’ framework, responding quickly to address any 
new requirements will be important. 

 
5.0 Legal & Resource Implications 
 
5.1  The legal implications relate to a significant array of legislation in relation to offences against 

the person, guidance in relation to Care Standards, the implementation of specific guidance 
in relation to Adult Safeguarding, Dignity in Care and the associated responsibilities for 
Local Authorities and their partners set out in the terms of the Mental Capacity Act 2005. 

 
5.2 Paragraph 4.2 above alerts Members to the possible introduction of amended safeguarding 

requirements as a consequence of the Governments response to the review of  the 2000 
‘No Secrets’ guidance. 

 
5.3 The resource implications of the new arrangements are set out in the annual report, 

however, in summary, Adult Social Care, as part of the 2009/10 budget setting process, 
identified a total investment package of £878K to support and augment front-line 
practitioners. An element of this investment has been used to ensure that the overall 
partnership has an effective infrastructure which is able to support safeguarding activity 
across the wider partnership.  

 
5.4 Elements of this investment are being offset by contributions from partners, where 

appropriate as income (in the case of NHS Leeds for example) or in terms of time devoted 
by officers to supporting the work of the partnership (in the case of the West Yorkshire 
Police, for example). 

 
5.5 The elements of contribution will remain under review and will continue to be reported 

through the annual report. 
 
6.0 Conclusions 
 
6.1  Safeguarding Adults, especially vulnerable adults, is increasingly recognized in Leeds as 

being everybody’s business. Members of the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board will wish to 
continue to be assured that the system and practice of Safeguarding is kept under close 
and regular review to ensure that it remains responsive to national policy shifts and local 
organisational realignments.  

 
6.2 Members will wish to be assured that the practical as well as strategic requirements of this 

approach are well understood by key staff from across the safeguarding partnership and, 
increasingly, by the wider public. Further, this report seeks to provide assurance that not 
only are  any weaknesses in the system of Safeguarding recognised and addressed but that 
the partners have committed to a programme designed to achieve excellence in 

Page 43



Safeguarding practice in Leeds. The annual report for 2008/09 and associated workplan for 
2009/10 set out the practical steps to be taken in helping to achieve that goal in the coming 
year. 

 
6.3 In support of the crucial role played by the Local Authority in ensuring the safety of it’s 

citizens, Members of the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board have continued to retain a close 
interest in the development of these arrangements, their support and interest has been been 
both important and welcome. 

 
7.0 Recommendation 
 
7.1  Members are requested to note the content of the attached 2000/09 annual report. 
 

 
Background papers: 
 
Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board – Safeguarding Policy 
Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board – Annual Report 2008/09 
Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board – Memorandum of Understanding  
 

 

Page 44



Final Draft 01/07/09 

1

Annual Report 2008/2009

Page 269Page 45



Final Draft 01/07/09 

2

Page 270Page 46



Final Draft 01/07/09 

3

Contents 

Forward Sandie Keene, Director of Adult Social Services 

Introduction Dennis Holmes, Deputy Director of Adult Services – Chair of Leeds Safeguarding  
Adults Partnership Board 

1. The Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board 
  Revised Constitution 
  Membership 
  Board Member Development Programme 2009/10 
  Board Work Programme 2009/10 
  Sub-Groups 
  Sub-Groups Work Programme 2009/10 

   
2. Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board Support Infrastructure 

  Safeguarding Adult Partnership Support Unit – structure 
  Financial Arrangements 

3. Safeguarding Activity 2008/09 
  Overview 

Referral Numbers 
  Referrals by Outcome 
  Referrals by User Group 
  Referrals by Age 
  Referrals by Referral Source 
  Percentage Change in Referral numbers by Referral Source 
  Perceptions of Safety 

4. Training,  Workforce & Organisational Development 

5. National Safeguarding Developments 

6. Achievements of the Partnership against the 2008/09 Action Plan 

7. Key Targets and Action Plan 2009/10 

Appendices  

A. Leeds Safeguarding Partnership Statement of Purpose (attached)  
B. Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Training and Workforce Development Framework (attached) 
C.  Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Memorandum of Understanding (available on request) 
D.  Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Policy (available on request) 

Page 271Page 47



Final Draft 01/07/09 

4

Page 272Page 48



Final Draft 01/07/09 

5

Foreword 

I am very pleased to present the second Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership annual report. Two years ago, 
recognising that the partnership was not achieving the level of excellence in safeguarding that the City’s vulnerable 
adults deserve, we began a process of reform. The Partnership has since benefited form the ‘Independence, Well-
being and Choice’ inspection conducted by the Commission for Social Care Inspection (now the Care Quality 
Commission). This inspection built on what we had already started to discover; that, as a partnership our policies, 
procedures and systems needed renewal and that greater investment in both frontline safeguarding activity and 
partnership support was required.  

We have now made a very significant investment in safeguarding adults work. We have created additional, specialist 
posts, and we have ensured that those working with vulnerable adults across the City receive the training and 
development needed to do the excellent job the citizens of Leeds deserve.  

Our investment has been reflected at a strategic level by the development of a reconstituted Safeguarding Adults 
Partnership Board with new, robust terms of reference that set out the importance of safeguarding adults in Leeds. 
This achievement would have been more challenging without the commitment of the chief executives of our  statutory 
organisations, by our Councillors and the non- Executives of our partners and by our colleagues in the third sector.  

Together we have ensured that all of those who work with vulnerable people are equipped to do so effectively and that 
we are able to know that they have been effective. 

While I am proud of what we have achieved so far, I am also very much aware that we still have significantly more to 
achieve. This report also looks forward and sets out the Board’s plans for the coming year.  You will see that our plans 
remain ambitious, but necessary. 

I remain absolutely committed to continue to promote our aspiration to excellence in Safeguarding in Leeds and I look 
forward to the continued commitment of those working in every setting to safeguard adults.  

Sandie Keene 
Director of Adult Social Services 
May 2009 

Page 273Page 49



Final Draft 01/07/09 

6

Chair’s Introduction 

I’d like to thank my fellow Board Members, past and present, and the officers who have supported the Board and its 
sub-groups throughout 2008/09. The engagement and commitment of both members and officers to driving the 
Safeguarding agenda forward in the City was both gratifying and personally encouraging to me in my role as chair.  

This year has seen considerable change in all areas of safeguarding activity in the City – the facts and figures 
contained later in this report bear testament to that in relation to both safeguarding activity undertaken but also in 
relation to the additional resources committed on behalf of the partnership.  

It has also been a significantly challenging time at the strategic level, with the Safeguarding Partnership challenged by 
raised national expectations and the outcome of our own local inspection. It’s my assessment that we have emerged 
stronger as a result of these challenges: both strategically, with a reinforced infrastructure, and practically, with front 
line capacity augmented to further embed safeguarding best practice.  Our test has been to ask how well we know 
ourselves as a Safeguarding Partnership and to question what we aspire to.   

We have benefited from the expertise, support and guidance of Michael Hake, former Director of  Social Services in 
Solihull now working independently on social care performance improvement issues, including safeguarding adults, 
and Dr Margaret Flynn, of Sheffield University and Chair of the Lancashire Adult Safeguarding Board. Their critical 
friendship has helped us identify areas for development of both the Board and the wider partnership. 

The two parts of our test have been answered with the help of Michael, who helped us to develop a best practice 
model for the fundamental revision of the constitution of the Board and its subgroups, setting out the role and 
responsibilities of partner agencies, lead officers and my accountability as Chair. All these features have been put into 
place in the last year and inform the second element of our test. 

With the help of Margaret we have started to begin to articulate what excellent practice in modern safeguarding looks 
like and you will see this set out as an appendix to this report as our statement of purpose. As last year’s report 
recognised, however, we had become ‘disconnected’, as a partnership, from frontline practice. In the last year we 
have put steps in place to make sure that we reconnect strongly and powerfully.  Again, Margaret has helped us to put 
into place systems and processes designed to assure frontline practice and to strengthen the learning link back into 
the partnership structures.  These are key themes for the coming year and are covered in more detail in our work 
programme for 2009/10.  

The statutory members of the partnership have benefited from the close oversight of our governance systems. As 
Councillors and Non Executives rightly request (and receive) better information about our activity and our plans for the 
future, their active engagement and oversight serves to highlight the importance of safeguarding on a wider stage. 

I made a personal commitment at the start of my tenure as Board Chair to ensure that adult safeguarding became 
more closely aligned with the other safeguarding infrastructures in the City, most notably those for Children. I am 
pleased to report that we have developed closer relationships with our Children’s Safeguarding Board colleagues with 
each now represented on the Board of the other. We intend to continue learning together to better safeguard families. 

Finally, we will take steps in the coming year to put arrangements in place to recruit an independent chair for the 
Board. I have been extremely pleased to have been able to serve the partnership in this capacity for the last year, we 
have accomplished much but still have much left to do and I look forward to progressing all those strands of work in 
the coming year. However, we have signalled that we aspire to excellence and national best practice as a partnership 
and the successful recruitment of an independent chair will mark an important milestone on that route. 

Dennis Holmes  
Deputy Director – Adult Social Care 
Chair, Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board. 

Page 274Page 50



Final Draft 01/07/09 

7

June 2009

Page 275Page 51



Final Draft 01/07/09 

8

1.  Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board  

1.1 Revised Constitution  

Leeds City Council has the lead role on the safeguarding of vulnerable adults within its area and is the lead Agency 
with responsibility for co-ordinating partnership working within the framework of Department of Health Policy and 
Guidance. The relevant guidance continues to be that published in 2000 in the document ‘No Secrets’. The overall 
guidance, which continues to represent the sole statutory national standard, is permissive rather than prescriptive in 
nature, allowing each locality to determine how best to coordinate multi-agency safeguarding arrangements. 

The Director of Adult Social Services (DASS) has specific responsibilities under statutory guidance issued by the 
Department of Health in May 2006, when the role of the DASS was created.  The DASS is expected to ensure clear 
reporting lines are in place and is responsible for providing professional leadership for all staff and across local 
networks and partnerships involved in the provision of Adult Social Care. This includes the responsibility to establish a 
framework of inter-agency arrangements in respect of Adult Safeguarding and to ensure that National Standards on 
Adult Safeguarding are met.  

Since the publication of the 2008 annual report, work has been undertaken to significantly strengthen and renew the 
Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board. That work culminated in the production of the Memorandum of  
Understanding (MOU), (available at www.leedssafeguardingadults.org.uk) and its Annexes which seek to describe, in 
some detail, the precise roles and accountabilities of partners in the conduct of the work of the Safeguarding Board 
and its working sub-groups. The MOU sets out 19 objectives for the Board, covering all strategic aspects of adult 
safeguarding. The MOU provides a constitution for the renewed Board structure which will continue to be revised to 
ensure its continued relevance to all the partner agencies. 

Importantly, the MOU sets out the requirements in relation to the membership of the Board, ensuring that those 
attending are of sufficient seniority to represent their host organisation effectively. The concept of full and associate 
membership has been introduced to differentiate between those largely statutory organisations, who are likely to make 
a resource commitment to support the Board infrastructure, and associate members, who are not. A framework for the 
conduct of business in the Board is also included. 

The DASS is responsible for nominating the Chair of the Board and details of the working arrangements and 
accountability framework for this role are set out at Annex 8 of the MOU. The Chair of the Board is directly 
accountable to the DASS for the effective strategic leadership, organisation and performance of the Board in its 
discharge of safeguarding responsibilities. The work of the safeguarding partnership, which is conducted through the 
Board structure, is reported through the Healthy Leeds Partnership Joint Commissioning Board.  This reflects its 
current non-statutory nature. 

The national standards in relation to adult safeguarding continue to be much broader than those statutory 
requirements set out in relation to the safeguarding of children and those set out with regard to local Crime Reduction 
Partnerships. This issue formed part of a Government consultation during the winter of 2008/09 on the national 
arrangements for safeguarding adults.  The consultation specifically poses the question for consultees, “how do we 
know if a safeguarding board is working effectively? To whom should it be accountable?”.  In Leeds we have sought to 
address this question by producing the MOU, which seeks to address these questions and to eliminate any confusion 
about role and accountability.  The refinement of the MOU will form part of the work programme of the Board in the 
coming year. 

The role and position of the Chair of this Adult Safeguarding Partnership Board has been actively debated. The issue 
of independence of the Chair was covered within the national consultation referred to previously. It is not yet known 
when the governmental response to this consultation will be available. In the interim, the current Chairing 
arrangements will continue but, mindful of the need to reflect national best practice, arrangements will be made to 
recruit an independent Chair later in the coming year. The benefit of National Guidance may also be available to 

Page 276Page 52



Final Draft 01/07/09 

9

inform actions. In any event, Annex 10 of the MOU, which deals with the role and accountability of the Chair, has been 
constructed to accommodate the appointment of an Independent Chair of the Board. 

The new working arrangements of the Board commenced with its first meeting under the terms of the MOU on the 18
th

February 2009.  An outline work programme for the Board for the remainder of 2009 was agreed at that Board, a key 
focus of which includes the establishment of facilitated time for Board members to consider amongst other key areas, 
the maintenance of good governance.  

1.2 Membership

The Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board has met on four occasions during 2008 – 2009, in June, September, 
December and February. The Board has reconstituted itself during that period, developing robust terms of reference 
that emphasise the accountability and governance arrangements of the Board. The first meeting of the reconstituted 
Board was held in February 2009. The Board’s membership from April 2008 – December 2008 is detailed in Table 1, 
below. The reconstituted Board’s membership is shown in the Table 2, which also details organisations’ membership 
status. Both tables show members’ attendance at Board meetings.  

Table 1:  Membership of Leeds Safeguarding Adults Board and Attendance at Board meetings, April to 
December 2008. 

Organisation  June 2008 September 2008 December 2008 

NHS Leeds üüüü üüüü üüüü

Leeds Teaching Hospitals 
Trust 

üüüü üüüü üüüü

Leeds Partnership Foundation 
Trust 

üüüü üüüü üüüü

Leeds Adult Social Care üüüü üüüü üüüü

West Yorkshire Fire Service üüüü üüüü üüüü

Leeds City Council 
Neighbourhoods and Housing 
Department 

üüüü üüüü üüüü

West Yorkshire Police üüüü üüüü üüüü

Leeds City Council Legal 
Services  

   

Her Majesty’s Prison, Leeds üüüü üüüü üüüü

Crown Prosecution Service x x x 

Leeds Service User and Carer 
Alliance 

üüüü üüüü

Aire Valley Homes üüüü üüüü x 

Leeds City Council Children’s 
Services 

üüüü üüüü üüüü

Leeds Care Association üüüü üüüü üüüü

Leeds Community Safety  üüüü üüüü üüüü

Commission for Social Care 
Inspection  

üüüü üüüü üüüü

Leeds Jewish Welfare Board üüüü x x 

Leeds Advocacy x üüüü üüüü

Page 277Page 53



Final Draft 01/07/09 

10

Table 2:  Membership of the reconstituted Leeds Safeguarding Adults Board and Attendance at the Board 
meeting, February 2009.

Organisation  Invitee Membership status February 2009 
Leeds Adult Social 
Care  

Sandie Keene, 
Director of Adult 
Social Care  

Ex-Officio – Accountable 
Officer 

x

Leeds Adult Social 
Care  

Dennis Holmes  
Deputy Director, 
Strategic 
Commissioning

Full member, Chair  üüüü

Leeds Adult Social 
Care

Paul Broughton 
Chief Officer, Learning 
Disability 

Full member üüüü

Leeds Adult Social 
Care

John Lennon 
Chief Officer, Access & 
Inclusion 

Full member üüüü

Leeds Teaching 
Hospitals Trust  

Clare Linley 
Deputy Chief 
Nurse/Divisional Nurse 
Manager 

Full member x

NHS Leeds Carol Cochrane 
Director of Strategic 
Development & 
Commissioning for 
Priority Groups 

Full member üüüü

NHS Leeds Paul Morrin 
Director of Operations, 
Care Services 

Full member x

Leeds Partnership 
Foundation Trust 

Michele Moran 
Director of Service 
Delivery and Chief 
Nurse 

Full member x

West Yorkshire Police Gerry Broadbent 
Divisional Commander 

Full member üüüü

West Yorkshire 
Probation Service 

Andrew Chandler 
Assistant Chief Officer 

Full member üüüü

Leeds City Council 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 

Bridget Emery 
Head of Housing 
Strategy and Solutions  

Full member üüüü

Leeds City Council Jim Willson 
Chief Officer, 
Substance Misuse 

Full member üüüü

Leeds Voice Adrian Curtis Interim 
Director 

Associate member x

Leeds City Council 
Children’s Services 

Bryan Gocke 
LSCB Manager 

Associate member üüüü

Leeds ALMOs Claire Warren  
Chief Executive,  

Associate member üüüü

Commission for Social 
Care Inspection 

Maggie Coxon Co-opted member x

Leeds Advocacy Tim Whaley  
Adult Operations 
Manager 

Co-opted member üüüü

Leeds Service User 
and Carer Alliance 

Joy Fisher, Alliance 
Chair 

Co-opted member üüüü

Page 278Page 54



Final Draft 01/07/09 

11

Organisation  Invitee Membership status February 2009 
Leeds City Council 
Legal Services 

Gerry Gillen 
Corporate Lawyer,  

Ex-officio member üüüü

Leeds Safeguarding 
Adults Partnership Unit 

Emma Mortimer 
Safeguarding Adults 
Co-ordinator 

Ex-officio member üüüü

Leeds Safeguarding 
Adults Partnership Unit 

Christine Clark  
Safeguarding Adults 
Co-ordinator 

Ex-officio member üüüü

Leeds City Council 
Adult Social Care 

Danielle Guest 
Directorate Support 
Officer 

Ex-officio member üüüü

1.3 Board Member Development Programme 2009/10 

The Safeguarding Adults Board was reconstituted in February 2009 and the newly refreshed Board agreed to the 
establishment of a development programme for its members. This has been arranged to take place in June 2009,  
facilitated by Michael Hake, who has assisted the partnership in its development throughout the course of the last 
year. The focus of the development programme will be an opportunity for  members of the Board to spend dedicated  
time developing a shared understanding of their leadership roles in relation to the Safeguarding Principles set out in 
the MOU.  The theme of the programme is ‘From Development to Delivery’ signifying the progress that has been made 
under the new arrangements and the commitment to deliver improved safeguarding outcomes. 

NHS Leeds believes this development time enables them, as a full member of the Board, to consider how their 
organisation will establish clear links with the Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Support Team and participate in 
the Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board.  It also enables them time with partners to develop their thinking on 
what their internal structures and staff guidance should look like to ensure NHS Leeds actively promotes the aims of 
the Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership and that their staff are clear how to operate within the multi-agency policy 
and procedures. 

The June event will be followed in October 2009 with Leeds Safeguarding Adults conference, co-sponsored by the 
Board. This will present an opportunity for best practice in the City to be showcased and for Board members to engage 
with a much wider group of stakeholders. 

1.4 Board Work Programme 2009/10 

The key work strands for the Board over the coming year are: 

• Oversight of the development of systems so that performance data can underpin the decisions made by the Board 

• Work with others to build safer communities that safeguard vulnerable people (adults & children) 

• Learning from practice, including serious case reviews and embedding this learning in the workforce development 
strategy 

• Better involvement with users, carers and third sector organisations in the planning and monitoring of 
safeguarding work across the City 

• Work with commissioners to ensure safeguarding is embedded within all regulated services 

• Ensuring a purposeful communications strategy is developed to better inform the people of Leeds in relation to 
safeguarding and associated matters – most particularly Mental Capacity. 

The Board’s agreed work programme for the year is detailed below. It has been agreed that each of the future 
meetings be used to discuss a specific part of the work of the Board. 

15 April − Draft Annual Report of the work of the Board 2008/09

Page 279Page 55



Final Draft 01/07/09 

12

− Business Plan for 2009/10 

− Work Programme for the year to come 

− Terms of Reference for the away time in June 

− Final draft of revised a) policy b) procedures 

17 June − Serious Case Reviews Sub-Group report 

− Annual Report & Business Plan final sign off. 

19 August − Training & Development Sub-Group report 

− Planning for Annual Conference 

− Q 1 Performance Report 

21 October − Performance, Audit & Quality Assurance Sub-Group report 

− Half Year Performance report 

− Arrangements for the recruitment of an Independent Chair 

16 December _     MOU Refresh 
_     Policy, Procedures & Protocol Sub-Group final report 

17 February  − Q 3 Performance Report 

− End of year review  

1.5 Board Sub-Groups 

The Partnership has developed two sub-groups of the Board in the financial year 2008-2009. These are the Policy, 
Procedures and Protocols sub-group and the Performance, Audit and Quality Assurance sub-group. The Training and 
Workforce Development sub-group has been successfully operating for the past four years.  

1.6 Sub-Groups Work Programme 2009/10 

The three existing sub-groups of the Board’s work programmes are detailed below:  

(i) Policy, Procedures, and Protocol sub-group 

• Disseminate revised multi-agency safeguarding policy and procedures 

• Embed Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards and Independent Safeguarding Authority changes within the multi-agency 
procedures 

• Develop inter-agency working protocols 

• Conduct an audit of agencies’ use and understanding of revised procedures and thresholds 

• Assure local safeguarding procedures 

• Develop Serious Case Review Procedure following learning from current reviews. 

• Audit key multi-agency policies and procedures to ensure they meet best practice safeguarding adults requirements.  

(ii) Performance, Audit and Quality Assurance 

• Develop quality assurance processes in all key agencies that link up to provide information to the Board on the effectiveness 
of safeguarding activity 

• Establish practice standards and competencies in respect of all key areas of safeguarding work  

• Establish baselines from which to measure practice improvement 

• Establish monthly detailed quality reporting 

• Develop and agree recording standards 

• Agree measures to be taken by the partnership when data reveals a lack of reporting within a particular area or for a specific 
group of people. e.g. Hate crime, BME groups, Harassment. 

(iii) Training and Workforce Development 

Page 280Page 56



Final Draft 01/07/09 

13

• Ensure that the Multi-agency training strategy and courses are incorporated into the training strategies and plans of each 
agency 

• Identify staff who require specific competencies and training requirements.  

• Establish training frequency for all roles 

• Gain agreement from all agencies on training targets  

• Redevelop the “Training the Trainer” course into a two-day course 

• Ensure that staff from agencies are competent to deliver Awareness level training within their own agencies 

• Develop competency requirements for levels of staff against national/occupational standards 

• Develop evaluation of delivery and post-training impact 

The three remaining sub-groups: Professional Practice Development (incorporating Serious Cases Review) sub-
group, User and Carer Reference Group and Third Sector sub-group will be established and their work plans 
developed during the first six months of the financial year.  

2. Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Support Infrastructure

2.1 Safeguarding Adults Partnership Support Unit – Structure 

The Safeguarding Adults Partnership is supported by the Safeguarding Adults Partnership Support Unit hosted within 

Leeds City Council Adult Social Care Directorate.   At the beginning of 2008/09 this unit comprised four posts: the full-time 
and part-time Safeguarding Adults Coordinators, the Training and Development Officer and a part time Administrator.  

As part of the action planning in response to the Independence, Wellbeing and Choice inspection at Leeds, in late 
2008, it was proposed that the staffing available to support the work of the Safeguarding Adults Partnership would be 
greatly enhanced.  Investment was committed to enable the recruitment to a new post of Head of Safeguarding to 
provide strategic leadership on behalf of the partnership, plus three Independent Safeguarding and Risk Managers 
and associated administrative support. These posts will provide assurance to the Partnership with regard to practice 
across agencies in the City and will act as independent chairs of adult safeguarding case conferences.  

This augmentation on behalf of the Partnership has been matched within adult social care by the creation of 10 senior 
practitioner posts to support front line practice and a specialist quality assurance post designed to monitor the 
effectiveness of safeguarding interventions within Adult Social Care and across the wider partnership.  See Figure 1
on the following page for a structure chart of the Safeguarding Adults Partnership Support Team, showing both the 
central unit and the other additional posts. 

2.2 Financial arrangements  

The Safeguarding Adults Board oversaw £167,000 invested in safeguarding adults work at the beginning of 2008-09. 
Of this approximately £112K was budgeted, the remainder identified as a necessary pressure within the Adult Social 
Care budget to enable the development of improved safeguarding arrangements.  

During the year, Leeds City Council approved the augmentation of this investment by a further £260,000 to support the 
enhanced staffing described above. 

This investment has been provided on behalf of the partnership. The statutory partners having indicated their 
agreement to the proposed course of action. Recruitment to the posts commenced in January 2009 and was 
completed in March 2009.  The first new members of staff are expected to take up their new roles in June/July 2009. 

It is anticipated that the longer term financial arrangements for the partnership and Board infrastructure will be 
developed through 2009/10 in order for appropriate budgetary provision to be identified by the statutory partners for 
the 2010/11 financial year. However, within the 2008/09 budget setting round, some partners have already begun the 

Page 281Page 57



Final Draft 01/07/09 

14

process of contributing dedicated support resources or direct funding to support the new infrastructure. This is likely to 
form the basis of future funding arrangements. 

Page 282Page 58



Final Draft 01/07/09 

15

Figure 1:  Structure of Safeguarding Adults Partnership Support Team 

Page 283Page 59



Final Draft 01/07/09 

16

3.  Safeguarding Activity 2008/09 

3.1  Overview 

The Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership has seen a significant increase both in the number of referrals received 
and in the number of referrals that go on to an investigation. This is due to increased awareness of safeguarding 
matters among frontline staff across adult support organisations In Leeds. A noticeable increase in referrals in relation 
to people accommodated in long-term care settings largely due to better awareness of staff working in such settings 
and a heightened understanding of the interface between poor care quality and safeguarding.  

The Leeds Safeguarding Partnership has been able to utlilise a significantly improved recording system within Adult 
Social Care during 2008/09. This system records all safeguarding referrals that are received from across the City via 
Contact Leeds. This system, which operates via a database, ESCR, has been developed and introduced throughout 
the year. This means that greatly improved data is available to inform this report and that in the coming year, the data 
will be of even greater relevance and use across the partnership.  

This enhanced depth of analysis is allowing us to spot patterns and trends and both to report these and to design and 
implement interventions as necessary. It is apparent that the work that has been undertaken to raise awareness of 
safeguarding issues has had a major effect in increasing the number of referrals being received by the Partnership.  

Key themes for the year 2008/09 are as follows; 

• A continuing increase in safeguarding alerts which went from 645 in 2007/08 to 1255 in 2008/09. This 
represents over the year an increase of just fewer than 100%.  

• Safeguarding referrals are increasingly likely to result in a safeguarding enquiry, this is in contrast to previous 
years when referrals were more likely to be dealt with ‘in and amongst’ other casework issues.  This is 
perceived as a very positive development. 

• The most common type of reported abuse was physical abuse. This was followed by financial abuse, this 
continues a long term trend.  

• The greatest rate of increase in safeguarding alerts was in the 75 plus age group, this is an area for further 
exploration. 

• Many more referrals originated from long-term care settings, from staff and managers as well as regulators, 
again this is perceived as a very positive indicator, firstly, of awareness of staff working in such settings, 
secondly of the fact that people resident in such settings are likely to be the most vulnerable. . 

• There was an increase in referrals for people with a learning disability, this is an area for further exploration. 

• A higher proportion of referrals translated into investigations for people with a learning disability than for other 
citizen groups. 

Our analysis is that the efforts of the Safeguarding Adults Board to raise awareness among the wider health and social 
care workforce in the City have prompted the rise in alerts and referrals. The specific training and workforce 
development initiatives undertaken in 2008/09 have also ensured that those referrals are dealt with appropriately in a 
greater number of cases. 

Page 284Page 60



Final Draft 01/07/09 

17

The wider range of people making referrals, particularly carers, staff and managers in long-term care settings is 
strongly suggestive of success in ensuring that the most vulnerable are protected and that staff working in those 
settings are both vigilant and well informed. 

3.2 Referral Numbers 

As can be seen in Figure 2 there is a year on year increase in numbers of referrals of close to 100% from 2007/08 to 
2008/09. 

Figure 2: Number of Referrals by Year (2005/06 – 2008/09) 

3.3 Referrals by Outcome 

It is important to consider what happens following receipt of a safeguarding referral.  Figure 3 shows that the 
proportion of referrals resulting in an investigation increased in each quarter of the year 2008/09.

Figure 3: Referral outcomes by quarter (2008/09) 

Referral trend for financial years (1st April to 31st March) 2005 to 2008

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Number of referrals 476 520 665 1275

2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Comparator of Outcomes by quarter April 2008 to March 2009.

Adult safeguarding investigation

Immediate Investigation other

Community care Assessment

Unscheduled review

Signposting Information and Advice

Log details only

Adult safeguarding investigation 28% 37% 50% 52%

Immediate Investigation other 7% 6% 8% 5%

Community care Assessment 10% 11% 7% 3%

Unscheduled review 15% 9% 7% 7%

Signposting Information and Advice 21% 12% 13% 12%

Log details only 20% 24% 15% 20%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2008/09

Page 285Page 61



Final Draft 01/07/09 

18

It should be noted that the highest translation of referral to investigation was in learning disability services where over 
80% of referrals result in an investigation. This figure reflects findings in a number of research studies that show that 
people with learning disabilities experience higher levels of abuse than those from other user groups.  
3.4 Referrals by User Group 

Figure 4 shows the number of referrals received for each user group and also compares these figures with those in the 
previous year.  

It is clear from Figure 4 that all user groups have seen increases in referrals, but the biggest increase has been for 
individuals with learning disabilities. 

3.5 Referrals by Age  

Figure 5 shows the number of referrals received for people according to their age. There is a significant increase in the  
number of people being referred over the age of 75. This is related to the increase in referrals received from regulated  
care settings for older people and a greater recognition of the prevalence of institutionalised abuse.  

Figure 4: Referral Numbers by User Group, by Year (2007/08 and 2008/09)  

Financial years (1st April to 31st March) 2007 and 2008 Service user against number of referrals 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

2007/2008 141 73 96 70 104 102 2 4 67 5 1

2008/2009 314 116 234 143 211 125 14 4 105 5 1 2 1

Learning 

Disability

Physical 

Impairment
Unspecified

Physical/Ter

minal Illness

Elderly 

Mental Illness
Other/None

Substance 

Misuse

Visual 

Impairment
Mental Illness

Sensory 

Impairment

Hearing 

Impairment

Dual Sensory 

Loss

Parent 

Illness/Disabil

ity

Referrals by age group for financial years as shown

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

2006/2007 Total 32 31 55 37 51 74 141 91 8

2007/2008 Total 55 46 86 71 61 82 146 113 5

2008/2009 Total 73 102 163 138 117 131 296 245 10

18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75- 84 85+ Is Null

Age group at referral

Demonstartes a lareg increase in age group 75+ where in both the 

75+ the increase from 2007 to 2008.

  

The 75-84 age group increase by 103%.

The 84%+ age group is 120%.

Page 286Page 62



Final Draft 01/07/09 

19

3.6 Referral Numbers by Referral Source 

Figure 6 shows how referrals numbers have increased from most referrals sources. In particular there is a significant 
increase in referrals from ‘other care services’. This relates to referrals from long-term care settings. The Partnership 
has received substantially more referrals from front line staff within organisations that care for vulnerable adults in 
long-term care settings. This is particularly the case for those in services directed at older people with dementia and 
associated conditions and those for adults with learning disabilities.  

The Partnership has worked hard to ensure that those adults who reside in regulated long-term care settings are 
safeguarded against abuse. This is a group of adults that the Partnership views as being particularly vulnerable and 
we have therefore targeted information, training and guidance at those organisations in Leeds. This has been coupled 
with the efforts of the former Commission for Social Care Inspection to raise care standards in residential and nursing  
homes and to take action when services fail to address safeguarding concerns.  

The Partnership plans to progress its work to develop a safeguarding culture in long-term care settings throughout the 
coming year, working together, particularly in health and social care to develop systems that enable sharing of 
intelligence about services that cause safeguarding concern, while also working with service providers to help them 
raise standards and build on the development of a strong safeguarding culture at the frontline.  

Figure 5: Referrals by Age Group 

Figure 6: Referrals by Referral Source, Financial years 2007/08 and 2008/09

Comparison for financial years 2007/2008 and 2008/2009; referral rates against referral agents

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2007/2008 5 5 69 40 33 82 42 11 23 249 26 12 13 55

2008/2009 11 14 114 53 95 189 221 6 49 233 48 33 33 176

Commercial 

services

Education/ 

Training/ The 

Workplace

Family 

member

Friend or 

Neighbour
Housing

NHS/ Health 

Staff

Other Care 

Service

Other LCC 

department

Other 

government 

department/ 

Others Police Regulator Self Referral
Social Care 

Staff

Page 287Page 63



Final Draft 01/07/09 

20

3.7 Percentage Change in Referral Numbers by Referral Source 

Figure 7 shows very clearly that referrals from most referral sources have increased by more than 100% from 2007/08 
to 2008/09. 

3.8 Perceptions of Safety 

Leeds Adult Social Services undertakes regular surveys with people who use services to monitor their experience and 
perception of services.  Respondents in 2008/09 were also asked if they felt safe at home.  Surveys for the whole of 
2008/09 show that 95% feel safe in their home during the day and 92.5% feel safe at night. This surpasses the overall 
target of 90% agreed for the year. People who were the subject of adult safeguarding investigations have also been 
surveyed about feeling safe, but to date the numbers of respondents are still too small to draw any conclusions. 

Earlier surveys for the first six months of the year indicate that 94% felt safe in their homes during the day and 91% felt 
safe at night.  This suggests that surveys in the second half of the year indicate slightly more people felt safe than 
surveys indicated in the first half of the year.   
 

4. Training,  Workforce & Organisational Development 

The Partnership has historically delivered a high standard of training across the City and this was recognised by the 
Commission for Social Care Inspection as a strength in its 2008 Independence, Well-being and Choice inspection.   

The inspectors challenged, however, the extent of investment in the partnership workforce development programme 
and also questioned whether or not staff at different levels, particularly within Adult Social Care, as the lead 
Safeguarding Adults agency, should be working to a clear competency framework. This has been developed and is 
attached at Appendix B to this Annual Report. 

The Partnership has commissioned four key training courses for staff within Adult Social Care. These courses have 
been commissioned from a highly respected national training provider with expertise in the field of safeguarding adults.  

Figure 7: Percentage change in Referral Numbers by Referral Source from 2007/08 to 2008/09 

% change in numbers of referrals against referral agents for financial years 2007/2008 to 2008/2009

-100%

0%

100%

200%

300%

400%

500%

% change from 2007/08 to 2008/09 120% 180% 65% 33% 188% 130% 426% -45% 113% -6% 85% 175% 154% 220%

Commercial 

services

Education/ 

Training/ The 
Workplace

Family member
Friend or 

Neighbour
Housing

NHS/ Health 

Staff

Other Care 

Service

Other LCC 

department

Other 

government 
department/ 

Others Police Regulator Self Referral Social Care Staff

Page 288Page 64



Final Draft 01/07/09 

21

The courses have been designed at four distinct training levels aimed at achieving defined competencies required for 
the following safeguarding roles: 

1. Alerter 
2. Line Manager 
3. Investigators 
4. Safeguarding Coordinators 

The course aimed at those with an ‘alerter’ role, is entitled, ‘Safeguarding, it’s everybody’s job’. This course has been 
very well-received and 528 staff have attended in the period. The course aimed at frontline managers, ‘How to deal 
with safeguarding concerns and refer appropriately’ is a one-day course and has been attended by 138 people in the 
period. The ‘Investigative Interviewing’ course aimed at investigating social work staff has provided 74 staff with the 
training they need to enable them to conduct effective investigations and the two day ‘Chairing case conferences’ 
course for safeguarding coordinators has provided specialist training for 22 officers.   

The year has seen a number of changes to the partnership training programme, with the provision of more multi-
agency courses providing a mixture of both knowledge and skill based training. 

In addition to the Adult Social Care referred to above, 1025 staff have been trained across the Partnership in the year, 
and this includes staff in health agencies, in Supporting People and in the voluntary sector. 

During the last year Leeds Partnership Foundation Trust have trained approximately 200 staff at an awareness level, 
this training is now mandatory for all staff and also features on induction. We plan to deliver this training to all our 2800 
staff over 2 years using a combination of e-learning and delivered sessions, using the cascade method supported by 
the link workers. 

Leeds Community Healthcare is fully committed to support staff with safeguarding issues via education, training and 
supervision. Basic awareness training has been classified as mandatory for all frontline staff and has been developed 
and delivered in accordance with the current policy.  

The Supporting People Partnership has facilitated free training for all providers within the programme, which has 
resulted in front line staff receiving detailed training from staff within Adult Social Care's Safeguarding Team.  The 
introduction of revised Supporting People QAF objectives in April 2009, which now incorporate safeguarding and 
protection of children, means that providers will also be required to attend further training to meet the refreshed 
standards.   

5 National Safeguarding Developments 

The Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership has been rising to the challenge of providing a significantly improved 
safeguarding service and culture for the people of Leeds at the same time as many other Safeguarding Boards and 
partnerships across the country. This is taking place within a context of national change in the safeguarding adults 
policy and legislation.  

Publications such as ‘Six Lives’ by the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman (2009), highlighting the poor 
standard of care received by six people with learning disabilities, has emphasised the need for safeguarding 
partnerships to assure themselves that all their services not only safeguard against abuse but are also open, 
accessible and provide care equitably.  

Page 289Page 65



Final Draft 01/07/09 

22

The Commission for Social Care Inspection published ‘Safeguarding Adults - A study of the effectiveness of 
arrangements to safeguard adults from abuse’ in November 2008, reflecting on evidence from the range of its 
regulatory and inspection functions across councils, care homes, home care agencies and other social care services,.  
The study considered the responsiveness of safeguarding arrangements and the effectiveness of strategies to help 
prevent abuse and enable people to stay safe and be free to live their lives as they wish.  It provides a useful analysis 
of the current challenges facing safeguarding services, including the need to move towards better recognition of 
individuals’ human rights and their rights as citizens.  

The Commission concluded that the standard of safeguarding effectiveness varies across the country but that there  
are key factors in delivering excellent safeguarding services, including: 

a) people being informed of the right to be free from abuse; and supported to exercise these rights, including having 
access to advocacy 

b)  a well informed, competent and properly vetted workforce operating in a culture of zero tolerance of abuse 
c)  good universal services targeted at older and disabled people that can reduce the risk of people experiencing 

abuse, for example community safety services or services that increase people’s access to advice or maintain 
informal support networks 

d)  thorough needs assessments supported by risk assessments where required to inform people’s choices a sound 
framework for confidentiality and information sharing across agencies 

e)  a range of options for support to keep safe from abuse that can be tailored to people’s individual needs – both for 
people using care services and for those directing their own support 

f)  service provision which gives prominence to the need for sound safeguarding arrangements as well as the 
promotion of people’s independence a public which is aware of – and alert to – these issues.’ 

The Health and Social Care Act (2008) set out plans for the development of the Independent Safeguarding Authority, 
which will safeguard people against abuse by introducing a vetting and barring scheme for all those working with 
children or vulnerable adults including volunteers, and this scheme will begin to operate in Autumn 2009.  

The Government has recognised that safeguarding adults work has changed considerably since the publication of ‘No 
Secrets’ in 2000, and in 2008 announced a review of this statutory guidance. The then Minister for Social Care, Ivan 
Lewis MP stated that the review would result in ‘real change’ for those working to safeguard vulnerable adults. Some 
people have interpreted this commitment as being a suggestion that the review would propose legislation to enforce 
safeguarding, as has happened in Scotland, and this was a key discussion element in the review consultation that 
concluded in February 2009. There is no doubt that the review of ‘No Secrets’ will change the way in which 
partnerships act to safeguard adults. The Government is due to publish its revised guidance in Autumn 2009 and the 
agenda set out within will form a significant part of the Partnership’s business for 2010 – 2011. 

Page 290Page 66



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

23

6.
 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

g
ai

n
st

 t
h

e 
20

08
/0

9 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 

A
ct

io
n

 A
re

as
 

S
ta

rt
 D

at
e 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 A
g

en
cy

/ie
s 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

s 

S
ta

tu
s/

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
M

ile
st

o
n

es
 

T
ar

g
et

 C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 D
at

e 

(A
ct

u
al

) 

1.
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 A
rr

an
g

em
en

ts
 

a.
 

30
/0

4/
08

 
Le

ed
s 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

du
lt 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
(L

D
A

S
) 

an
d 

Le
ed

s 
P

C
T

 C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e(
LP

C
T

C
E

) 
 

P
lu

s 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 

T
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

tim
e-

lim
ite

d 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

gr
ou

p 
to

 e
nd

or
se

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
’s

 r
ev

is
ed

 te
rm

s 
of

 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

an
d 

to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 it

s 
w

or
k 

pl
an

.  

28
/0

4/
08

 

(C
o

m
p

le
te

d
) 

b.
 

30
/0

4/
08

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

s 

P
lu

s 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p.
 

R
ev

is
ed

 C
on

st
itu

tio
n,

 n
om

in
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
m

ee
tin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
 fo

r 
ne

w
 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 s

ub
-g

ro
up

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

us
er

 g
ro

up
s.

  

17
/0

9/
08

 

(1
7/

02
/0

9)
 

3 
18

/0
6/

08
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
B

oa
rd

 C
ha

ir 
 

M
ee

tin
g 

of
 B

oa
rd

 to
 b

e 
he

ld
 w

ith
 n

ew
 c

ha
ir 

an
d 

cu
rr

en
t m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
to

 b
e 

re
fr

es
he

d.
  

M
in

ut
es

 o
f m

ee
tin

g 
of

 1
8/

06
/0

8 
to

 
re

fle
ct

 th
is

.  
31

/0
7/

08
 

(1
7/

02
/0

9)
 

4 
18

/0
6/

08
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
s 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
B

oa
rd

 s
ub

-g
ro

up
s 

to
 c

ov
er

: 

P
ol

ic
y 

&
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
(t

im
e 

lim
ite

d)
 

E
st

ab
lis

hm
en

t o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

th
re

sh
ol

ds
 

(t
im

e 
lim

ite
d)

 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

(o
ng

oi
ng

) 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t /

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 (

on
go

in
g)

 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
B

oa
rd

 1
7/

02
/0

9 
18

/0
9/

08
 

17
/0

2/
09

 

5 
01

/0
9/

08
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
s 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
us

er
 a

nd
 c

ar
er

 g
ro

up
s 

ac
ro

ss
 L

ee
ds

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 u

se
r 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
on

 B
oa

rd
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 fr

om
 m

in
or

ity
 g

ro
up

s.
  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
B

oa
rd

 fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

17
/1

2/
08

 

O
ng

oi
ng

 a
t 3

1/
04

/0
9 

17
/1

2/
08

 

2.
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t/

 
Q

u
al

it
y 

A
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 

Page 291Page 67



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

24

A
ct

io
n

 A
re

as
 

S
ta

rt
 D

at
e 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 A
g

en
cy

/ie
s 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

s 

S
ta

tu
s/

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
M

ile
st

o
n

es
 

T
ar

g
et

 C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 D
at

e 

(A
ct

u
al

) 

a.
 

01
/0

9/
08

 
E

ac
h 

ag
en

cy
.  

W
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

, d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t /

 q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
sy

st
em

s 
w

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
ag

en
cy

.  

O
ng

oi
ng

 a
t 3

1/
03

/0
9 

31
/0

3/
09

 

1 
01

/0
9/

08
 

C
C

/E
M

 (
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

s)
 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t /
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 s

ub
-g

ro
up

.  
S

en
io

r 
Q

A
 O

ffi
ce

r 
ap

po
in

te
d 

(A
S

C
) 

B
eg

in
s 

to
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
gr

ou
p 

(0
6/

03
/0

9)
 

01
/0

9/
08

 

(2
9/

04
/0

9)
 

2 
01

/0
9/

08
 

E
M

 /C
C

 v
ia

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t /
 Q

A
 S

ub
-g

ro
up

  
B

as
el

in
e 

m
ap

pi
ng

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
– 

w
ha

t s
ys

te
m

s 
ex

is
t w

he
re

 a
nd

 w
ha

t d
o 

th
ey

 m
ea

su
re

, a
nd

 
ho

w
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

ar
e 

th
ey

? 

M
ap

pi
ng

 T
oo

l p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 p
ar

tn
er

 
ag

en
ci

es
 1

5/
04

/0
9 

31
/1

0/
09

 

(O
ng

oi
ng

) 

b.
 

01
/0

9/
08

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, v

ia
 B

oa
rd

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t /

 Q
A

 
S

ub
-g

ro
up

 

A
gr

ee
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p-

w
id

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

st
an

da
rd

s 
an

d 
a 

jo
in

t s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
qu

al
ity

 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

sy
st

em
 th

at
 in

vo
lv

es
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
di

ffe
re

nt
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
oo

ls
 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
an

d 
en

su
re

s 
a 

le
ve

l o
f 

sc
ru

tin
y 

by
 u

se
rs

 a
nd

 c
ar

er
s.

  

31
/1

0/
09

 

(O
ng

oi
ng

) 

c.
 

31
/1

2/
08

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, v

ia
 B

oa
rd

 
B

oa
rd

 M
em

be
rs

 e
ns

ur
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

 fo
r 

al
l m

an
ag

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p.
  

O
ng

oi
ng

 a
t 3

1/
03

/0
9 

31
/0

3/
09

 

(O
ng

oi
ng

) 

d.
 

01
/0

9/
08

 
E

M
 / 

C
C

 &
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ub
-g

ro
up

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

s 
an

d 
Q

A
 s

ys
te

m
 

la
un

ch
ed

 
31

/0
3/

09
 

(O
ng

oi
ng

) 

1 
01

/0
9/

08
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  

E
M

 /C
C

 &
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ub
-g

ro
up

 

F
irs

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
ep

or
t  

R
ep

or
t t

o 
Ju

ne
 0

9 
B

oa
rd

 fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
tio

n 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f 

an
y 

is
su

es
 fr

om
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

al
ys

is
.  

31
/0

6/
09

 

C
om

pl
et

e 
at

  1
7/

06
/0

9 

3.
 

S
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 t
h

re
sh

o
ld

s 
/ 

fr
am

ew
o

rk
s 

/ p
o

lic
y/

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 

a.
 

01
/0

6/
08

 
B

oa
rd

 (
 P

ol
ic

y 
&

 P
ro

ce
du

re
s 

su
b-

gr
ou

p)
 

R
ef

re
sh

ed
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 d

ra
fte

d,
 e

nc
om

pa
ss

in
g 

th
e 

fiv
e 

le
ve

l s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
re

sp
on

se
 fr

am
ew

or
k,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

tim
es

ca
le

s 
fo

r 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
. 

F
irs

t D
ra

ft 
31

/1
2/

08
 

2nd
 d

ra
ft 

01
/0

3/
09

 

F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

6/
09

 

31
/0

7/
08

 

(2
0/

07
/0

9)
 

Page 292Page 68



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

25

A
ct

io
n

 A
re

as
 

S
ta

rt
 D

at
e 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 A
g

en
cy

/ie
s 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

s 

S
ta

tu
s/

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
M

ile
st

o
n

es
 

T
ar

g
et

 C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 D
at

e 

(A
ct

u
al

) 

b.
 

08
/0

9/
08

 
T

hr
es

ho
ld

s 
fo

r 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

.  
18

/0
9/

08
 

31
/1

0/
08

 

c.
 

31
/0

8/
08

 
C

C
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

y 
&

 P
ro

ce
du

re
s 

su
b-

gr
ou

p 
R

ev
is

ed
 p

ol
ic

y 
&

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
id

el
y 

di
ss

em
in

at
ed

. C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

pl
an

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
br

ie
fin

gs
, s

um
m

ar
y 

ve
rs

io
ns

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
A

pr
il 

20
09

  B
oa

rd
 

31
/1

0/
08

 

(1
5/

04
/0

9)
 

4.
 

S
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 U
n

it
 In

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 

re
vi

ew
 

a.
 

01
/0

6/
08

 
D

A
S

S
/ B

oa
rd

 C
ha

ir 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

m
os

t a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
fu

tu
re

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 U
ni

t c
on

du
ct

ed
 w

ith
in

 
LA

S
C

 w
ith

 a
ll 

ke
y 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

  

31
/1

0/
08

 

(C
om

pl
et

ed
) 

b.
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 &
 a

gr
ee

d,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
cl

ar
ity

 o
f r

ol
es

. 
31

/0
1/

09
 

(0
1/

11
/0

8)
 

1 
01

/1
1/

08
 

D
A

S
S

/ B
oa

rd
 C

ha
ir 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f p

ro
po

sa
ls

 in
 th

e 
lig

ht
 o

f 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
&

 A
S

C
 C

S
C

I i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
cl

ar
ity

 o
f r

ol
e 

an
d 

di
vi

si
on

 o
f 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
U

ni
t a

nd
 th

e 
ca

re
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
un

ct
io

n.
 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f p
ro

po
sa

ls
 to

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

/ 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

15
/0

1/
09

 

(0
1/

11
/0

8)
 

3 
16

/0
1/

09
 

D
A

S
S

/ B
oa

rd
 C

ha
ir 

R
es

ou
rc

in
g 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 A

S
C

 D
M

T
  

R
ep

or
t b

y 
01

/1
1/

08
 

16
/0

1/
09

 

(0
1/

11
/0

8)
 

4 
16

/0
1/

09
 

D
A

S
S

/ B
oa

rd
 C

ha
ir 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t P

ro
ce

ss
 c

om
m

en
ce

s 
(S

ub
je

ct
 

to
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 p

er
m

is
si

on
s)

 
D

el
eg

at
ed

 D
ec

is
io

n 
re

po
rt

 b
y 

16
/1

1/
08

 
16

/0
1/

09
 

(1
6/

11
/0

8)
 

5 
31

/0
3/

09
 

B
oa

rd
 C

ha
ir/

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

 C
on

cl
ud

es
 

A
ll 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
31

/0
3/

09
 

(2
/0

3/
09

) 

5.
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 &
   

   
   

   
 R

ec
o

rd
in

g
 

a.
 

31
/0

4/
08

 
A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

(H
os

t)
 

P
ilo

t p
ro

je
ct

 u
si

ng
 a

n 
up

da
te

d 
ve

rs
io

n 
of

 
E

S
C

R
 w

ith
 im

pr
ov

ed
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

re
po

rt
in

g 
ab

ili
ty

 u
nd

er
w

ay
.  

C
om

pl
et

e 
01

/0
1/

09
 

01
/0

1/
09

 

(C
om

pl
et

e 
@

 (
01

/0
1/

09
) 

Page 293Page 69



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

26

A
ct

io
n

 A
re

as
 

S
ta

rt
 D

at
e 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 A
g

en
cy

/ie
s 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

s 

S
ta

tu
s/

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
M

ile
st

o
n

es
 

T
ar

g
et

 C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 D
at

e 

(A
ct

u
al

) 

b.
 

01
/0

8/
08

 
A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

(H
os

t)
 

A
gr

ee
d 

re
co

rd
in

g 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

re
po

rt
in

g 
 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
fo

r 
sh

ar
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 A

gr
ee

d 
fo

rm
at

 fo
r 

re
co

rd
in

g 
bo

th
 q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
an

d 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
  

O
ng

oi
ng

 
01

/0
9/

08
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 a
t 3

1/
03

/0
9 

6.
 S

tr
at

eg
y a.

 
31

/0
5/

08
 

E
ns

ur
e 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
fr

am
ew

or
ks

 a
nd

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
st

ro
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 

al
ig

nm
en

t b
et

w
ee

n,
 S

af
er

 L
ee

ds
, L

S
C

B
,  

D
ig

ni
ty

 in
 C

ar
e,

 M
en

ta
l C

ap
ac

ity
 A

ct
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 A

ct
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 (
20

09
) 

C
om

pl
et

e 
@

 3
1/

10
/0

8 
30

/1
0/

08
 

(C
om

pl
et

e)
 

2 
30

/0
6/

08
 

B
oa

rd
 C

ha
ir,

 E
M

 &
 IM

C
A

 
m

an
ag

er
 

E
ns

ur
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

ith
 th

e 
IM

C
A

 s
er

vi
ce

.  
P

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f g

ui
da

nc
e 

to
 a

ll 
ke

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 b

y 
30

/0
9/

08
 

T
ra

in
in

g 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r 
S

A
E

C
s 

an
d 

IM
C

A
s 

fo
cu

ss
in

g 
on

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 is

su
es

. T
w

o 
se

ss
io

ns
 b

y 
30

/0
1/

09
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
@

 3
1/

03
/0

9 

30
/0

1/
09

 

(3
1/

03
/0

9)
 

   
 7

.  
M

u
lt

i-
ag

en
cy

 T
ra

in
in

g
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

 

A
 

31
/0

3/
08

 
In

te
gr

at
e 

T
ra

in
in

g 
co

ur
se

s 
w

ith
 in

di
vi

du
al

 
ag

en
ci

es
’ s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
 O

ng
oi

ng
 @

 3
1/

03
/0

9 
30

/0
9/

08
 

B
 

31
/0

3/
08

 
D

ev
el

op
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 c

ap
ac

ity
 in

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
31

/0
3/

09
 

1 
31

/0
3/

07
 

LA
S

C
 P

ar
tn

er
 A

ge
nc

ie
s 

vi
a 

T
ra

in
in

g 
S

ub
gr

ou
p 

T
he

 “
T

ra
in

in
g 

th
e 

T
ra

in
er

” 
co

ur
se

 is
 to

 b
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
to

 a
 tw

o-
da

y 
co

ur
se

 (
in

 
pr

og
re

ss
) 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 s

ta
ff 

fr
om

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pe

te
nt

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 A

w
ar

en
es

s 
le

ve
l 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 w
ith

in
 th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ag
en

ci
es

. 

T
he

re
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 fo
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 s

ta
ff 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
th

e 
LA

S
C

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
 T

he
 c

on
tr

ac
t a

nd
 

cr
ite

ria
 fo

r 
th

es
e 

tr
ai

ne
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

31
/0

3/
09

 

(C
om

pl
et

e 
@

 3
1/

03
/0

9)
 

Page 294Page 70



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

27

A
ct

io
n

 A
re

as
 

S
ta

rt
 D

at
e 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 A
g

en
cy

/ie
s 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 o
ff

ic
er

s 

S
ta

tu
s/

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
M

ile
st

o
n

es
 

T
ar

g
et

 C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 D
at

e 

(A
ct

u
al

) 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 

D
 

31
/0

3/
09

 
A

ll 
ag

en
ci

es
 v

ia
 S

ub
G

ro
up

 
D

ev
el

op
 c

om
pe

te
nc

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
le

ve
ls

 
of

 s
ta

ff 
ag

ai
ns

t n
at

io
na

l /
 o

cc
up

at
io

na
l 

st
an

da
rd

s 

O
ng

oi
ng

 @
31

/0
3/

09
 

31
/0

3/
10

 

E
 

01
/1

0/
08

 
D

ev
el

op
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
fo

r 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
po

st
-

tr
ai

ni
ng

 im
pa

ct
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 @
 3

1/
03

/0
9 

31
/0

3/
09

 

(o
ng

oi
ng

) 

F
 

31
/0

3/
09

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t E

-le
ar

ni
ng

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 

O
ng

oi
ng

 @
 3

1/
03

/0
9 

31
/0

3/
10

 

(O
ng

oi
ng

) 

G
 

01
/0

4/
09

 
S

ec
ur

e 
ac

cr
ed

ita
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 c
ou

rs
es

 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

31
/0

3/
10

 

(o
ng

oi
ng

 @
 3

1/
03

/0
9)

 

1 
01

/0
4/

09
 

LS
A

U
 

N
S

-B
 (

T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

ffi
ce

r)
 

Id
en

tif
y 

ac
cr

ed
ita

tio
n 

bo
dy

 a
nd

 c
rit

er
ia

 fo
r 

ac
cr

ed
ita

tio
n 

at
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 le

ve
ls

 o
f t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n 

A
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
bo

dy
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

 a
gr

ee
d 

01
/0

6/
09

 

2 
01

/0
6/

09
 

LS
A

U
 

N
S

-B
 (

T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

ffi
ce

r)
 

M
ap

 c
ou

rs
e 

co
nt

en
t a

ga
in

st
 a

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

cr
ite

ria
 

A
ll 

A
dv

an
ce

d 
co

ur
se

s 
m

ap
pe

d 
– 

31
/0

7/
09

 

A
ll 

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 c
ou

rs
es

 m
ap

pe
d 

– 
31

/1
0/

09
 

A
ll 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
co

ur
se

s 
m

ap
pe

d 
– 

31
/1

2/
09

 

31
/1

2/
09

 

3 
01

/0
8/

09
 

LS
A

U
 

N
S

-B
 (

T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

ffi
ce

r)
 

S
ub

m
it 

co
ur

se
s 

fo
r 

ac
cr

ed
ita

tio
n 

A
ll 

A
dv

an
ce

d 
co

ur
se

s 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d 

– 
31

/1
0/

09
 

A
ll 

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 c
ou

rs
es

 a
cc

re
di

te
d 

– 
31

/0
1/

10
 

A
ll 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
co

ur
se

s 
ac

cr
ed

ite
d 

– 
31

/0
3/

10
 

31
/0

3/
10

 

Page 295Page 71



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

28

7.
  

K
ey

 T
ar

g
et

s 
an

d
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 2
00

9/
10

 

T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
e 

is
 a

n 
ex

tr
ac

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
Le

ed
s 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 a

nd
 C

ho
ic

e 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
(2

00
8)

.  

A
ct

io
n

 A
re

as
 

S
ta

rt
 D

at
e 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 
A

g
en

cy
/ 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 

O
ff

ic
er

s 

S
ta

tu
s/

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
M

ile
st

o
n

e 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 D
at

e 

R
at

ify
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
al

l 
ag

en
ci

es
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

A
pr

il 
09

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

/ 
S

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 a
nd

 
ca

re
rs

 

E
m

m
a 

M
or

tim
er

 
A

du
lt 

(S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
),

   
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 

 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
ra

tif
ie

d 
by

 a
ll 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
nd

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 

D
ec

-0
9 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ad

ul
ts

 a
re

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
ac

ro
ss

 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 d

is
ci

pl
in

es
. 

E
ns

ur
e 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 o
f 

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 (

M
oU

) 
is

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

ed
 in

 
lin

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
vi

ew
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 o
f p

ar
tn

er
s 

A
pr

il 
09

 

D
en

ni
s 

H
ol

m
es

 (
C

hi
ef

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g)

   
  

H
ila

ry
 P

ax
to

n 
(H

ea
d 

of
 A

du
lt 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g)
   

   
   

   
   

   

 
A

ny
 a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

M
em

or
an

du
m

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

. 

M
ar

-1
0 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ad

ul
ts

 a
re

 c
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 a
cr

os
s 

ag
en

ci
es

 a
nd

 d
is

ci
pl

in
es

 

A
gr

ee
 p

ro
to

co
ls

 fo
r 

Jo
in

t 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l 

C
ar

e 
ac

ro
ss

 p
ar

tn
er

 
ag

en
ci

es
, a

nd
 w

ith
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 
re

ga
rd

 to
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

vu
ln

er
ab

ili
ty

, i
e,

 h
om

el
es

s 
un

it,
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y,

 
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

le
ad

s,
 e

tc
. 

A
pr

il 
09

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

/ 
S

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 a
nd

 
ca

re
rs

 

E
m

m
a 

M
or

tim
er

 
A

du
lt 

(S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
) 

 
Q

A
 o

f c
as

e 
fil

es
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 

ba
se

lin
e 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
. 

Ju
n-

09
 

In
cr

ea
se

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 

S
pe

ci
fy

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t a
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l 

A
pr

il 
09

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

/ 
S

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 a
nd

 

 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 is
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

Ju
n-

09
 

Page 296Page 72



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

29

A
ct

io
n

 A
re

as
 

S
ta

rt
 D

at
e 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 

A
g

en
cy

/ 
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 

O
ff

ic
er

s 

S
ta

tu
s/

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
M

ile
st

o
n

e 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 D
at

e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ad
ul

ts
. 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 a
du

lt 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
,  

ca
re

rs
/ T

he
 p

ub
lic

 

M
ik

e 
S

el
ls

 
(C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

M
an

ag
er

) 

S
ur

ve
ys

 a
nd

 q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

ba
se

lin
e 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 o

ut
co

m
e 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 

Ja
n-

10
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

A
du

lts
 C

ha
rt

er
 fo

r 
Le

ed
s 

P
ar

tn
er

s,
 a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 s
er

vi
ce

 
us

er
s,

 c
ar

er
s 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 h

av
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 is
 a

cc
ur

at
e,

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 &
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 in

 
te

rm
s 

of
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

st
an

da
rd

s 
&

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 ta
ke

 
ac

tio
n 

to
 s

ha
pe

 p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

ho
ld

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

to
 

ac
co

un
t 

A
pr

il 
09

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

/ 
S

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 a
nd

 
ca

re
rs

/ T
he

 p
ub

lic
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

H
ea

d 
of

 A
du

lt 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

 
C

ha
rt

er
 is

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 b

y 
A

du
lt 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 b

oa
rd

 
su

b-
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

ra
tif

ie
d 

by
 b

oa
rd

 
by

 J
an

 2
01

0 
fo

r 
ad

op
tio

n 
by

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

Ja
n-

10
 

E
ve

ry
on

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 u

nd
er

st
an

ds
 th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p’
s 

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 h

as
 th

e 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 

S
co

pe
 o

ut
 a

t a
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

l t
ra

in
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

ec
ur

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ge
nc

ie
s.

  S
ee

 
1.

6,
 1

.7
 a

nd
 1

.8
 a

bo
ve

 

A
pr

il 
09

 

A
du

lt 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 / 
H

R
 / 

P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

s 
/ S

er
vi

ce
 

U
se

rs
 a

nd
 C

ar
er

s 

E
m

m
a 

M
or

tim
er

 
(S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

),
   

 
G

ra
ha

m
 S

ep
ht

on
 

(D
ep

ut
y 

H
ea

d 
of

 H
R

) 

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

an
d 

fu
nd

 a
 p

la
n 

w
hi

ch
 

de
m

on
st

ra
te

s 
a 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
co

m
m

itm
en

t a
nd

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
cr

os
s 

ag
en

cy
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

of
 a

du
lts

 a
cr

os
s 

Le
ed

s 
 

M
ay

-0
9 

A
gr

ee
 m

an
da

to
ry

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 s
ub

-g
ro

up
 to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 le

ad
s.

 

A
pr

il 
09

 

M
ay

-0
9 

Id
en

tif
y 

st
af

f w
ho

 r
eq

ui
re

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

A
pr

il 
09

 

S
ep

-0
9 

E
ve

ry
on

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 u

nd
er

st
an

ds
 th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p’
s 

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 h

as
 th

e 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

fo
r 

al
l r

ol
es

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
A

pr
il 

09
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 / 

H
R

 / 
P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
s 

/ S
er

vi
ce

 
U

se
rs

 a
nd

 C
ar

er
s 

D
en

ni
s 

H
ol

m
es

 (
C

hi
ef

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
H

ea
d 

of
 A

du
lt 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g,
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

G
ra

ha
m

 S
ep

ht
on

 
(D

ep
ut

y 
H

ea
d 

of
 H

R
) 

In
te

ra
ge

nc
y 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d.
  A

 r
ol

lin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
nu

m
be

rs
 to

 b
e 

tr
ai

ne
d 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

ar
e 

m
et

. T
ar

ge
ts

 to
 

be
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

d.
 

S
ep

-0
9 

Page 297Page 73



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

30

A
ct

io
n

 A
re

as
 

S
ta

rt
 D

at
e 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 

A
g

en
cy

/ 
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 

O
ff

ic
er

s 

S
ta

tu
s/

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
M

ile
st

o
n

e 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 D
at

e 

E
ve

ry
on

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 u

nd
er

st
an

ds
 th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p’
s 

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 h

as
 th

e 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 

M
on

ito
r 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 v
ia

 th
e 

T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 
su

bg
ro

up
s 

A
pr

il 
09

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 Q

A
 s

ub
-

gr
ou

p/
 H

R
 -

 T
ra

in
in

g/
 

P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

s/
 S

er
vi

ce
 

U
se

rs
 a

nd
 C

ar
er

s.
 

S
tu

ar
t C

am
er

on
 

S
tr

ic
kl

an
d 

 (
H

ea
d 

of
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

) 
R

ic
ha

rd
 G

ra
ha

m
 

(Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
er

) 

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

ba
se

lin
e 

an
d 

ag
re

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 k

ey
 s

ta
ff 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 4

.1
 w

hi
ch

 e
vi

de
nc

es
 th

at
 

al
l f

ro
nt

lin
e 

in
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 h

ow
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 a

du
lts

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 to
 c

on
ce

rn
s.

  U
se

r 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

su
rv

ey
s 

ev
id

en
ce

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e.
 

S
ep

-0
9 

E
ns

ur
e 

fin
al

 d
ra

ft 
of

 s
er

io
us

 c
as

e 
re

vi
ew

  p
ro

ce
du

re
 is

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 

th
e 

bo
ar

d 
A

pr
il 

09
 

 
T

he
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 is
 fo

rm
al

ly
 a

do
pt

ed
 

w
ith

in
 a

ll 
pa

rtn
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 

S
ep

-0
9 

T
he

 s
er

io
us

 c
ar

e 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
is

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
&

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ev
id

en
ce

 le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
di

ss
em

in
at

io
n 

of
 g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

E
ns

ur
e 

fin
al

 d
ra

ft 
of

 s
er

io
us

 c
as

e 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 is

 ta
ke

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

of
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
pa

rtn
er

s.
 

A
pr

il 
09

 

A
du

lt 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

B
oa

rd
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r 
(S

oc
ia

l 
C

ar
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g)

 

 
F

ut
ur

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 s

er
io

us
 c

as
es

 &
 c

rit
er

ia
 

ar
e 

m
an

ag
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

&
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

su
b-

gr
ou

p 
of

 th
e 

A
du

lt 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
 (

se
e 

R
ec

 1
.2

) 

M
ar

-1
0 

A
 p

ilo
t o

f t
w

o 
se

rio
us

 c
as

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
on

du
ct

ed
  

M
ay

-0
9 

T
he

 s
er

io
us

 c
ar

e 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
is

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
&

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ev
id

en
ce

 le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
di

ss
em

in
at

io
n 

of
 g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 
co

nd
uc

ts
 s

er
io

us
 c

as
e 

re
vi

ew
s 

us
in

g 
ne

w
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
an

d 
re

vi
se

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
.  

(S
ee

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 4
 &

 6
).

 

A
pr

il 
09

 

A
du

lt 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

B
oa

rd
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

E
m

m
a 

M
or

tim
er

 
(S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

) 

F
in

di
ng

s 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

re
po

rte
d 

in
 

re
po

rt
 to

 th
e 

bo
ar

d 
M

ay
-0

9 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 b

oa
rd

 a
nd

 it
s 

su
bg

ro
up

s 
m

ee
ts

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 G

oo
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
in

 P
ub

lic
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

T
he

 w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 is

 
re

po
rt

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 o
f t

he
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
. E

le
ct

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ill
 

re
ce

iv
e 

re
po

rt
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

B
oa

rd
.  

T
he

 
re

po
rt

s 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 p
la

n,
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

pl
an

 a
nd

 w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ye
ar

. 

A
pr

il 
09

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

/ 
N

E
D

's
 / 

E
le

ct
ed

 
M

em
be

rs
/ S

er
vi

ce
 

us
er

s 
an

d 
ca

re
rs

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
es

/ 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 o

f 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

 
A

nn
ua

l a
ud

its
 &

 g
oo

d 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
re

vi
ew

, a
ll 

su
b 

gr
ou

ps
 h

av
e 

w
or

k 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

de
liv

er
 th

em
.  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t i

s 
pr

od
uc

ed
 in

 M
ay

 
ac

co
m

pa
ni

ed
 b

y 
a 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ye
ar

.  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
¼

ly
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 r

ep
or

ts
 a

re
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r e
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
by

 a
ge

nc
y 

an
d 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t o

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 
sc

ru
tin

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. (

se
e 

R
ec

 
2.

3)
.  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
T

he
 w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
bo

ar
d 

is
 o

pe
n 

to
 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
by

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

gr
ou

p 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
ca

re
rs

. 

M
ay

-0
9 

Page 298Page 74



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

31

A
ct

io
n

 A
re

as
 

S
ta

rt
 D

at
e 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 

A
g

en
cy

/ 
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 

O
ff

ic
er

s 

S
ta

tu
s/

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 
M

ile
st

o
n

e 
T

ar
g

et
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 D
at

e 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 b

oa
rd

 a
nd

 it
s 

su
bg

ro
up

s 
m

ee
ts

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 G

oo
d 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
in

 P
ub

lic
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t i
s 

ra
tif

ie
d 

by
 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
of

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
its

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
B

oa
rd

(s
).

 

A
pr

il 
09

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

/ 
N

E
D

's
 / 

E
le

ct
ed

 
M

em
be

rs
 

A
du

lt 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

B
oa

rd
 

 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t c

on
ta

in
s 

de
ta

ils
 o

f 
vo

lu
m

e 
of

 a
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 

ou
tc

om
es

 fr
om

 a
ll 

pa
rt

ne
rs

.  
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 p
oi

nt
s 

ar
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 
fu

tu
re

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s.
 

M
ay

-0
9 

Page 299Page 75



Final Draft 01/07/09 

Appendix A 32

Appendix A 

 

Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Statement of Purpose 

 “Leeds - A Safe  Place for Everyone” 

The Principles 

The objective of the Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board is for:  

all the citizens of Leeds, irrespective of age, race, gender, culture, religion, disability or sexual orientation 
 to live in safety and be free from abuse or the fear of abuse. 

This includes:  

- knowing that all citizens have a responsibility to ‘look out’ for each other, as friends, relatives, good 
neighbours and attentive citizens and professionals.  

- empowering and informing individuals so that they know how to “talk to someone” if they suspect that any 
person or group who may be vulnerable is, or may be, a target for abuse, and how to get something done 
about it, without fear of reprisal. 

The Board’s vision of what it wants to achieve: 

The Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board wants to develop an overarching picture of the needs of those in 
our community who are, or may be, vulnerable to abuse, and to use this picture to allow the Safeguarding Board to 
address abuse where it does occur, and to prevent abuse where it is likely to occur. Leeds Safeguarding Adults Board 
wants to: 

• achieve effective, respectful and valued safeguarding outcomes for:  

- Potential victims of abuse,  for example, by developing new and innovative preventative and supportive services 
to help those who may be at risk of abuse to recognise this and to take action to reduce the likelihood of such 
abuse. 

-Victims of abuse, for example, by making sure they have the ability to speak out and the services are in place to 
ensure they are rendered safe and to support them in the recovery from such abuse, including recovering trust 
where care services may have failed them, and  regaining the ability to feel safe in their neighbourhoods. 

- Perpetrators of abuse  

In the case of individual perpetrators by seeking to provide help and support to address abusive behaviours; 
seeking legal prosecution of crimes; barring unsuitable individuals from working with people who are vulnerable 
and need support in their day to day lives; or by ensuring that they receive training and high quality supervision if 
they are employed in a care setting. 

In the case of institutional abuse where the perpetrator is a service provider, to use the provider-commissioner 
relationship to support providers to improve the recruitment, training and development of staff and to ensure their 
systems are robust, and where this is not successful, to re-commission services from different providers.  

Page 300Page 76



Final Draft 01/07/09 

Appendix A 33

• learn and develop from national policy and reports, for example, by undertaking Serious Case Reviews, Post 
Incident Reviews and Serious Untoward Incident Reviews and including the learning from these in the 
development of Safeguarding in Leeds; and reflecting our experiences in government consultations. 

• monitor, review and continuously improve the services we provide, commission and hold responsibility for; by, for 
example, robust performance and quality assurance processes and by involving those at risk in the review and 
development process.

To do all of these things well, we believe it is important to take action at all levels and at the following three stages: 

1) at the first stage, preventing abuse from happening; through the development of new and innovative services 
guided by continuous research into the likely sources and locations of abuse, through partnership with other 
statutory and voluntary organisations. 

2) at the second stage, ensuring that abuse is promptly identified, and referred to professionals who will develop and 
monitor interventions to stop the abuse and promote recovery 

3) at the third stage, supporting people who have suffered abuse to recover from that abuse and to regain trust in 
those around them 

This vision is spurred by the knowledge that many people who have suffered abuse do not, or cannot, seek help for 
themselves. This means that we must be single-minded in our efforts to prevent abuse and support individuals to “tell 
someone”. 

We want everyone to know that no-one should tolerate or be exposed to abusive, harmful, or discriminatory 
situations. 

Page 301Page 77



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
34

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
 

T
h

e 
L

ee
d

s 
S

af
eg

u
ar

d
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
s 

T
ra

in
in

g
 F

ra
m

ew
o

rk
 

Page 302Page 78



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
35

K
ey

 s
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 r
o

le
s 

an
d

 w
h

o
 c

an
 u

n
d

er
ta

ke
 t

h
em

  

T
ra

in
in

g 
Le

ve
l 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
R

ol
e 

W
ho

 c
an

 ta
ke

 o
n 

th
is

 r
ol

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 n

um
be

rs
 

1 
A

le
rt

er
 

T
he

 d
ut

y 
to

 p
as

s 
on

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 

A
ll 

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tr
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
43

00
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
(b

ut
 e

st
im

at
e 

10
00

 o
f t

he
se

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
pe

rv
is

or
s/

lin
e 

m
an

ag
er

s)
 

2 
L

in
e 

m
an

ag
er

  
H

ow
 to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
an

d 
re

fe
r 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 

A
ll 

su
pe

rv
is

or
s 

an
d 

lin
e 

m
an

ag
er

s 
in

 A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
U

p
 t

o
 1

00
0 

em
p

lo
ye

es
 

3 
In

ve
st

ig
at

o
r 

R
es

po
nd

in
g 

to
, a

nd
 in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

ab
us

e 

S
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
m

an
ag

er
s 

(S
W

) 
S

oc
ia

l w
or

ke
rs

 
P

rin
ci

pa
l c

as
e 

w
or

ke
rs

 
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

so
ci

al
 w

or
ke

rs
 

T
ea

m
 m

an
ag

er
s 

(S
W

) 
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
du

ty
 s

oc
ia

l w
or

ke
rs

 
S

en
io

r 
P

ra
ct

iti
on

er
s 

35
0 

em
p

lo
ye

es
 

4 
S

af
eg

u
ar

d
in

g
 C

o
o

rd
in

at
o

r 
C

oo
rd

in
at

in
g 

en
qu

iri
es

 a
nd

 
ov

er
se

ei
ng

 th
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 it
s 

ou
tc

om
e 

T
ea

m
 m

an
ag

er
s 

(S
W

) 
S

er
vi

ce
 D

el
iv

er
y 

M
an

ag
er

s 
(S

W
) 

S
en

io
r 

P
ra

ct
iti

on
er

s 

50
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 

Page 303Page 79



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
36

A
cc

o
u

n
ta

b
ili

ti
es

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
et

en
ci

es
 m

ap
 f

o
r 

ke
y 

sa
fe

g
u

ar
d

in
g

 a
d

u
lt

s 
ro

le
s 

T
ra

in
in

g 
Le

ve
l 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
R

ol
e 

W
ha

t y
ou

 a
re

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 fo
r 

K
no

w
le

dg
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
yo

u 
ne

ed
 

1 
A

le
rt

er
 

T
he

 d
ut

y 
to

 p
as

s 
on

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 

A
ll 

al
er

te
rs

 m
us

t: 
 

•
 

R
ec

og
ni

se
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l c

au
se

s 
an

d 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 o
f a

bu
se

 

•
 

F
ul

fil
 d

ut
y 

to
 p

as
s 

on
 a

ny
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
 

or
 a

lle
ga

tio
ns

  

•
 

F
ul

fil
 d

ut
y 

to
 p

as
s 

on
 a

ny
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t p
ot

en
tia

l a
bu

se
 o

r 
ne

gl
ec

t  

•
 

ad
dr

es
s 

an
y 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 s

af
et

y 
or

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ne
ed

s 

•
 

re
co

rd
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

in
 w

or
kp

la
ce

 r
ec

or
ds

 

Y
ou

 c
an

 e
xp

la
in

 

•
 

W
ha

t ‘
ab

us
e’

 , 
‘s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g’

, a
nd

 
‘v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ad

ul
t’ 

ar
e 

•
 

H
ow

 in
st

itu
tio

na
l a

bu
se

 c
an

 o
cc

ur
 a

nd
 h

ow
 it

 
ca

n 
be

 ta
ck

le
d 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
te

d 

•
 

T
he

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
 w

ou
ld

 r
ai

se
 

co
nc

er
ns

 w
ith

 y
ou

r 
su

pe
rv

is
or

/m
an

ag
er

 

•
 

ty
pe

s 
of

 a
bu

se
 a

nd
 h

ow
 to

 r
ec

og
ni

ze
 th

em
 

w
ith

in
 y

ou
r 

w
or

k 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 

•
 

w
ha

t t
o 

do
 if

 y
ou

 w
itn

es
s 

or
 s

us
pe

ct
 a

bu
se

 
is

 ta
ki

ng
 p

la
ce

 

•
 

yo
ur

 in
di

vi
du

al
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
w

ith
in

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

C
rit

ic
al

 s
ki

lls
 

•
 

ris
k 

aw
ar

en
es

s 

•
 

ta
ki

ng
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 

•
 

ac
tin

g 
po

si
tiv

el
y 

•
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

•
 

re
co

rd
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

Page 304Page 80



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
37

T
ra

in
in

g 
Le

ve
l 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
R

ol
e 

W
ha

t y
ou

 a
re

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 fo
r 

K
no

w
le

dg
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
yo

u 
ne

ed
 

2 
L

in
e 

m
an

ag
er

 
H

ow
 to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
an

d 
re

fe
r 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 

A
ll 

lin
e 

m
an

ag
er

s 
m

us
t: 

•
 

A
ss

es
s 

th
e 

in
iti

al
 a

le
rt

 a
nd

 d
ec

id
e 

w
he

th
er

 to
 m

ak
e 

a 
re

fe
rr

al
 

•
 

T
ak

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

du
lt 

ca
se

s 
be

yo
nd

 in
iti

al
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

•
 

M
ak

e 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

•
 

P
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

of
 s

ta
ff 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n 

•
 

Id
en

tif
y 

if 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
re

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

•
 

T
ak

e 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
ac

tio
n 

w
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

Y
ou

 c
an

 e
xp

la
in

 

•
 

A
ll 

of
 L

ev
el

 1
 p

lu
s 

•
 

th
e 

co
m

pl
ex

iti
es

 o
f a

bu
se

 s
itu

at
io

ns
 

•
 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

ve
rif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

of
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

•
 

ho
w

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
ad

ul
t i

nv
es

tig
at

io
n,

 
di

sc
ip

lin
ar

y 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
nd

 a
ny

 c
rim

in
al

 
pr

oc
ee

di
ng

s 
in

te
rf

ac
e 

– 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

ul
d 

ta
ke

 p
rio

rit
y 

•
 

th
e 

ty
pe

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 y
ou

r 
st

af
f m

ig
ht

 n
ee

d 

•
 

co
ns

en
t a

nd
 c

ap
ac

ity
 is

su
es

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 

•
 

Le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

to
 a

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 le

ve
l t

o 
ap

pl
y 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

•
 

W
he

n 
an

d 
w

hy
 it

 is
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 to

 in
vo

lv
e 

th
e 

po
lic

e 

C
rit

ic
al

 s
ki

lls
 

•
 

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 

•
 

T
ak

in
g 

de
ci

si
on

s 

•
 

A
ct

in
g 

po
si

tiv
el

y 

•
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

•
 

G
at

he
rin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

•
 

R
ec

or
di

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

Page 305Page 81



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
38

T
ra

in
in

g 
Le

ve
l 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
R

ol
e 

W
ha

t y
ou

 a
re

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 fo
r 

K
no

w
le

dg
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
yo

u 
ne

ed
 

3 
In

ve
st

ig
at

o
r 

R
es

po
nd

in
g 

to
, a

nd
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
ab

us
e 

A
ll 

in
ve

st
ig

at
or

s 
m

us
t: 

•
 

C
ol

le
ct

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t a
lle

ge
d 

ab
us

e 
or

 n
eg

le
ct

 

•
 

In
te

rv
ie

w
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 th
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 

•
 

F
or

m
 a

 v
ie

w
 a

bo
ut

 w
he

th
er

 a
bu

se
 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

•
 

S
ha

re
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
– 

sa
fe

ly
 a

nd
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

•
 

U
se

 c
rim

in
al

 a
nd

/o
r 

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
, i

n 
co

nj
un

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
P

ol
ic

e 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

•
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

iti
al

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 r

es
po

ns
e 

•
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

a 
re

po
rt

 to
 in

fo
rm

 a
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 p
la

n 

Y
ou

 c
an

 e
xp

la
in

 

•
 

A
ll 

of
 le

ve
ls

 1
 a

nd
 2

 p
lu

s 

•
 

T
he

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
, p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
sk

ill
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 u

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 in

ve
st

ig
at

iv
e 

w
or

k,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
te

rv
ie

w
in

g 

•
 

Le
ga

l a
nd

 o
th

er
 fr

am
ew

or
ks

 fo
r 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 

•
 

T
he

 jo
in

t a
nd

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

na
l r

ol
es

 a
nd

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

s 

•
 

H
ow

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 c

an
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

•
 

H
ow

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 

•
 

T
he

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
ag

en
ci

es
 

C
rit

ic
al

 s
ki

lls
 

•
 

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 

•
 

R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

•
 

T
ak

in
g 

de
ci

si
on

s 

•
 

A
ct

in
g 

po
si

tiv
el

y 

•
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

•
 

In
te

rv
ie

w
in

g 

•
 

R
ec

or
di

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
de

ci
si

on
s 

•
 

A
na

ly
si

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

•
 

T
ea

m
w

or
ki

ng
 

•
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

iz
in

g 

•
 

R
ep

or
t w

rit
in

g 

•
 

W
or

ki
ng

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

el
y 

Page 306Page 82



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
39

T
ra

in
in

g 
Le

ve
l 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
R

ol
e 

W
ha

t y
ou

 a
re

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 fo
r 

K
no

w
le

dg
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
yo

u 
ne

ed
 

4 
S

af
eg

u
ar

d
in

g
 C

o
o

rd
in

at
o

r 
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
en

qu
iri

es
 a

nd
 

ov
er

se
ei

ng
 th

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 it

s 
ou

tc
om

e 

A
ll 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
s 

m
us

t: 

•
 

M
ak

e 
de

ci
si

on
s 

on
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 
in

ve
st

ig
at

e 

•
 

D
ec

id
e 

if 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

 is
 a

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ad
ul

t, 
m

ee
ts

 th
e 

th
re

sh
ol

d 
fo

r 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 

•
 

A
llo

ca
te

 a
 c

as
e 

to
 a

n 
in

ve
st

ig
at

or
 

•
 

Id
en

tif
y 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 a
n 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 m

ak
in

g 
su

re
 th

at
 

th
is

 d
ec

is
io

n 
is

 r
ec

or
de

d 

•
 

C
o-

or
di

na
te

 th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
of

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t a

lle
ge

d 
ab

us
e 

an
d 

ne
gl

ec
t 

•
 

C
on

si
de

r 
su

sp
en

si
on

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

di
sc

ip
lin

ar
y 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

•
 

C
on

su
lt 

th
e 

po
lic

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 in
ci

de
nt

s 

•
 

C
on

ve
ne

 a
nd

 c
ha

iri
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

•
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 

•
 

O
ve

rs
ee

 th
e 

se
t u

p 
of

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
ca

se
 c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 

•
 

P
ro

vi
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t a
ct

iv
ity

 
an

d 
ou

tc
om

es
 to

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
s 

•
 

D
ev

el
op

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
pl

an
s 

•
 

P
re

se
nt

 a
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

pl
an

 in
 a

 
re

po
rt

 

•
 

C
ha

ir 
re

vi
ew

s 
of

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
ca

se
 

co
nf

er
en

ce
s 

Y
ou

 c
an

 e
xp

la
in

 

•
 

A
ll 

of
 le

ve
ls

 1
, 2

 a
nd

 3
 p

lu
s 

•
 

T
he

 r
ol

e 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 S
A

E
C

s 
 

•
 

T
he

 th
re

sh
ol

ds
 fo

r 
en

te
rin

g 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

•
 

T
he

 d
iff

er
en

t l
ev

el
s 

of
 r

es
po

ns
e 

in
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 a
du

lts
 

•
 

W
he

n 
su

sp
en

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
nd

 
ho

w
 it

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 

•
 

W
he

n 
it 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 c

on
ta

ct
 th

e 
po

lic
e 

on
 a

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
in

ci
de

nt
 

•
 

T
he

 p
ur

po
se

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
m

ee
tin

gs
, c

as
e 

co
nf

er
en

ce
s 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
s 

•
 

T
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
s,

 a
nd

 a
t w

ha
t 

st
ag

e 
in

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 

•
 

T
he

 fa
ct

or
s 

th
at

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 
se

tti
ng

 u
p 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

C
rit

ic
al

 s
ki

lls
 

•
 

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 

•
 

R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

•
 

T
ak

in
g 

de
ci

si
on

s 

•
 

A
ct

in
g 

po
si

tiv
el

y 

•
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

•
 

In
te

rv
ie

w
in

g 

•
 

R
ec

or
di

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n/
de

ci
si

on
s 

•
 

A
na

ly
si

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

•
 

T
ea

m
 w

or
ki

ng
 

•
 

P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

iz
in

g 

•
 

R
ep

or
t w

rit
in

g 

•
 

W
or

ki
ng

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

el
y 

Page 307Page 83



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
40

•
 

C
ha

iri
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
m

ee
tin

gs
/c

on
fe

re
nc

es
 

M
o

d
el

 f
o

r 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 F

o
r 

P
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d
 in

 A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 

Le
ve

l/K
ey

 R
ol

e 
S

in
gl

e 
or

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
M

od
e 

of
 d

el
iv

er
y 

H
ow

 o
fte

n 
W

ho
 d

el
iv

er
s 

1 
– 

A
le

rt
er

 
A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

on
ly

 
 H

al
f d

ay
 s

es
si

on
 

T
itl

e:
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ad
ul

ts
 –

 it
’s

 e
ve

ry
bo

dy
’s

 jo
b 

(r
ef

re
sh

er
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
al

l a
le

rt
er

s 
ev

er
y 

2 
ye

ar
s)

 

4 
se

ss
io

ns
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

du
rin

g 
20

09
. 3

00
0 

pe
op

le
 

th
ro

ug
h.

 

D
ur

in
g 

20
09

, t
hi

s 
se

ss
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 in
to

 
In

du
ct

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r 

al
l n

ew
 s

ta
rt

er
s.

 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

T
ea

m
 –

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

2 
– 

Li
ne

 m
an

ag
er

 
A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

on
ly

 
1 

da
y 

se
ss

io
n 

(in
cl

ud
es

 a
ll 

le
ve

l 1
 c

on
te

nt
) 

T
itl

e:
 H

ow
 to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

nd
 r

ef
er

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 

(r
ef

re
sh

er
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
al

l l
in

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

ev
er

y 
2 

ye
ar

s)

1 
se

ss
io

ns
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

du
rin

g 
20

09
. 1

00
0 

pe
op

le
 

th
ro

ug
h.

 

D
ur

in
g 

20
09

, t
hi

s 
se

ss
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt

 
of

 N
ew

 M
an

ge
r 

In
du

ct
io

n 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 p
ic

k 
up

 o
n 

al
l 

ne
w

 s
ta

rt
er

s/
m

ov
er

s 
in

to
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

T
ea

m
 –

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

3 
– 

In
ve

st
ig

at
or

 
A

du
lt 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

on
ly

 
1 

da
y 

se
ss

io
n 

T
itl

e:
 In

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
an

d 
al

le
ga

tio
ns

 

(r
ef

re
sh

er
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 e

ve
ry

 2
 y

ea
rs

 fo
r 

al
l I

nv
es

tig
at

or
s)

10
 e

ve
nt

s 
- 

2 
pe

r 
m

on
th

 -
 

fr
om

 N
ov

 0
8 

to
 M

ar
ch

 0
9 

(5
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

th
ro

ug
h)

 

2 
se

ss
io

ns
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

on
 

on
go

in
g 

ba
si

s 
to

 p
ic

k 
up

 
pe

op
le

 ta
ki

ng
 o

n 
In

ve
st

ig
at

or
 r

ol
e 

E
xt

er
na

lly
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 

V
ar

io
us

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 
ev

en
ts

 in
 N

ov
 0

8.
 

Page 308Page 84



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
41

Le
ve

l/K
ey

 R
ol

e 
S

in
gl

e 
or

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
M

od
e 

of
 d

el
iv

er
y 

H
ow

 o
fte

n 
W

ho
 d

el
iv

er
s 

M
ul

ti 
ag

en
cy

 
2 

da
y 

se
ss

io
n 

 

T
itl

e:
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ad
ul

ts
 –

 y
ou

r 
ro

le
 a

s 
a 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

D
em

an
d 

le
d 

– 
di

ct
at

ed
 b

y 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 
tu

rn
ov

er
. 

Le
ed

s 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

A
du

lts
 

U
ni

t 

M
ul

ti 
ag

en
cy

 
1 

da
y 

se
ss

io
n 

T
itl

e:
 U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
ur

 n
ew

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 –

 a
n 

up
da

te
 fo

r 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

s 
2 

ev
en

ts
 p

er
 m

on
th

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ne
w

 p
ol

ic
y 

la
un

ch
 –

 J
an

 0
9 

on
w

ar
ds

 

It 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 2

 m
on

th
s 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
po

lic
y 

la
un

ch
 

to
 g

et
 a

ll 
A

S
C

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
is

 
up

da
te

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 (
14

 p
er

 
se

ss
io

n)
 

Le
ed

s 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

A
du

lts
 

U
ni

t 

4 
– 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

M
ul

ti 
ag

en
cy

 
A

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 o

ne
 d

ay
 m

od
ul

es
 o

n 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

su
bj

ec
t 

ar
ea

s:
 

a)
 

C
ha

iri
ng

 c
as

e 
co

nf
er

en
ce

s 
b)
 

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

c)
 

C
ou

rt
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

d)
 

Le
ga

l f
ra

m
ew

or
ks

 

4 
se

ss
io

ns
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 

su
bj

ec
t a

re
a 

to
 b

e 
ru

n 
pe

r 
ye

ar
, c

om
m

en
ci

ng
 2

00
9.

 

C
ha

iri
ng

 c
as

e 
co

nf
er

en
ce

s 
– 

F
ou

r 
se

ss
io

ns
 b

oo
ke

d 
fo

r 
10

, 
27

 N
ov

em
be

r 
an

d 
1,

 2
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

08
 

E
xt

er
na

lly
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 -
 

S
pe

ci
al

is
t o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 

A
nn

 C
ra

ft 
T

ru
st

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
bo

ok
ed

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
C

ha
iri

ng
 

C
as

e 
C

on
fe

re
nc

es
 s

es
si

on
 

Page 309Page 85



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
42

Page 310Page 86



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
C

 
43

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C
 

L
ee

d
s 

S
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 A
d

u
lt

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 M

em
o

ra
n

d
u

m
 o

f 
U

n
d

er
st

an
d

in
g

  

A
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 r
eq

ue
st

 a
nd

 a
t t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

w
eb

si
te

: w
w

w
.le

ed
ss

af
eg

ua
rd

in
ga

du
lts

.o
rg

.u
k 

Page 311Page 87



F
in

al
 D

ra
ft 

01
/0

7/
09

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
D

 
44

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
  

 

L
ee

d
s 

S
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 A
d

u
lt

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 P

o
lic

y 
 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
on

 r
eq

ue
st

 a
nd

 a
t t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

w
eb

si
te

: w
w

w
.le

ed
ss

af
eg

ua
rd

in
ga

du
lts

.o
rg

.u
k 

Page 312Page 88



Final Draft 01/07/09 

45

Page 313Page 89



Page 314

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90



June 2009 

Version 1 

Leeds Multi-Agency

Safeguarding Adults Partnership 

Policy

Page 91



C
o

n
te

n
ts

Foreword 

Document guide 

Part 1: the multi-agency policy 1

Introduction 1 

Why do we have policy and procedures for safeguarding 1 

1. Policy and definitions  2 

1.1 The role of the partnership 2 

1.2 The aims of this policy and safeguarding values 3 

1.3 Safeguarding action 4 

A duty to protect  

Respect for individuals and their dignity  

Handling safeguarding concerns  

Capacity and consent  

Risk  

Proportionality  

Confidentiality  

Information sharing  

Multi-agency working  

1.4 Defining the key concepts in understanding 
safeguarding adults 

6

Vulnerability  

Safeguarding  

Harm  

Abuse

1.5 The categories used to describe abuse 8 

Discriminatory  

Physical  

Sexual  

Psychological  

Financial  

Neglect and acts of omission  

Institutional  

1.6 Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 11 

1.7 The use of restrictive physical interventions 11 

ii

Page 92



C
o

n
te

n
ts

1.8 Links with other policies, procedures and 
partnerships 

11

Safeguarding children and young adults   

Safer Leeds Partnership   

Sharing confidential information  

Equality and Diversity  

Discrimination  

1.9 Commissioning services  14 

Registered health and social care providers  

Commissioning health, social care and 

related services 

1.10 Other issues 15 

Exploitation  

Sexual activity and adults with reduced or 
no capacity 

Forced marriages  

Trading standards  

2. Prevention and recognition 17 

2.1 Anticipatory risk  17 

What is abuse?  

When might an individual experience harm?  

The individual  

The environment  

Relationships (in particulare with carers)  

Who might perpetrate harm?  

Safeguarding concerns between vulnerable 

adults

Where might the need for safeguarding 

arise?

2.2 Patterns  20 

2.3 Indicators  20 

Indicators of discrimination  

Indicators of physical harm  

Indicators of sexual abuse  

Indicators of psychological harm  

Indicators of financial harm  

iii

Page 93



C
o

n
te

n
ts

iv

Indicators of neglect  

Indicators of institutional abuse  

2.4 What can be done to reduce risk for vulnerable 
people?

23

Informal carers  

Direct payments and individual budgets  

Formal carers, professionals and managers  

Other vulnerable adults  

The public  

Page 94



F
o

r
e
w

o
r
d

The Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership is a multi-agency 
partnership comprising statutory, independent and charitable 
organisations which have a stakeholder interest in safeguarding adults. 
The vision of the partnership and Board is to protect and promote 
individual human rights, the capacity for independence and improved 
well being so that vulnerable adults stay safe, are treated with dignity 
and respect, enjoy a sustained quality of life, and are at all times 
protected from abuse, neglect, discrimination, or poor treatment. 

The joint publication of statutory guidance by the Department of Health 
and Home Office of ‘No Secrets’ in 2000 places a responsibility on local 
authority adult social care departments to play a lead role in developing 
local policies and procedures to safeguard vulnerable adults from 
abuse. It expects that statutory agencies will ‘work together in 
partnership to ensure that appropriate policies, procedures and 
practices are in place and implemented locally.’. More recently, Raising 
Voices [CSCI, April 2008] reminded us all of the importance of good 
procedures: 

'Good procedures [are needed] but procedures do not keep people safe. 
The way they are understood, implemented and checked could.' 

The Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership is committed to working 
together to safeguard vulnerable adults. Joint working is a fundamental 
part of our approach in developing these new policies and procedures. 
We are determined to work together on all aspects of work with 
vulnerable adults where safeguarding concerns, neglect or exploitation 
are raised or may be raised.  

We have been looking again at our safeguarding adults responsibilities 
and the systems we use to record and monitor this work. This new 
multi-agency policy and associated procedures represent a continuing 
and shared commitment to ensuring that people with a range of 
vulnerabilities can live independently and safely in our communities. 
They provide the local multi-agency standards and best practice for 
improved safeguarding of adults. The multi-agency procedures have 
been endorsed by a wide range of statutory and voluntary organisations 
and by the Director of Adult Social Services, who has overall 
responsibility for ensuring their effectiveness. 

Every adult matters in Leeds. The central purpose of this policy and the 
procedures is to ensure that people know how to recognise 
safeguarding concerns and, where they do occur, to ensure that there 
is an appropriate response. We believe these robust procedures make it 
more likely that vulnerable people are safeguarded and further 
concerns identified and prevented.  

Finally, I would like to thank East Sussex County Council for its support 
in developing this document.  

Dennis Holmes 

Chair, Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board 

v

Page 95



D
o

c
u

m
e
n

t g
u

id
e
 

The document is divided into three sections. 

Part 1 The multi-agency policy: This sets out how we will work 
together to prevent and respond to abuse.  

Part 2 The multi-agency procedures: This section explains how 
professionals should respond to and investigate reports of abuse.  

Part 3 Appendices: This provides additional guidance and general 
information. 

The electronic version of this document has been designed for easy 
access with links to specific information and further guidance on related 
areas.

These are also available to download from the Leeds safeguarding 
adults website: www.leedssafeguardingadults.org.uk.

Keeping these policies up-to-date 

Keeping policies and procedures up-to-date and relevant is essential. 
The multi-agency policy, protocols and guidance will be kept under 
review by the Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board.  

In doing so, it will be looking at their effectiveness and the need to 
build in learning from experience locally and nationally, research and 
government guidance.  

People are encouraged to comment on them at any stage. All reviews 
and revisions will be undertaken by the Policies, Protocols and 
Procedures Sub Group of the Safeguarding Board and published on the 
website where you can find the most recent version.  

This can be accessed via www.leedssafeguardingadults.org.uk.  

If you wish to comment, please email 
safeguarding.adults@leeds.gov.uk or write to Safeguarding Adults 
Partnership Board, 4th Floor East, Merrion House, 110 Merrion Centre, 
Leeds LS2 8QB. 

Terminology

These policy and procedures have been extensively revised and 
rewritten to ensure vulnerable adults are safeguarded in Leeds.  

We have been keen to ensure they are accessible to all and therefore 
we have changed some of the terminology.  

Safeguarding 

We believe it is important that we enable vulnerable adults to 
understand risk and achieve as much independence as is possible.  

We therefore use the term ‘safeguarding’ as opposed to ‘protection’. 
‘Safeguarding’ encompasses a proactive approach to identifying 
vulnerability and providing those people with the skills to protect 
themselves from harm.  

Page 96



D
o

c
u

m
e
n

t g
u

id
e

When this has not been possible, it is necessary for agencies to respond 
to concerns that some one may have been abused.  

This policy and associated procedures therefore cover this broader 
approach.  

Safeguarding Coordinators 

For example, Adult Protection Enquiry Coordinators (APECs) or 
Safeguarding Adults Enquiry Coordinators (SAECs) are now simply 
known as Safeguarding Coordinators. 

Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership 

The Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership includes all the agencies 
that work together to safeguard adults in Leeds. 

Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board 

The Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board provides leadership 
for the partners, ensuring that formal arrangements are in place to 
support staff, monitoring safeguarding activity in the city and taking 
action to improve practice where necessary. 

Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Support Unit 

The Leeds Adult Protection Unit has been renamed the Leeds 
Safeguarding Adults Partnership Support Unit.  

Page 97



Page 98



P
a
r
t 1

 The multi-agency policy 

Page 99



P
a
r
t 1

 

Page 100



P
a
r
t 1

 
Introduction

Every adult matters in Leeds; that is why we are here and why these 
policies and procedures have been prepared. Having policy and 
procedures to safeguard adults is also a legal requirement. The policy 
and procedures set out how the Leeds multi-agency partnership will 
meet its responsibilities to safeguard vulnerable adults and promote 
their welfare and wellbeing.  

This section of the multi-agency policy and procedures is the policy. The 
detailed information about how professionals should act to safeguard 
adults is set out in part two, the multi-agency procedures. Part three 
contains the appendices and useful information for all those working to 
safeguard adults, including a glossary of terms, detailed information 
about the legal powers to intervene, frequently asked questions and 
references for further information.  

Why do we have a policy and procedures for safeguarding 
vulnerable adults? 

Research, professional practice and user experience over a long period 
have demonstrated that abuse of vulnerable adults is a significant 
feature of society with considerable cost to those affected. Accordingly, 
the subject of adult abuse and debate about how best to protect, or in 
more recent terms, safeguard vulnerable adults has risen on the social 
policy agenda. 

A significant national development was the joint publication in 2000 of 
‘No Secrets: guidance on developing and implementing multi-agency 
policies and procedures to protect vulnerable adults from abuse’ by the 
Department of Health and the Home Office. This offered a structure, 
context and statutory guidance for the development of inter-agency 
policies, procedures and joint protocols, as well as an impetus for 
prevention, data collection and many other activities.  

‘No Secrets’ was a major tipping point for adult protection policy and 
practice. Since the publication of ‘No Secrets’ there have continued to 
be a number of significant national developments which either directly 
address safeguarding adults concerns or have a relevance to practice in 
this area.  

A simple glance at the list will show the mounting evidence for 
safeguarding adults to be given a higher priority. ‘Safeguarding Adults, 
A National Framework Standards for good practice and outcomes in 
adult protection work’ produced by the ADSS on behalf of the National 
Safeguarding Adults’ Network (2005) has provided an updated best 
practice guide, containing standards for many of the activities involved 
in protecting and supporting vulnerable adults. It also highlighted the 
importance of viewing those who are victims of abuse as central within 
adult protection processes.

It has led to an approach where the term ‘safeguarding’ is used in 
preference to ‘protection’. This is to reflect a shift in emphasis towards 

1
Page 101



P
a
r
t 1

 

supporting adults to make use of services of their own choosing, rather 
than authorities simply stepping in to provide protection in every case. 
We have chosen to use ‘safeguarding’. 

It is suggested that the term ‘protection’ should be used only for those 
who have impaired mental capacity. Here the duty to provide protection 
has become clearer with the introduction of the Mental Capacity Act 
(2005). The Act states: ‘The concept of a “vulnerable adult” is replaced 
with an assessment of the risk posed by the abuse and neglect, to the 
quality of life of the individual adult concerned’. For the time being, 
however, the term ‘vulnerable adult’ is retained in this document 
consistent with the definitions within ‘No Secrets’ and as a reminder of 
the need to always focus on independence, wellbeing and safety of the 
person who is or who may be abused or at risk of abuse, neglect or 
exploitation. 

1. Policy and definitions 

A clear value base and a common understanding of what constitutes a 
safeguarding concern, abuse and the unacceptable treatment of 
vulnerable adults underpin the Leeds multi-agency policy and 
procedures for safeguarding vulnerable adults.  

The procedures, set out in section two, are based on an agreed local 
understanding of what constitutes a safeguarding adults concern and 
how vulnerable adults should be treated, both generally and when a 
concern arises. These understandings are set out with regard to:  

The key principles and code of practice underpinning contact 
with vulnerable adults 

Defining the key concepts used in understanding safeguarding 
adults

The terms used to categorise abuse 

Duties and powers to intervene 

Links with other policies, procedures and statutory guidance. 

1.1 The role of the partnership

The Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership represents a joint working 
arrangement, which is set out formally in a Memorandum of 
Understanding. This can be summarised as: 

Agreeing to work together to achieve wider and common 
goals and outcomes for local people in terms of safeguarding 
that are inherent in the Vision for Leeds; 

Ensuring the multi-agency safeguarding adults policies and 
procedures are adopted by the Executive Body of their 
organisation and delivered consistently; 

2
Page 102



P
a
r
t 1

 
Sharing accountability, risks and resources appropriately; and 

Pursuing better outcomes for vulnerable adults and to 
communicate with and engage with communities. 

1.2 The aim of this policy and safeguarding values 

This policy provides a structure to help all agencies work together in 
partnership with those considered be at risk, their carers and the 
community to effectively safeguard them from harm. All agencies with 
full or associate membership within the Leeds safeguarding adults 
partnership have agreed to subscribe to the following guiding principles 
in relation to the safeguarding of vulnerable adults: 

Work together as partners to deliver effective frameworks 
for better safeguarding, prevention and best practice. 

Ensure the safety of vulnerable adults by integrating 
strategies, policies and services relevant to abuse within the 
framework of relevant legislation and promotion of human 
rights.

Actively promote the empowerment, independence and 
wellbeing of vulnerable adults. 

Respect the right of the individual to lead an independent 
life based on self-determination and personal choice. 

Identify people who are unable to take their own 
decisions and/or protect themselves, their assets and bodily 
integrity. 

Accept that the right to self-determination can involve 
risk and ensure that such risk is assessed, recognised and 
understood by all concerned. 

Seek to minimise risks through open discussion between 
the individual and agencies about the risks involved. 

Ensure an assessment of decision making capacity 
where a vulnerable adult makes life-transforming decisions or 
choices that may adversely affect their wellbeing and 
protection from abuse or risk of abuse. 

Ensure that when the right to an independent lifestyle 
and choice is at risk the individual concerned receives 
appropriate help including advice, protection and support 
from relevant agencies. 

Assure that the law and statutory requirements are 
known and used appropriately so that vulnerable adults 
receive the protection of the law and access to the judicial 
process.

3
Page 103



P
a
r
t 1

 

1.3 Safeguarding action 

Safeguarding action is informed by the safeguarding values the Leeds 
Safeguarding Adults partnership has adopted. All contact with 
vulnerable adults should be based on the following framework. 

A duty to protect 

‘No Secrets’ requires local authorities and their partners to prevent, 
investigate and take action where a safeguarding concern is made 
known and to work towards satisfactory safeguarding outcomes. 

Respect for individuals and their dignity 

It is every person’s human right to live a life free from abuse and 
neglect. Vulnerable adults will be treated in a way that respects and 
promotes the human rights of all citizens under the Human Rights Act 
1998. Actions taken to protect their interests will aim to respect their 
dignity, privacy and beliefs, whatever their race, religion, language, 
gender, disability, age or sexual orientation. An individual’s 
communication needs will be considered at all times. 

Handling safeguarding concerns 

All reports of safeguarding concerns will be treated seriously and 
responded to promptly; with a consistent focus on the management of 
risk and achievement of satisfactory outcomes. 

Capacity and consent 

Individuals will be assumed to have the capacity to make informed 
decisions, unless there is clear evidence to the contrary. Vulnerable 
adults should be supported to make their own decisions based on an 
awareness of the choices available. In cases where there is evidence 
that a vulnerable adult lacks capacity to make specific decisions, or is 
making life changing decisions that may result in lack of support, 
isolation or other risks appropriate provision will be made to find a 
suitable independent person to represent their best interests and to 
assess capacity for decision making.  

In all instances where a person demonstrates a lack of capacity in 
relation to a specific area or decision, everything which is done must be 
based upon an assessment of that person’s best interests, as set out in 
the Mental Capacity Act (2005).  

Risk

Vulnerable adults capable of making informed decisions will be 
supported in making their own decisions about their lives. This will 
include the taking of reasonable risks as long as these do not threaten, 
harm, or put at risk other adults or children who may be involved. See 
the arrangements for safeguarding children in Leeds: 
www.leedslscb.org.uk, which details the relevant policies and 
procedures.  

4
Page 104



P
a
r
t 1

 
Proportionality 

Interventions intended to reduce risk or respond to immediate danger 
will be proportionate to the risk. Consideration will be given to risks 
arising from any interventions themselves. Where intervention is 
necessary to reduce risk and is acceptable to the individual, the worker 
should pursue action which, while reducing the risk, disrupts the 
individual's way of life the least but at the same time seeks to ensure 
they are not abandoned and understand help and support are available.  

An assessment of capacity, risk and proportionality of response may be 
required to safeguard ongoing support or need where a vulnerable adult 
makes:

life-transforming decisions   

choices that may adversely affect their wellbeing   

choices affecting their risk of or protection from abuse. 

A referral for independent advocacy could be considered. 

Confidentiality 

Agencies will aim to maintain a balance between the need for 
confidentiality and the sharing of information necessary to make an 
effective response to allegations of abuse in the context of the Single 
Assessment Process (SAP). The following safeguards will be observed: 

Information sharing  

Information will only be shared on a need-to-know basis, 
when it is in the best interests of the vulnerable adult 

Informed consent will be obtained, wherever and whenever 
possible. If it is not possible and other vulnerable adults are 
at risk and/or a crime has been committed, it may be 
necessary to override this requirement 

Assurances of absolute confidentiality are inappropriate where 
there are concerns about abuse and where vulnerable people 
are at risk. 

Multi-agency working 

Agencies will develop effective joint working by: 

Focusing on the needs of vulnerable people 

Working cooperatively as agencies and collegiately in 
individual cases 

Developing close links in localities and communities to better 
safeguard vulnerable adults 

Sharing training activities at all levels 

Showing respect for staff working in all agencies, operating 
within their own professional frameworks 

5
Page 105



P
a
r
t 1

 

Participating in Serious Case Reviews where there has been 
concern about the operation of the multi- agency 
safeguarding adults procedures, to ensure maximum learning 
is obtained 

Contributing to performance monitoring and quality assurance 
arrangements

Integrating material from the ADSS protocol for multi-agency 
working.

1.4 Defining key concepts in understanding 

safeguarding adults 

‘No Secrets’ and other policy documents concerned with safeguarding 
vulnerable adults use a number of terms which those concerned with 
safeguarding adults should understand. These are:  

Vulnerability 

Safeguarding 

Harm

Abuse. 

Vulnerability  

‘No Secrets’ states that the term ‘vulnerable adult’ refers to any person 
aged 18 years and over who: “ … is or may be in need of community 
care services by reason of mental or other disability, age or illness; and 
who is or may be unable to take care of him or herself, or unable to 
protect him or herself against significant harm or serious exploitation”.   

Vulnerability applies to a wide range of disabilities and situations, 
including those adults who may be at risk because of their caring role. 
The ADSS publication, ‘Safeguarding Adults’ highlights the range of 
adults at risk, including those suffering domestic violence, substance 
misuse and homelessness.  

Vulnerability is not a rigid concept and there may be conflicting views 
about an individual’s capacity and situation. In considering whether 
adult safeguarding guidelines should be used, staff should assume 
relevance until and unless, information suggests that this is not the 
case.

The need for a flexible and empowering approach to enable adults at 
risk to retain independence, wellbeing and choice is highlighted in the 
ADSS publication, ‘Safeguarding Adults’.  

This definition specifically includes those people assessed as being able 
to purchase all or part of their community care services, as well as 
those who are eligible for community care services but whose need, in 
relation to safeguarding, is for access to mainstream services.  

6
Page 106



P
a
r
t 1

 
Safeguarding  

‘Safeguarding Adults’ (ADSS 2005) states that safeguarding adults is a 
phrase which means all work which ‘enables an adult who is or may be 
eligible for community care services to retain independence, wellbeing 
and choice and to access their human right to live a life that is free 
from abuse and neglect’. 

Safeguarding adults is both a proactive and a reactive approach. The 
proactive part of this work is around identifying vulnerable adults and 
risk and providing people with the skills to protect themselves. The 
reactive element of this work relates to responding to concerns being 
raised within agencies that someone may have been abused.  

Harm

A key concept in safeguarding adults work is ‘harm’, which helps to 
define the extent of abuse that an individual may have experienced.  

The Lord Chancellor’s Department stated in its publication ‘Who 
Decides?’ in 1997 that “… ‘harm’ should be taken to include not only ill-
treatment (including sexual abuse and forms of ill-treatment that are 
not physical); the impairment of, or an avoidable deterioration in, 
physical or mental health; and the impairment of physical, emotional, 
social or behavioural development”. 

An assessment of the harm experienced by an individual may lead to 
the consideration of the use of statutory powers or intervention 
proportionate to the circumstances of the individual.  

Abuse

‘No Secrets’ provides the following definitions. 

“Abuse is a violation of an individual’s human and civil rights by another 
person or persons.”  

“Abuse may consist of a single act or repeated acts. It may be physical, 
verbal or psychological, it may be an act of neglect or failure to act, or 
it may occur when a vulnerable person is persuaded to enter into a 
financial or sexual transaction to which he or she has not consented, or 
cannot consent. Abuse can occur in any relationship and may result in 
significant harm to, or exploitation of, the person subjected to it.” 

All persons have the right to live their lives free from violence and 
abuse. This right is underpinned by the duty on public agencies under 
the Human Rights Act 1998 to intervene proportionately to protect the 
rights of citizens.  

Any vulnerable adult at risk of abuse or neglect should be able to 
access public organisations for appropriate interventions which enable 
them to live a life free from violence and abuse.  

It follows that all citizens should have access to relevant services for 
addressing issues of abuse and neglect, including independent 
advocacy, the civil and criminal justice system and victim support 

7
Page 107



P
a
r
t 1

 

services. Remedies available should also include measures that achieve 
behaviour change by those who have perpetrated abuse or neglect.  

1.5 The categories used to describe abuse 

Discriminatory 

The principles of discriminatory abuse are embodied in legislation 
including the Race Relations Act 1976 (Amendments) Regulations 2003, 
Disability Discrimination Act 1995 and the Human Rights Act 1998.  

Discriminatory abuse links into all other forms of abuse. Discriminatory 
abuse exists when values, beliefs or culture result in a misuse of power 
that denies mainstream opportunities to some groups or individuals.  

It is the exploitation of a person’s vulnerability, resulting in repeated or 
pervasive treatment of an individual, which excludes them from 
opportunities in society, for example, education, health, justice, civic 
status and protection. It includes discrimination on the basis of race, 
gender, age, sexuality, disability or religion. 

Examples of behaviour: unequal treatment, verbal abuse, inappropriate 
use of language, slurs, harassment, deliberate exclusion. 

Physical

“The non-accidental infliction of physical force, whether accidental or 
not that results in bodily injury, pain or impairment.” (Stein, 1991, 
quoted in McCreadie 1994)  

Examples of behaviour: hitting, pushing, slapping, scalding, shaking, 
pushing, kicking, pinching, hair pulling, the inappropriate application of 
techniques or treatments, involuntary isolation or confinement, misuse 
of medication. Note: inadvertent physical abuse may also arise from 
poor practice e.g. poor manual handling techniques. (See also: 
neglect). 

Sexual

Direct or indirect involvement in sexual activity without valid consent. 
Consent to a particular activity may not be given because:  

A person has capacity and does not want to give consent 

A person lacks capacity and is therefore unable to give 
consent

A person feels coerced into activity because the other person 
is in a position of trust, power or authority. 

Examples of behaviour:  

Non-contact—inappropriate looking, photography, indecent 
exposure, harassment, serious teasing or innuendo, 
pornography.  

Contact—touch, e.g. of breast, genitals, anus, mouth, 
masturbation of either or both persons, penetration or 

8
Page 108



P
a
r
t 1

 
attempted penetration of the vagina, anus, mouth, with or by 
penis, fingers, other objects. (Brown and Turk, 1992, 1994).  

Psychological

The use of threats, humiliation, bullying, swearing and other verbal 
conduct, or any other form of mental cruelty, that results in mental or 
physical distress. It includes the denial of basic human and civil rights, 
such as choice, self-expression, privacy and dignity.  

Examples of behaviour: treating a person in a way which is 
inappropriate to their age and/or cultural background, blaming, 
swearing, intimidation, insulting, harassing, ‘cold-shouldering’, 
deprivation of contact. 

Financial  

“The unauthorised and improper use of funds, property or any 
resources belonging to an individual.” (Stein, 1991, quoted in 
McCreadie, 1994)  

Examples of behaviour: misappropriating money, valuables or property, 
forcing changes to a will and testament, preventing access to money, 
property, possessions or inheritance, stealing and misuse of powers of 
attorney. 

Those who financially abuse may be people who hold a position of trust, 
power, and authority or have the confidence of the vulnerable adult. 
Local authorities have in place financial procedures under which people 
may act as corporate appointee and/or corporate receiver, where a 
vulnerable adult needs someone to manage their financial affairs and is 
not able to undertake this themselves.  

Solicitors may also be appointed to provide this service. Appointee and 
receivership procedures ensure that:  

the person is in receipt of the correct state pension and 
benefits   

any private pensions or other investments are correctly paid  

care fees are paid  

personal allowances are made, and  

other bills are paid (e.g. utilities and rates). 

Monies held on behalf of the client are correctly banked and where 
appropriate excess funds are invested.  

Where clients are still living in the community or sheltered 
accommodation, provision is made for them to be in control of sufficient 
sums of money to enable them to manage day-to-day expenditure. 

More information on receivership and appointeeship can be found by 
visiting the Public Guardianship Office website.  

9
Page 109



P
a
r
t 1

 

The Department for Work and Pensions can also provide support and 
guidance. 

Neglect and acts of omission 

The repeated deprivation of assistance that the vulnerable adult needs 
for important activities of daily living, including a failure to intervene in 
behaviour which is dangerous to the vulnerable adult or to others, poor 
manual handling techniques.  

Note: under the Mental Capacity Act 2005 wilful neglect and ill 
treatment become a criminal offence. Self-neglect on the part of a 
vulnerable adult will not usually lead to the initiation of safeguarding 
adults procedures unless the situation involves a significant act of 
commission or omission by someone else with established responsibility 
for an adult’s care. Other assessment and review procedures, including 
risk assessment procedures, may prove a more appropriate 
intervention in situations of self-neglect. 

Examples of behaviour: failure to provide food, shelter, clothing, 
heating, medical care, hygiene, personal care, inappropriate use of 
medication or over-medication, activities and/or social contact. 

Institutional  

Institutional abuse arises from an unsatisfactory system of care. It 
occurs when the routines, systems and norms of an institution override 
the needs of those it is there to support. Such regimes compel 
individuals to sacrifice their own preferred life style and cultural 
diversity in favour of the interests of those there to support them, and 
others. Institutional abuse can include any or all of the other categories 
of abuse described. 

Managers and staff of such services have a responsibility to ensure that 
the operation of the service is focussed on the needs of service users, 
not on those of the institution. Managers will ensure they have 
mechanisms in place that both maintain and review the 
appropriateness, quality and impact of the service for which they are 
responsible. These mechanisms will always take into account the views 
of service users, their carers and relatives.  

Poor practice and lack of skills can cause incidents of neglect, where the 
home is unable to fulfil specific care needs to service users. This may 
result in increased levels of user-to-user abuse due to insufficient and 
inappropriate support or residential homes taking placements where 
they are unable to meet the person’s level of care.  

Examples of behaviour: inflexible routines set around the needs of staff 
rather than individual service users, e.g. requiring everyone to eat 
together at specified times, bathing limited to times to suit staff, no 
doors on toilets. Extensive use of medication to control behaviour or 
use of seclusion. These can arise through lax, uninformed or punitive 
management regimes. The behaviour is cultural, and not specific to 
particular members of staff.  

10
Page 110



P
a
r
t 1

 
1.6 Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 

The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards have been introduced into the 
Mental Capacity Act 2005 by the Mental Health Act 2007.  

The safeguards provide a legal framework for approving the deprivation 
of liberty for people who lack the capacity to consent to treatment or 
care in either a hospital or care home that, in their own best interests, 
can only be provided in circumstances that amount to a deprivation of 
liberty.  

The safeguarding legislation contains detailed requirements about when 
and how deprivation of liberty may be authorised. It provides for an 
assessment process that must be undertaken before deprivation of 
liberty may be authorised and detailed arrangements for renewing and 
challenging the authorisation of deprivation of liberty. 

Every effort should be made, in both commissioning and providing care 
or treatment, to prevent deprivation of liberty. If deprivation of liberty 
cannot be avoided, it should be for no longer than is necessary.  

The safeguards do not apply to people detained under the Mental 
Health Act 1983. For more detailed guidance, see the Mental Capacity 
Act (2005) Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Code of Practice. 
www.dh.gov.uk. And Leeds City Council’s guidance at 
www.leeds.gov.uk.

1.7 The use of restrictive physical interventions 

(also known as control and restraint) 

Restrictive physical interventions are only justified when they are used 
in the best interest of the service user themselves or to protect the 
safety of others. Intrusive forms of physical interventions, which are 
often used as a response to violence, are potentially harmful. 

A care service must have a policy statement which makes explicit the 
safeguards which must be in place before physical intervention is used. 
For more information on good practice with respect to physical 
intervention see the BILD website: www.bild.org.uk/03behaviour.htm. 

More information is also available on the Department of Health 
website—www.dh.gov.uk.

1.8 Links with other policies, procedures and 

partnerships

There are many other policy areas which overlap with, or are relevant 
to safeguarding adults. Safeguarding adults practice should be informed 
by and contribute to these. Examples of the most pertinent other policy 
areas are shown below with a definition of what each covers. 

Safeguarding children and young adults 

Leeds Safeguarding Children Board brings together representatives of 

11
Page 111



P
a
r
t 1

 

each of the main agencies responsible for promoting children’s welfare 
and helping to protect children from abuse and neglect. 

It is responsible for developing, monitoring and reviewing child 
protection policies, procedures and practice within Leeds, and for 
providing interagency training for staff across the city who work with 
children and families. 

Safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children is defined as: 

protecting children from maltreatment 

preventing impairment of children’s health or development 

ensuring that children are growing up in circumstances 
consistent with the provision of safe and effective care, and 
undertaking that role so as to enable those children to have 
optimum life chances and to enter adulthood successfully. 

It is essential that those working to safeguard adults are aware of the 
safeguarding children policy and procedures in Leeds and understand 
their responsibilities.  

Safer Leeds Partnership

Safer Leeds is the crime and disorder reduction partnership for the city. 
It was established following the introduction of the Crime and Disorder 
Act in 1998. The Safer Leeds vision is for people to be able to live 
without fear for their own safety, or the safety of others and to secure 
sustainable reductions in crime and disorder and the fear of crime.  

The multi agency partnership also steers the City’s domestic violence 
strategy. Domestic violence is a huge issue spanning many different 
service areas and needs to be tackled in partnership and on many 
levels. No sole agency can tackle domestic violence alone and it is vital 
that strategic commitment to this issue continues to ensure it is 
embedded into all relevant planning and commissioning activity across 
the city.  

The Leeds Domestic Violence Strategic Group is a decision making body 
of senior managers from across the statutory and voluntary sectors 
responsible for overall development and delivery of the Leeds Domestic 
Violence Strategy. This group is supported by the Domestic Violence 
Forum, which is a multi –agency forum, with representation from the 
statutory and voluntary sectors, and was developed to assist in the 
delivery of the strategy. The Domestic Violence strategy provides a 
framework to continue future work to improve protection and support 
to women and children experiencing domestic violence.   

Domestic violence is defined as “…any incident of threatening 
behaviour, violence or abuse between adults who are or have been in a 
relationship together, or between family members, regardless of gender 
or sexuality.” (www.homeoffice.gov.uk) 

There is considerable overlap between adult safeguarding and domestic 

12
Page 112



P
a
r
t 1

 
violence policy, procedures and practice and it is important to ensure 
that allegations are not allowed to fall between the two areas. It is also 
important that practitioners are aware of source of further information 
about both.  

Local information on domestic violence is available from: 
www.leedsinitiative.org/safer. 

Sharing confidential information  

The agreed key principles for the receipt and transfer of person-
identifiable information concerning vulnerable adults are based on the 
Report on the Review of Patient-identifiable Information from the 
Caldicott Committee (1997) and on the Bichard Inquiry Report (2004).  

The principles for sharing information across partners agencies in Leeds 
are set out in the Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board, 
Memorandum of Understanding. This is attached at Appendix 6.  

Information should be shared in a manner consistent with the 
framework provided by the Data Protection Act 1998, the overarching 
Leeds Interagency Protocol for Sharing Information (www.leeds.gov.uk) 
and  in relation to confidential personal information consistent with the 
Caldicott principles outlined below: 

Formal justification of purpose 

Information transferred only when absolutely necessary 

Only the minimum required 

Need to know access controls 

All to understand their responsibilities 

Comply with and understand the law 

Equality and diversity

A fundamental principle within safeguarding adults work in one of 
ensuring equality of access and treatment for all. The Leeds 
Safeguarding Adults Partnership and Board supports the rights of all 
adults to equality of opportunity, to retain their independence, 
wellbeing and choice, and to be able to live their lives free from abuse, 
neglect and discrimination.  

It is a key role of all those working to safeguard adults to promote 
equality of opportunity and eliminating discrimination in respect of adult 
social care services. 

Leeds aspires to be a city of equal opportunity, where everyone has a 
fair chance and people from all backgrounds take part in community 
life, creating a society that is varied, vibrant and proud.   

For further information about equality and diversity in Leeds see: 
http://www.leeds.gov.uk/Community_and_living/
Equality_and_diversity.aspx.  

13
Page 113



P
a
r
t 1

 

Discrimination 

It is unlawful for a person to discriminate on racial grounds against 
another. This is set out in the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000. 
The Act defines racial grounds as including race, colour, nationality or 
ethnic or national origins.   

Hate crime is any criminal offence committed against a person or 
property that is motivated by an offender's hatred of someone because 
of their race, colour, ethnic origin, nationality or national origins, 
religion, gender or gender identity, sexual orientation or disability.  

“Hatred is a strong term that goes beyond simply causing offence or 
hostility.” (Home Office).  

For more information, see the Equality and Human Rights Commission 
website: www.equalityhumanrights.com and the Home Office website: 
www.homeoffice.gov.uk.

1.9 Commissioning services

It is essential that those commissioning services follow the principles 
set out in this policy and use data provided through safeguarding adults 
work to inform their decisions.  

Registered health and social care providers 

Provider organisations registered with national regulators are required 
under the relevant Regulations and National Minimum Standards to 
take steps to safeguard and promote the welfare of service users.  

Regulations and national minimum standards place obligations on 
registered providers to safeguard and promote the health and welfare 
of service users. Individual provider policies and procedures should be 
checked for consistency with the wider Leeds policies and procedures.  

Commissioning health, social care and related services 

Commissioners are expected to ensure appropriate responsiveness and 
capacity to mitigate risk and safeguard the users of services. Joint 
strategic plans will be in place to deal with failing and closing regulated 
care settings. The commissioning of early intervention support services 
has to be seen as a wider mechanism for a discernable, sustainable 
increase in the reporting of incidence of abuse and neglect and a 
satisfactory closure to almost all of the cases. 

There are a range of other organisations and services that may come 
into contact with vulnerable adults, for example educational providers, 
leisure centres, libraries, public transport providers, taxi firms, Trading 
Standards, etc.  

Commissioners, regulators and licensing bodies of such services should 
ensure that employers implement appropriate safeguards and 
responses to safeguarding adults matters.  

14
Page 114



P
a
r
t 1

 
1.10 Other issues 

This policy and procedures has been intentionally prepared to cover all 
situations. As such it is recognised that most topics are covered without 
specific reference to particular user groups or issues relevant to smaller 
groups of people – users and practitioners.  

In this section references are provided to additional materials with 
particular relevance to particular user groups or issues relevant to 
smaller groups of people.  

Exploitation  

Prostitution of vulnerable adults unable to consent to sexual relations is 
a form of exploitation. Informed consent may be compromised for a 
variety of reasons (for example through mental health problems or 
learning disability) and the vulnerable adults involved must be viewed 
as potential victims of abuse. The involvement of an adult who is 
unable to consent in prostitution, whether a male or female, is abuse in 
itself and must be responded to accordingly.  

This exploitation takes the form of the exchange of sexual activities by 
these vulnerable adults without the ability to consent for commodities 
such as money, drink, drugs, shelter, protection, accommodation etc, 
and is often perpetrated by an adult through coercion, violence or 
threats of violence.  

Further information on the definition, legal position, recognition and 
response to such situations is available at:  

‘Worlds forever apart? Using vulnerable adult protection 
policies to deliver better health and social services to street 
prostitutes’ by Michael Clark and Sandra Squires, Journal of 
Adult Protection, June 2005.  

‘Vulnerable Adults Involved in Prostitution’—The Coordinate 
Prostitution Strategy published by the Home Office provides a 
framework for communities to tackle street prostitution and 
all forms of commercial sexual exploitation. 

Sexual activity and adults with reduced or no capacity  

The issue of sexual activity involving users with impaired capacity is 
one which is potentially complex for a range of reasons, to do with 
protection and the promotion of human rights.  

There are a number of sources of further information and guidance 
which are available to help practitioners and managers. These include:  

Home office leaflet on the Sexual Offences Act 2003  

Setting the Boundaries (Home Office). 

Forced marriages

Forced marriage is an abuse of human rights and falls within the 
definition of adult abuse. The Foreign and Commonwealth Office has 

15
Page 115



P
a
r
t 1

 

issued draft guidance entitled ‘Young people and vulnerable adults 
facing forced marriage—practice guidance for social workers’.  

The guidance relates to action that may be taken in this country and 
overseas to protect young people and vulnerable adults from the crimes 
and abuses of human rights associated with forced marriage.  

The Forced Marriage Unit (FMU) is a joint Home and Foreign Office unit. 
It is the Government’s central unit dealing with forced marriage 
casework, policy and projects.  

The FMU provides confidential information and assistance to potential 
victims and concerned professionals. It works with partners both in the 
UK and overseas to ensure that all appropriate action is taken to 
prevent a forced marriage taking place. The FMU also provides support 
and information to individuals who have already been forced to marry. 
All caseworkers in the Unit have experience of the cultural, social and 
emotional issues surrounding forced marriage. 

Details of how to contact the Forced Marriage Unit are as follows: 

Forced Marriage Unit (Monday to Friday from 9am to 5pm): 
Room G/55 Old Admiralty Building Whitehall, SW1A 2PA. 
Phone 020 7008 0151; email fmu@fco.gov.uk; web 
www.fco.gov.uk/forcedmarriage.

Trading standards  

Some vulnerable adults are at risk of exploitation by others. Helping 
vulnerable consumers when being pressurised by cold calling 
businesses and rogue traders is a high priority for Leeds Trading 
Standards Service. Doorstep crime can be the fish seller offering the 
deal of the week, the road surfacer who has ‘a bit left over from a 
council contract’ or the bogus utilities person.  

This assistance is delivered in a variety of ways:  

Targeted education and advice, e.g. talks to carers, lunch 
clubs and groups.  

Advising consumers and carers of current issues, e.g. email 
alerts.

Making sure banks and post offices know what we do so that 
we can share any concerns about financial abuse. 

Responding to doorstep crime complaints from vulnerable 
consumers with an appropriate graded response. 

Targeting of rogue traders and taking appropriate 
enforcement action.  

Assistance in adult protection strategy meetings.  

Promoting the formation of ‘no cold-calling zones’ with partner 
agencies and residents.  

16
Page 116



P
a
r
t 1

 
A ‘buy with confidence’ scheme that helps to prevent people 
being conned by rogue traders.  

West Yorkshire Trading Standards service can be contacted on 0845 
404 0506 (8.30am—6.30pm Monday to Friday, 9am—1pm Saturday). 

2. Prevention and recognition

The recognition of safeguarding needs and  the prevention of abuse 
must be the goal of everyone concerned with the wellbeing of 
vulnerable adults. Everyone in contact with vulnerable adults, carers, 
professionals and the public have a vital role in preventing avoidable 
harm.  

There is a wide range of ways in which carers, formal and informal, 
individuals and the wider public can contribute to the prevention of 
abuse. Early and prompt recognition of safeguarding concerns and 
knowing what to do in these circumstances are vital components. 

2.1 Anticipatory risk

The starting point for protecting vulnerable adults is an understanding 
those features in which safeguarding concerns could arise. 

What is abuse? 

How abuse is defined and examples of the form it can take are outlined 
in the policy and definitions section.  

When might an individual experience harm? 

Research has highlighted some of the elements involved. The presence 
of one, or more, of these elements does not automatically imply that a 
safeguarding concern will exist, but may increase the likelihood.  

The individual 

Poor communication skills 

History of falls and/or minor injuries 

Physical and/or emotional dependency on others 

Mental health needs, especially moderate or severe dementia 

Rejection of help 

Aggression 

Self-injurious behaviour 

History of repeatedly making allegations of abuse 

High level of dependency on others to meet their care needs 

Substance misuse 

Previous history of violent relationships within the family or 
social networks. 

17
Page 117



P
a
r
t 1

 

The environment 

Overcrowding 

Poor or insecure living conditions 

Poor management and/or high staff turnover/insufficient staff. 

Relationships (in particular with carers) 

Unequal power relationships 

Increased dependency of vulnerable adult 

Multiple dependency within the family or social networks 

Multi-generational family structure where conflicts of personal 
interests and loyalties may exist 

Role reversal or significant change in the relationship between 
the vulnerable adult and carer  

History of abuse within the family 

Significant levels of stress on the carer 

Isolation of the carer, due to the demands of caring, leading 
to a lack of practical and emotional support  

Lack of understanding about the vulnerable adult’s condition, 
resulting in inappropriate care  

Dependency on the vulnerable adult 

Difficult or challenging behaviour by the vulnerable adult 
which the carer finds intolerable or stressful 

History of the carer being abused or being a perpetrator 

The carer feels exploited, resentful, angry or guilty 

Financial difficulties 

Illness or disability of the carer 

Ignorance of appropriate care responses, e.g. dissuasion from 
wandering.

Who might perpetrate harm? 

Those who abuse are not confined to any section of society, and may 
be people who hold a position of trust, power or authority in relation to 
a vulnerable adult. A person who abuses may be:  

A spouse, relative or member of the person’s social network  

A carer, i.e. someone who is engaged in supporting or caring 
for a vulnerable adult 

A member of staff, proprietor or service manager 

A member of a recognised professional group 

18
Page 118



P
a
r
t 1

 
A volunteer or member of a community group such as a place 
of worship or social club 

A vulnerable adult themselves 

A neighbour, member of the public or stranger. 

Safeguarding concerns between vulnerable adults  

Vulnerable adults may cause harm one another. Research has shown 
that where this kind of abuse is ignored or not addressed appropriately, 
the victims may suffer mental health problems, low self esteem and 
may also become perpetrators of abuse against others.  

Agencies and services, which provide support to vulnerable adults who 
present a wide range of challenging behaviours, have a responsibility to 
protect them from abuse as well as preventing them from abusing other 
vulnerable adults. It is important the needs of the alleged abuser are 
taken into consideration. All professionals working with vulnerable 
adults need to be alert to early signs of bullying or other behaviours 
and respond/intervene appropriately at an early stage as a preventative 
measure.   

Investigating managers should take into account the individual 
circumstances when considering the level of response.  

Where might the need for safeguarding arise? 

This can take place in any situation including:  

where the vulnerable adult lives, whether alone or with 
someone else  

within care homes providing nursing or personal care, or day 
care settings 

in hospital 

in educational (college) settings 

in custodial situations 

where support services are being provided 

public places 

Understanding the vulnerable adult’s environment is extremely 
important because exploitation, deception, misuse of authority, 
intimidation or coercion may impair or influence a vulnerable adult 
making his or her own decisions. In some circumstances it may be 
important for the vulnerable adult to be away from the sphere of 
influence of the abusive person or the setting, in order to be able to 
make a free choice about how to proceed.  

19
Page 119



P
a
r
t 1

 

2.2 Patterns

Putting together the who, where and why of abuse helps to understand 
some of the typical patterns of abuse which are seen: these vary and 
reflect very different dynamics. They include:  

Serial abusing in which the perpetrator seeks out and 
‘grooms’ vulnerable adults over a period of time. Sexual 
abuse usually falls into this pattern, as do some forms of 
financial abuse. 

Long-term abuse in the context of an on-going family 
relationship such as domestic violence between spouses or 
generations.  

Situational abuse, which arises because pressures have built 
up and/or because of difficult or challenging behaviour.  

Neglect of a person’s needs because those around him or her 
are not able to be responsible for their care, e.g.: the carer 
has difficulties attributable to debt, alcohol, mental health 
problems or learning disabilities.  

Institutional abuse such as poor care standards, lack of 
positive responses to needs, rigid routines, inadequate 
staffing and insufficient knowledge base within the service.  

Irrelevant or unacceptable ‘treatments’ or programmes which 
include sanctions or punishments such as withholding food 
and drink, seclusion, unnecessary and unauthorised use of 
control and restraint or over medication.  

Prevention or failure to allow access to healthcare, dentistry, 
prostheses.  

Misappropriation of benefits and/or use of persons’ money by 
others.  

Fraud or intimidation in connection with wills, property or 
other assets.  

Failure of agencies to address racist and discriminatory 
attitudes, behaviour and practice.  

Violence.  

2.3 Indicators

Indicators are the suspicious signs and symptoms which draw attention 
to the fact that something is wrong. The presence of one or more 
indicators does not confirm abuse.  

However, a cluster of several indicators may reveal a potential for 
abuse, and a consequent need for further assessment. In reality, an 
abusive situation is likely to involve indicators from a number of these 

20
Page 120



P
a
r
t 1

 
headings. The lists of indicators are not exhaustive and need to be used 
as a tool in the assessment of vulnerability and risk.  

Indicators of discrimination  

lack of respect shown to an individual  

signs of a sub-standard service offered to an individual  

repeated exclusion from rights afforded to citizens such as 
health, education, employment, criminal justice and civic 
status  

failure to follow the agreed care plans can result in the 
vulnerable adult being placed at risk.  

Indicators of physical harm 

any injury not fully explained by the history given  

injuries inconsistent with the lifestyle of the vulnerable adult  

bruises and/or welts on face, lips, mouth, torso, arms, back, 
buttocks, thighs  

clusters of injuries forming regular patterns or reflecting the 
shape of an article  

burns, especially on soles, palms or back; from immersion in 
hot water, friction burns, rope or electric appliance burns  

multiple fractures  

lacerations or abrasions to mouth, lips, gums, eyes, external 
genitalia  

marks on body, including slap marks, finger marks  

injuries at different stages of healing  

medication misuse. 

Indicators of sexual abuse  

significant change in sexual behaviour or attitude  

pregnancy in a woman who is unable to consent to sexual 
intercourse  

wetting or soiling  

poor concentration  

vulnerable adult appears withdrawn, depressed, stressed  

unusual difficulty or sensitivity in walking or sitting  

torn, stained or bloody underclothing  

bruises, bleeding, pain or itching in genital area  

sexually transmitted diseases, urinary tract or vaginal 
infection, love bites  

21
Page 121



P
a
r
t 1

 

bruising to thighs or upper arms  

self-harming behaviour.  

Indicators of psychological harm 

change in appetite  

low self esteem, deference, passivity, and resignation  

unexplained fear, defensiveness, ambivalence  

emotional withdrawal  

sleep disturbance  

self-harming behaviour.  

Indicators of financial harm 

unexplained sudden inability to pay bills or maintain lifestyle  

unusual or inappropriate bank account activity  

Lasting Power of Attorney or Enduring Power of Attorney 
obtained when the vulnerable adult is unable to comprehend 
and give consent  

withholding money  

recent change of deeds or title of property  

unusual interest shown by family or others in the vulnerable 
adult’s assets

person managing financial affairs is evasive or uncooperative.  

Indicators of neglect  

physical condition of the vulnerable adult is poor, e.g. bed 
sores, unwashed, ulcers  

clothing in poor condition, e.g. unclean, wet, ragged  

inadequate physical environment  

inadequate diet  

untreated injuries or medical problems  

inconsistent or reluctant contact with health or social care 
agencies

failure to engage in social interaction  

malnutrition when not living alone  

inadequate heating  

failure to give prescribed medication  

poor personal hygiene.  

22
Page 122



P
a
r
t 1

 
Indicators of institutional abuse

inappropriate or poor care  

misuse of medication  

restraint methods  

sensory deprivation, e.g. denial of use of spectacles or 
hearing aid

lack of respect shown to the vulnerable adult  

denial of visitors or phone calls  

restricted access to toilet or bathing facilities  

restricted access to appropriate medical or social care  

failure to ensure appropriate privacy or personal dignity  

lack of flexibility and choice, e.g. mealtimes and bedtimes, 
choice of food  

lack of personal clothing or possessions  

lack of privacy  

lack of adequate procedures, e.g. for medication, financial 
management  

controlling relationships between staff and service users  

poor professional practice  

high levels of abuse between service users  

high turnover of staff or large numbers of agency or 
temporary staff.  

2.4 What can be done to reduce risk for vulnerable 

people?

Informal carers  

In the vast majority of instances, informal carers are the are at the 
front line of ensuring that vulnerable adults are protected from abuse 
and as such they should be supported and aided in this task.  

Carers are entitled to an assessment of their needs in their own right. 
In a smaller number of situations it is informal carers who present a 
risk to the vulnerable adult. Sometimes by reacting inappropriately to 
the care situation they face. In many cases it is understood that no 
deliberate harm is intended and the solution is to offer assistance.  

It is important to ensure that informal carers are made fully aware of 
the danger of abuse, the warning signs and indicators, and how they 
can get advice and help when needed. What advice and assistance the 
informal carer may need will depend on the risks faced by the 

23
Page 123



P
a
r
t 1

 

vulnerable adult as shown by the care assessment and other similar 
processes. For example, a young vulnerable adult living in the 
community will face different risks to an older service user attending a 
day centre.  

A starting point for all informal carers will be ensuring that they are 
made aware of the Leeds Multi-Agency Policy and Procedures for 
Safeguarding Adults and any provider organisation policy and 
procedures.  

Other sources of advice for carers are available on the website at: 
www.leedssafeguardingadults.org.uk. 

In instances where an informal carer presents a risk to the vulnerable 
adult, it is the responsibility of assessors and provider organisations to 
do whatever is needed to reduce the risk to ensure the safety of the 
vulnerable adult.  

Documenting discussion with the vulnerable adult concerning their 
wishes is imperative. Likewise a full care and risk assessment is central 
to understanding how best to safeguard the adult.  

Direct payments and individual budgets 

Anyone who is purchasing his or her own services through the direct 
payments and individual budgets system and the relatives of such a 
person should be made aware of the arrangements for the 
management of safeguarding activity in their area so that they may 
access help and advice through the appropriate channels.  

Care managers, who play a role in direct payments, could be asked to 
help users who are at risk of abuse.  

Because the national POVA register does not currently routinely cover 
employees recruited by service users there is potentially a heightened 
risk of those posing a danger to vulnerable adults using this route to 
avoid detection. Service users should be made aware of this and 
advised to use an “umbrella” body to ensure that a Criminal Records 
Bureau check is completed on their behalf.  

The Independent Safeguarding Authority (ISA) will also be available 
from October 2009 and all adults in receipt of Direct payments and 
Individual budgets will be encouraged to use the service.    

Further details about direct payments, individual budgets and self 
directed care generally can be accessed through the Department of 
Health website (www.dh.gov.uk).  

Formal carers, professionals and managers

There is a responsibility both on staff and those responsible for the 
practice of staff and volunteers, in terms of management and 
supervision, to ensure that they are safe to work with vulnerable 
adults.

This means that all the processes and checks surrounding who works 

24
Page 124



P
a
r
t 1

 
with vulnerable adults and how they work must incorporate the 
avoidance of abuse including:  

how staff are recruited 

the policies and procedures staff work to; 

how staff are inducted and trained, especially concerning 
professional standards, policy and procedures and the 
possibility of abuse  

how staff are supervised and supported. 

Managers, agencies and professions share responsibility for ensuring  
that staff are fit for work, whether as a home carer, residential worker, 
nurse, social worker or solicitor. Ensuring that those working in the 
caring professions are suitable to work with vulnerable people is as a 
high priority and recent years have seen the development of a number 
of national initiatives in this area, such as:  

The Protection of Vulnerable Adults (POVA) scheme  

Registration with the General Social Care Council  

Checks by the Criminal Records Bureau. 

In October 2009 the Independent Safeguarding Authority (ISA) will be 
established as set out in the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006. 
The new Vetting and Barring Scheme, which will be operated by the 
ISA, will have a major impact on the recruitment and monitoring 
practices of people working or volunteering with vulnerable adults and 
children. 

Increased safeguards will come into effect from 12th October 2009. 
Around five million more jobs and voluntary positions—including most 
National Health Service (NHS) jobs—will be covered by the barring 
arrangements, meaning that safeguarding protection is extended to 
many more vulnerable people. 

Additional safeguards starting in October are: 

Reduction of red tape—two barring lists will be administered 
by a single organisation, the Independent Safeguarding 
Authority (ISA), rather than the three lists currently 
maintained by two different Government departments: 
Protection Of Children Act (POCA), Protection of Vulnerable 
Adults (PoVA) and List 99; 

Introduction of ‘regulated activities’—people included in the 
new barred lists by the ISA will be barred from a much wider 
range of jobs and activities than has been the case under 
previous arrangements. This is particularly so in areas of work 
with vulnerable adults such as the NHS; 

A new duty to share information—employers, social services 
and professional regulators will have to notify the ISA of 

25
Page 125



P
a
r
t 1

 

relevant information so individuals who pose a threat to 
vulnerable groups can be identified and barred from working 
with these groups; and 

New criminal offences—it will become a crime for a barred 
individual to seek or undertake work with vulnerable groups; 
and for employers knowingly to take them on. 

Once the scheme is fully rolled out, it will be illegal to hire someone in 
regulated activity who is not registered, and has therefore not been 
checked by, the ISA. The new scheme will cover employees and 
volunteers in the education, care and health industries, affecting some 
11.3 million people.  

From July 2010 all new entrants to roles working with vulnerable 
groups and those switching jobs to a new provider within these sectors 
will be able to register with the Vetting and Barring Scheme and be 
assessed by the ISA. Employers will be able to check registration status 
online and will be able to subscribe to be notified if an employee’s 
registration status changes. 

Further information about the scheme can be found at: www.isa-
gov.org.uk. 

It is the responsibility of managers and agencies to invoke and 
cooperate with the current schemes and the Vetting and Barring 
Scheme when it is introduced to the fullest extent. It is the 
responsibility of local managers to monitor performance and to 
intervene if risks exist.  

If, however, managers do not take this responsibility seriously, then it 
is the responsibility of peers and others involved to take action using 
agencies’ whistle blowing and safeguarding procedures. Many 
professions also have a code of conduct, or similarly named documents, 
which set out good practice for the profession. By definition, action in 
default of the code of conduct involving a vulnerable adult may 
constitute abuse.  

Other vulnerable adults 

Although vulnerable adults will vary in their ability to understand risk, 
most can be helped to greater awareness of how to better safeguard 
themselves.  

Helping vulnerable adults to safeguard themselves has to start from an 
understanding of the kinds of risks they may face and their current 
ability to protect themselves. This is a matter of asking some basic 
questions for each person with whom there is contact. 

What kind of risk might this vulnerable adult face?  

Where might the risk arise?  

Who may be a potential abuser of this vulnerable adult? 

26
Page 126



P
a
r
t 1

 
There are many ways in which vulnerable adults can be helped to 
reduce the risks they may face, including:  

Increased awareness of the fact of adult abuse and how and 
where it may happen and who can be an abuser (see, for 
example, ‘Keep Safe’ a booklet from the Home Office on 
personal safety).  

Understanding and skills related to how to avoid potentially 
abusive situations.  

Knowledge of what to do if an abusive situation arises: how to 
get help; how to report concern. 

Booklets explaining what abuse is and how to get help are available on 
the website at www.leedssafeguardingadults.org.uk. 

The public

Safeguarding is everyone’s business. In many instances the public have 
a vital role in safeguarding vulnerable adults through the prevention 
and detection of abuse. It is the responsibility of all agencies and 
professionals to play their part in ensuring that there is a good level of 
public awareness of safeguarding adults matters and how concerns can 
and should be reported.  

Leeds Safeguarding Adults Partnership Board and partnership staff have 
a key function in this area in terms of promotional materials and liaison 
with important organisations (for example financial institutions and 
voluntary organisations), but these initiatives should be supported by 
all those in contact with vulnerable adults, e.g. through links with 
neighbours and friends, local services and shops and other people in 
contact with vulnerable adults.  

Information, advice and support for carers and families is available 
from a variety of charitable organisations.  

27
Page 127



Page 128



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board Adult Social Care 
 
Date:  29 July 2009 
 
Subject: Independence Wellbeing and Choice Inspection Action Plan: May 2009 
 

        
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board with 
information relating to the performance of Adult Social Services against the action 
plan, formulated from the findings of the Independence Wellbeing and Choice 
review undertaken by CSCI.  

 
1.2 On the 3rd of December the Executive Board received the Independence, Wellbeing 

and Choice report. Associated with the reports is an action plan defining targets for 
improvement by Adult Social Services in order to resolve the problems raised by the 
inspector. In response the Executive Board resolved that the report and associated 
plan be referred to Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) for their oversight of 
performance against the targets set out in the action plan. 

 
1.3 This matter was brought to the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board on the 10th of 

December 2008 for discussion. The board recommending that the Proposals 
Working Group (ASC) meet on a monthly basis to monitor overall progress of Adult 
Social Services performance against the objectives set out in the action plan and 
report directly to the Scrutiny Board. The Independence Wellbeing and Choice 
summary and progress reports were brought before the Proposals Working Group 
on the 20 July 2009. 

 
1.4 One representative from the Health Scrutiny Board was invited to sit on the 

Proposals Working Group. A nominee was not present at the working group 
meeting. 

 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

 

 

Originator: Sandra Newbould
  

Tel: 247 4792 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 129



 
 
1.5 Draft minutes from the Proposals Working Group 20 July 2009 are attached as 

appendix 1.  
 

1.6 The Independence Wellbeing and Choice Progress Report May 2009 is attached as 
appendix 2. This report reflects revised deadlines for some targets. The Care 
Quality Commission were consulted prior to deadline update.  

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board is asked to note the draft minutes from the 
Proposals Working Group and the summary and progress reports for May 2009. 

 
2.2 In addition, the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board  is specifically asked to: 
 
 

2.2.1 Consider the outcome of the May 2009 summary and progress report, 
commenting on any specific aspects included.  

2.2.2 Determine if there are any specific / further areas that require additional 
scrutiny by the Proposals Working Group. 

 
 
Background papers 

None 

Page 130



 

Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) 
Proposals Working Group 

 
20th July 2009, 3 p.m. 

Committee Room 5, Civic Hall, Leeds 
 

MINUTES 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Members: 
Cllr. Judith Chapman (JC) (Chair) 
Cllr Clive Fox (CF) 
Joy Fisher – Co – opted member  
 
Officers: 
Dennis Holmes (DH) Deputy Director Strategic Commissioning 
Sandra Newbould (SN) Principal Scrutiny Advisor 
 
Interests Declared – None 
 

NO. ITEM ACTION 

1 Attendance /Introductions /Apologies 
 
The above attendance was noted. 
 
Apologies were received from  - Sally Morgan (co-opted member) 
                                                    Cllr Penny Ewens       
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Received and Approved.   
 
Comments on the Minutes  
 
IWC plan Item 7.2 – The working group requested an update on progress with 
the serious case review. DH advised that one case had been concluded. 
Difficulties had been experienced getting a piece of evidence from an 
organisation for the 2nd case which was causing a delay. This he felt was not 
detrimental as feedback for training and development could be feedback in 
two phases. The 2nd phase being delivered once the case study had 
concluded. There are no sanctions to enforce the speedy delivery of the 
evidence required.  
 
Easycare – JF asked when an assessment is made when does sustainability 
a consideration. DH advised that there are various elements to the 
assessment including a risk assessment. Cases are also reviewed on a 
regular basis.  
 
  

 

Page 131



 

3 Independence Wellbeing and Choice Inspection Action Plan: May 2009 
 
DH provided an update on progress made since March 2009.  
 
Overdue Actions  
24.3 – JC asked if attainment of this target is likely to slip even though the 
target deadline had been moved. DH advised that only one element of the 
target had yet to be achieved and that related to the staff survey . A further 
report providing specific progress and delays in this area was requested by 
the Group for circulation. Deadline 21st August 2009 
 
Other  
2.3 – DH highlighted that although this action has a target date it will form core 
operations and will therefore continue as an action.  
 
JC requested a copy of Junes safeguarding board minutes for circulation. 
 
Overall the group re-iterated that they were pleased with progress made and 
sought some indication as to how this will reflect in the next CQC assessment. 
DH advised that although the result would be unknown for some time he 
remained optimistic.  
 
The wording of target 19.2 would be circulated to working group attendees as 
it was unclear on the hard copy reports.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DH 
 
 
 
 
 
DH 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SN 

4 Scoping Terms of Reference for inquiry ‘Supporting Working Age Adults 
with Severe and Enduring Mental Health Problems.’ 
 
The working group discussed aspects if the terms of reference having been 
advised that the inquiry would span four sessions commencing in September. 
The ASC Scrutiny Board previously agreed that working group arrangements 
will be put into place. 
 
Additional suggestions to be included in the terms of reference were as 
follows:  
 

• Mental Health and Homelessness 

• Integrated Services and how well they are integrated 

• Pre and post natal depression – the working group were advised that 
this would fall within the remit of the health board and therefore it was 
agreed that the Health Board would be requested to look at this . 

 
The ASC Board Chair and Principal Scrutiny Advisor will undertake further 
work to finalise the terms of reference to span the four sessions available. The 
full terms of reference will be presented to the ASC Board in September for 
approval. 
 
Membership for this working group is required.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SN 
 
SN 
 

 
5 

Future meeting dates 
 
29th September 2009 – 10am – 12 – committee room to be confirmed 

 
 
SN 

 

Page 132



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

2
.3

 (
a
)

1
1
.1

2
.3

 (
(b

) 
2
0
.4

 (
a
)

2
4
.3

S
te

v
e
 H

u
m

e

1
.8

9
.8

1
.9

 (
b
)

1
1
.2

 (
a
)

2
.1

1
9
.1

2
.5

2
3
.1

3
.2

 (
b
)

2
4
.1

3
.3

 (
a
)

2
4
.4

9
.6

3
.3

 (
b
)

1
1
.2

 (
b
)

3
.4

2
3
.2

A
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

. 
N

e
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
.

T
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

t 
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

s
 

th
e
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
s
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

fo
r 

L
e
e
d
s

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

x
t 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
ri

o
d

S
p
e
c
if
y
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

d
u
lt
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
.

C
re

a
te

 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 a

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
p
s
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 &

 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 (

s
e
e
 R

e
c
. 
1
4
).

S
p
e
c
if
y
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

d
u
lt
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
.

A
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 A

 c
le

a
r 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
w

h
a
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
is

 o
n
 o

ff
e
r 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
.

A
g
re

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
 f
a
c
to

rs

L
e

e
d

s
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
, 

W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
  

a
n

d
 C

h
o

ic
e

 I
n

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
: 

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt
 M

a
y

 2
0

0
9

T
h

is
 P

e
ri

o
d

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 t

h
is

 R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
ri

o
d

T
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

T
h

is
 P

e
ri

o
d

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

 t
h

is
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

ri
o

d

N
e
x
t 

P
e
ri

o
d

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
: 
- 

a
d
u
lt
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
- 

in
te

ra
g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

. 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
re

c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 
- 

c
a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t:
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l,
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
.

A
g
re

e
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 f
o
r 

J
o
in

t 
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
, 
a
n
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

g
a
rd

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
, 
i.
e
.,
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 u

n
it
,

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
, 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 l
e
a
d
s
, 
e
tc

E
n
s
u
re

 t
e
a
m

s
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
lo

c
a
lit

y
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 A

S
C

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 

is
o
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
o
lk

it
 w

h
ic

h
 s

p
e
c
if
y
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

Q
A

 o
u
tl
in

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 a
re

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l.
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h
a
m

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
jo

in
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
.

(D
ia

g
n

o
s
ti

c
 p

h
a
s
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

.)
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 c

ir
c
le

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
te

a
m

s
 a

re
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

A
 m

o
n
th

ly
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 f
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
.

B
a
s
e
lin

e
s
 a

re
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 

ti
m

e
ly

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 3

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

c
h
a
ir
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 t
o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

ll 
c
a
s
e
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

A
g
re

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
 f
a
c
to

rs
.

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 d
u

e
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 b
y

 t
h

e
 n

e
x

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

ri
o

d

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 1

0
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

p
o
s
ts

 w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

c
o
a
c
h
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
u
re

 q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 o

n
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 a

d
u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 t
e
a
m

s

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
y
'0

9

Page 133



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 m

e
t.

A
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l

 A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 i
n

 p
in

k
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

f 
L

e
a

d
 I

n
s
p

e
c
to

r,
 T

im
 W

ill
is

. 

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

A
ll 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
is

 I
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
d

 I
n

s
p

e
c
to

r 
(T

im
 W

ill
is

) 
a

n
d

 a
re

 n
o

w
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 m

o
n

th
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 (
h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 i
n

 p
in

k
).

 T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 a
ls

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

a
c
ti
o

n
 1

9
.2

 (
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 u
n

ti
l 
A

u
g

'0
9

) 
to

 i
n

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
  

th
e

 a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 w

o
rd

in
g

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
to

r.
 

A
ll 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

g
o

ld
e

n
 t

h
re

a
d

 w
h

ic
h

 r
u

n
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 e

a
c
h

 a
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
s
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
 i
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rc

o
n

n
e

c
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
s
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 m

o
re

 a
p

p
a

re
n

t.

- 
J
o

in
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 N
H

S
-L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
e

d
 e

.g
. 

 j
o

in
t 

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ti
n

g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
, 

p
ri
c
in

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

jo
in

t 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

- 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

A
S

C
 s

ta
ff

 i
s
 n

o
w

 w
e

ll 
u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 t

h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
.

- 
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 p

la
n

 a
re

 e
it
h

e
r 

in
 p

la
c
e

 o
r 

u
n

d
e

rg
o

in
g

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

- 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n

 p
o

s
t.

R
is

k
s

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
o

m
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h

t 
n

o
t 

b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

ti
m

e
 d

u
e

 t
o

:

- 
in

te
rd

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
ie

s
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
t 

a
 l
a

te
r 

d
a

te
 o

r

- 
W

h
ils

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 s

o
m

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

th
e

r 
is

s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 l
ig

h
t 

w
h

ic
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 w

o
rk

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
.

G
u

id
a
n

c
e
 o

n
  
R

A
G

 R
e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

E
it
h
e
r 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
o
n
 t
ra

c
k
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
/o

r 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ri
s
k
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 t
im

e
 a

n
d
/o

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

N
o
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 M
a
y
'0

9

Page 134



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

o
v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
.

o
v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 s
ta

ti
c
.

o
v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
n
g
.

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G
U

rg
e
n

c
y

P
la

n
 S

ta
rt

P
la

n
 F

in
is

h
A

c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

th
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 t

o
 

A
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 

b
y
 L

e
a
d

 

In
s
p

e
c
to

r

(T
im

 W
il
li
s
)

1
.1

M
u
lt
i-
A

g
e
n
c
y
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

m
e
e
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
te

c
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

a
d
u
lt
s
.

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
C

h
a
ir
 o

f 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

, 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 r

a
p
id

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
S

e
p
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8

A
ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 v

ia
  
w

ri
tt
e
n
 

M
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 o
f 
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 (

M
O

U
) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
 

b
y
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s
,

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
S

e
p
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
S

e
p
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

O
c
t-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
J
a
n
-0

9
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
 j
o
in

tl
y
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

J
a
n
-0

9
J
a
n
-1

0

A
ll 

k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

la
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 

a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 &

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 

0
9
/1

0
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
e
d
.

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

la
n
 i
s
 g

o
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

c
le

a
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

x
e
c
. 

b
o
a
rd

 o
n
 2

2
 J

u
ly

'0
9
.

X
-r

e
f 
8
.4

 

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

S
e
p
-0

8
D

e
c
-0

8
D

e
c
-0

8

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 v

ia
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 p

o
s
t 

S
e
p
t 
0
8
 b

y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
o
r.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
A

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 d
e
fi
n
e
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

a
n
d
 C

h
ie

f 
o
ff
ic

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

1
.5

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 
fr

o
n
tl
in

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

R
o
ll 

o
u
t 
to

 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 a

 s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
a
s
 a

n
 

a
id

e
 m

e
m

o
ir
e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
o
r 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
O

c
t-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
J
a
n
-0

9

C
a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
u
d
it
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
u
p
e
rv

is
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 c

a
s
e
 f
ile

 

n
o
te

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
J
im

 T
ra

y
n
o
r,

 P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
J
a
n
e
 M

o
ra

n
, 

G
ra

h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 
S

te
v
e
 

B
a
rd

s
le

y
 (

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

),
  
  
H

ila
ry

 P
a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

1
.6

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 e

q
u
ip

p
e
d
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 d

o
 

s
o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.

E
a
c
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 o

n
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
O

c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
D

e
c
-0

8

A
ll 

fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

 t
e
a
m

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 o

n
 

ro
le

s
 &

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 (

D
e
p
u
ty

 

H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

O
c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

0
9

A
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 s
h
o
w

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
in

d
in

g
s
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

O
c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

0
9

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
s
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 u
rg

e
n

tl
y
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 a

re
 i
n

v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

d
, 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
s
 d

e
v
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 w
h

e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
, 
W

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 &

 C
h

o
ic

e
 I
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

M
A

Y
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
J
im

 T
ra

y
n
o
r,

 P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
J
a
n
e
 M

o
ra

n
, 

S
te

v
e
 B

a
rd

s
le

y
 G

ra
h
a
m

 

H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
 (

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

1
.7

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 &

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d

L
e
tt
e
r 

to
 a

ll 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
e
a
m

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 o
u
tl
in

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 v

ia
 

th
e
 l
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

  
S

tu
a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 -

 

S
tr

ic
k
la

n
d
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3

R
e
v
ie

w
 2

0
 s

a
m

p
le

d
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

a
s
e
s
 b

y
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
to

 a
s
c
e
rt

a
in

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
.

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s
,

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s
,

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

s
 w

o
rk

.
1
.3

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d
.

1
.4

S
ta

ff
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
v
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 m

in
im

u
m

 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

1
.2

M
u
lt
i-
A

g
e
n
c
y
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

m
e
e
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
te

c
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

a
d
u
lt
s
.

T
h
e
 T

O
R

 o
f 
th

e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 a
re

re
-w

ri
tt
e
n
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
.

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re

is
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 n

e
w

 M
O

U
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 e

q
u
ip

p
e
d
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

a
d
u
lt
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 Q

A
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
. 
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 &

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

3

Page 135



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

O
c
t-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
F

e
b
-0

9
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

J
a
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9

F
u
tu

re
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

6
 s

e
n
io

r 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
n
o
w

. 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 o

th
e
r 

4
 p

o
s
ts

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
.

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 r

o
u
n
d
 w

ill
  
b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
'0

9
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 3

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
c
h
a
ir
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 t
o
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

ll 
c
a
s
e
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
O

c
t-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
F

e
b
-0

8

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d
.

 H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
) 

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 

p
o
s
ts

.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
J
a
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9
F

u
tu

re
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

A
n
d
re

w
 W

a
ts

o
n

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
)

In
te

rv
ie

w
 p

a
n
e
l 
a
g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
rt

 l
is

ti
n
g
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 

o
n
 8

th
 J

u
n
e
'0

9
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

2
.1

E
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
o
s
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

.

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 a

s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
:

- 
a
d
u
lt
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

- 
in

te
ra

g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

- 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
re

c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 -

 c
a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t:
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l,
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
O

c
t-

0
8

J
u
n
-0

9

A
 c

le
a
r 

b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

is
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
.

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

T
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

fi
le

 a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
T

e
s
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
. 
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 i
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
lla

te
d
.

W
o
rk

 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

o
l 
fo

r 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 
S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

e
n
e
ri
c
 

a
d
u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

..
 

A
n
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 r

is
k
 e

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 u

p
o
n
.

It
  
is

 p
la

n
n
e
d
  
to

 l
in

k
 a

ll 
ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 i
n
to

 a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
e
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R

is
k
 

W
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 o

n
 1

0
th

 J
u
ly

.T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r'
0
9
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
5
.1

 X
-r

e
f 
5
.1

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

O
c
t-

0
8

M
a
r 

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
 s

y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 a

s
s
u
ri
n
g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

is
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
 i
n
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

O
c
t-

0
8

M
a
r-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
. 
A

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

F
e
b
-0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

A
 m

o
n
th

ly
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 f
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

F
e
b
-0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

B
a
s
e
lin

e
s
 a

re
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

F
e
b
-0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
.

W
o
rk

 a
ro

u
n
d
 E

S
C

R
 A

n
a
ly

ti
c
s
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 i
n
-d

e
p
th

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
d
a
ta

 d
o
w

n
 t
o
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

e
r 

le
v
e
l,
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

p
ic

k
in

g
 u

p
 p

a
tt
e
rn

s
 a

n
d
 t
re

n
d
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

. 

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
fi
le

 

A
u
d
it
 t
o
o
l.

W
o
rk

 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 t
o
o
l 
to

 l
o
o
k
 

a
t 
b
o
th

 e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 a
n
d
 p

a
p
e
r 

fi
le

s
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 

b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

a
 s

e
t 
o
f 
q
u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
.

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
0
9
/1

0
 

A
 r

e
p
o
rt

  
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
  
th

e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

  
fi
g
u
re

s
 w

ill
 g

o
 

to
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 S

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 b

y
 3

0
th

 O
c
t'
0
9
. 

A
 s

h
o
rt

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
  
a
n
d
 o

u
tl
in

e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

ill
  
a
ls

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 3

0
th

 O
c
t'
0
9
.

A
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 t
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 D

M
T

 i
n
 2

3
 J

u
ly

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 6
: 

T
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

s
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 Q

u
a
li
ty

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 s

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

.

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
.3

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
a
u
d
it
s
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 

a
n
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 A

S
C

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 (

S
e
e
 1

.7
)

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
im

e
ly

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
.

1
.8

F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

re
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
d
 t
o
 c

o
a
c
h
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
o
:

- 
D

M
T

 B
o
a
rd

 (
m

o
n
th

ly
)

-O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

.

- 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 v
ia

  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 &

 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

u
b
g
ro

u
p

- 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 b

o
a
rd

S
e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 f
ro

n
tl

in
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

m
in

im
u

m
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
p

ra
c
ti

c
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

rd
in

g
 a

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 r
o

u
ti

n
e
ly

 i
n

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 a

d
u

lt
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
le

rt
s
.

 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
.2

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n
, 
  
  
C

h
ie

f 

O
ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

1
.9

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 1

0
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

p
o
s
ts

 w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

o
a
c
h
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
u
re

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 o

n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 a

d
u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 t
e
a
m

s
.

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

4

Page 136



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

O
c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

9
F

ro
n
tl
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

u
d
it
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 D

M
T

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

o
a
rd

. 
(s

e
e
 2

.3
)

A
g
re

e
d
 a

 j
o
in

e
d
 u

p
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

it
h
 L

P
F

T
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
L
e
a
d
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

O
c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

9
B

a
s
e
lin

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 s

h
o
w

 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

F
ile

 a
u
d
it
 t
o
o
l 
n
o
w

 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
it
ia

l 
te

s
t 
ru

n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 

a
n
d
 p

a
p
e
r 

fi
le

s
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

fi
le

s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
re

p
o
rt

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
'0

9
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

2
.5

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 c
a
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 a

re
 

c
re

a
ti
v
e
, 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
, 
in

fo
rm

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 

to
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 c

ir
c
le

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 -
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
.-

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
J
a
n
 0

9
J
u
n
-0

9

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 t
o
 m

in
im

u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 m

o
re

 c
re

a
ti
v
e
, 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 

in
te

ra
g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 Q

A
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
 

w
o
rk

. 
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 (

s
e
e
 1

.7
)

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 T

ra
y
n
o
r,

P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

,J
a
n
e
 M

o
ra

n
, 

G
ra

h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 
S

te
v
e
 

B
a
rd

s
le

y
  
  
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 C
P

A
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
.

A
 w

id
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
id

e
a
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
in

g
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
c
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

te
s
ti
n
g
 o

u
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
m

o
d
e
ls

 o
f 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 

C
ir
c
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

u
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 t
o
  
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 &

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
) 

a
n
d
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
).

 A
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is

  
b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 r

u
n
 a

 p
ilo

t 
q
u
a
lit

y
 

c
ir
c
le

 f
o
r 

c
a
re

, 
te

a
m

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 d
u
ri
n
g
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

'0
9
, 

b
a
s
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 c

a
s
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

2
.6

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

h
o
w

n
 t
o
 f
lo

w
 f
ro

m
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
A

u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 (

P
A

Q
A

) 
s
u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 w

it
h
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 k

e
y
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
J
u
l-
0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

0
9

A
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
 T

O
R

 d
e
fi
n
in

g
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

.

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

2
.7

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

h
o
w

n
 t
o
 f
lo

w
 f
ro

m
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

A
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 P

A
Q

A

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 m
a
d
e
. 
A

 r
e
p
o
rt

 

o
f 
th

is
 i
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
O

c
t-

0
8

J
u
n
-0

9
R

e
p
o
rt

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

.

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

A
u
d
it
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 1

5
th

 A
p
ri
l.
 T

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
d
a
ta

 r
e
p
o
rt

 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

1
5
th

 J
u
n
e
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
.

X
-r

e
f 
2
.1

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

S
ta

g
e
 1

: 
R

e
v
is

e
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
. 

O
c
t 
0
7

D
e
c
-0

8
D

e
c
-0

8
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

S
ta

g
e
 2

: 
R

a
ti
fy

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

ll 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s

D
e
c
 0

8
D

e
c
 0

9
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 r

a
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 f
ro

m
 1

7
th

 J
u
n
e
 a

n
d
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

0
9
/1

0
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

O
c
t-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
J
a
n
-0

9
P

ro
to

c
o
ls

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

J
a
n
 0

9
J
u
n
e
 0

9
M

a
r-

0
9

Q
A

 o
f 
c
a
s
e
 f
ile

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
/ 
4
 

O
c
t-

0
8

J
u
n
-0

9
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
In

it
ia

l 
ta

s
k
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
e
d
 .

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

Y
r 

 2

Q
tr

 1
J
u
n
 0

9
J
a
n
 1

0
S

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
.

2
.4

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
.

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s

a
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
ip

lin
e
s
.

A
g
re

e
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 f
o
r 

J
o
in

t 
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
, 
a
n
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

g
a
rd

 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
, 
ie

, 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 u

n
it
, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

s
a
fe

ty
, 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 l
e
a
d
s
, 
e
tc

.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

3
.3

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
is

s
u
e

s

a
n
d
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
.

S
p
e
c
if
y
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

d
u
lt
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
,

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

M
ik

e
 S

e
lls

 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
  
o
f 
p
e
e
r 

fi
le

 a
u
d
it
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t 
b
y
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

:

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 T

ra
y
n
o
r,

 P
h
il

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
J
a
n
e
 M

o
ra

n
, 

G
ra

h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 
S

te
v
e
 

B
a
rd

s
le

y
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

 D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
) 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
, 
e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
:

 -
 S

e
t 

o
u

t 
s
p

e
c
if

ic
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ra

b
le

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 s

ta
ff

 f
ro

m
 a

ll
 a

g
e
n

c
ie

s
.

 -
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

ts
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
p

ra
c
ti

c
e
. 

3
.1

3
.2

 A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

d
is

c
ip

lin
e
s

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

5

Page 137



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

4
.1

E
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
s
 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

S
c
o
p
e
 o

u
t 
a
t 
a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 
 S

e
e
 1

.6
, 
1
.7

 a
n
d
 1

.8
 a

b
o
v
e

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
/ 
4

O
c
t-

0
8

M
a
y
-0

9

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 f
u
n
d
 a

 p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 a

 m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

f 

a
d
u
lt
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
 

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

R
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

A
 s

e
t 
o
f 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

u
b
g
ro

u
p
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 p

u
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

, 
fi
rs

t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 5

 

J
u
n
e
. 
B

o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

/a
m

e
n
d
 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 1

5
 J

u
n
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

A
g
re

e
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

le
a
d
s
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
J
a
n
-0

9
M

a
y
-0

9
X

-r
e
f 
4
.1

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 3
/4

A
p
r 

0
9

S
e
p
 0

9
U

n
d
e
rw

a
y

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 3
/4

A
p
r 

0
9

S
e
p
 0

9
U

n
d
e
rw

a
y

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
p
r-

0
9

S
e
p
-0

9

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 k

e
y
 s

ta
ff

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 4

.1
 w

h
ic

h
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
l

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
h
o
w

 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 t
o
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
. 
 U

s
e
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
.

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 a

re
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
.

D
ra

ft
 v

is
io

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

M
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
. 
6
  
S

e
n
io

r 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 

d
u
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir
 d

a
y
 

to
 d

a
y
 w

o
rk

. 
X

-r
e
f 
1
.8

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
p
r-

0
9

S
e
p
-0

9
Y

r 
1
: 
9
0
%

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

.

A
p
r-

0
9

M
a
r 

1
0

Y
r 

2
: 
9
5
%

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 r
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 -

A
) 

D
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
te

 r
is

k
, 
m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
is

.

B
) 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
a
ro

u
n
d
 r

is
k
 a

n
d
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
.

C
) 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

g
re

e
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 

J
u
l-
0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
A

g
re

e
d
 S

e
p
t 

0
8

1
/ 
T

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 i
s
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

2
/ 
T

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 i
s
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 a
d
o
p
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

E
n
s
u
re

 f
in

a
l 
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

.

F
u
tu

re
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 

c
a
s
e
s
 &

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 a

re
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

s
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
th

e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

(s
e
e
 R

e
c
 1

.2
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

N
o
v
-0

8
M

a
y
-0

9
A

 p
ilo

t 
o
f 
tw

o
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d

M
a
r 

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9
F

in
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 7
: 

T
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
 a

d
u

lt
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 s
e
ri

o
u

s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 m
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 f

o
r 

s
h

a
ri

n
g

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 w
it

h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
.

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 c
o
n
d
u
c
ts

 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 u

s
in

g
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
is

e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
. 
 (

S
e
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 4

 &
 6

).

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
 &

 4

B
o
th

 S
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 

c
h
a
ir
e
d
. 
M

a
rg

a
re

t 
M

c
G

la
d
e
 (

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
E

x
p
e
rt

) 
w

ill
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n
te

ri
m

 r
e
p
o
rt

 b
y
  
0
3
/0

7
/0

9
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 5
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

le
rt

 t
o

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
ri

s
k
 f

a
c
to

rs
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 l
iv

e
 i
n

 s
it

u
a
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 c
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y
 p

la
n

s
 a

re
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
.

7
.2

T
h
e
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 &

 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

d
is

s
e
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

S
e
p
 0

9
S

e
p
-0

8

7
.1

T
h
e
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 &

 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 

d
is

s
e
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

E
n
s
u
re

 f
in

a
l 
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
  
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 i
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3

S
e
p
 0

8

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4

&

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 2

D
e
c
-0

8
S

e
p
-0

9

M
o
n
it
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 T

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
s

Y
r 

2
  
  
  
  
Q

tr
 

1
 &

 2

R
is

k
 f
a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 r
is

k
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s

A
ll 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 e

n
q
u
ir
y
 

a
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

ri
s
k
 

In
te

ra
g
e
n
c
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 
 A

 r
o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 t
ra

in
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 

m
e
t.
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
.

X
-r

e
f 
4
.1

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 &

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
) 

  
  
  
  
  
  
H

e
a
d
 o

f 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
  
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
,

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

R
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
e
 e

m
e
rg

in
g

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 t

ra
in

in
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 l
in

k
 t

h
is

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 s
e
t 

o
f 

m
in

im
u

m
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
 r

o
le

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 a

d
u

lt
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
.2

E
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
s
 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

4
.3

E
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
s
 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

a
n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

D
ra

ft
 v

e
rs

io
n
s
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 r

is
k
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

  
a
re

 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
-w

ri
tt
e
n
 b

y
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
. 

W
o
rk

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 o

n
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
o
ls

 b
y
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 e

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
. 

D
ra

ft
 v

e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 2

8
/0

7
/0

9
.

X
-r

e
f 
2
.1

5
.1

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

6

Page 138



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

8
.1

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 &

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

.

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

re
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 d
is

ti
n
c
t 
fo

rm
a
l 
d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
S

e
p
t 
0
8

O
c
t 
0
8

O
c
t 
0
8

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 c

le
a
r,

 t
ra

n
s
p
a
re

n
t 
a
n
d
 u

n
a
m

b
ig

u
o
u
s
 t
o
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

8
.2

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 &

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

.

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
J
u
n
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
N

o
v
 0

8
R

e
v
is

e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

a
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
/ 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
s
 &

 g
o
o
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 
a
ll 

s
u
b
 g

ro
u
p
s
 

h
a
v
e
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
m

.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
'0

9
.

X
-r

e
f 
to

 1
.3

 a
n
d
 8

.4

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 b

y
 a

 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 y

e
a
r.

X
-r

e
f 
to

 1
.3

 a
n
d
 8

.4

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

¼
ly

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 b

y

a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
(s

e
e
 R

e
c
 2

.3
).

A
w

a
it
in

g
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
0
9
/1

0
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 i
s
 o

p
e
n
 t
o
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 b

y
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c

a
re

rs
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 w

o
rk

 

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

8
.4

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
s
 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 G

o
o
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
n
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d

b
y
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
 r

a
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 

o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

(s
).

Y
r 

1
 Q

tr
 4

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
y
-0

9

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
ta

in
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

o
in

ts
 a

re
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 f
u
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
.

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

X
-r

e
f 
to

 8
.3

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

E
a
rl
y
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

r,
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

x
 5

0
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 t
o
 S

D
S

 m
o
d
e
l,
 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 t
e
s
t 
th

e
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 
p
la

c
e
. 
 A

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
fo

r 
fu

ll 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
 I
t 
is

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
ro

ll 
o
u
t 
fo

r 
n
e
w

 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
ill

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
. 
 D

M
T

 

re
c
e
iv

e
s
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
u
p
d
a
te

s
.

• 
 A

 p
a
p
e
r 

o
n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

a
rl
y
 E

I 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 R

A
S

 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 D

M
T

 o
n
 9

.0
7
.2

0
0
9
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 

u
p
d
a
te

 D
M

T
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
S

D
S

 a
n
d
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
d
e
la

y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
d
ir
e
c
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 e

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 

fu
tu

re
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
.

• 
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l,
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

 t
h
e
m

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
S

D
S

 a
n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 m

a
rk

e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 p

ri
c
in

g
 t
o
o
l 
fo

r 
in

 

h
o
u
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

• 
P

a
p
e
rs

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 C

L
T

  
o
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

ll 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd

 e
n
q
u
ir
y
 i
n
to

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

• 
E

x
p
e
rt

s
 b

y
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

t 
p
ro

je
c
t 
b
o
a
rd

, 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
ro

u
p
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
t 
u
p
 n

e
w

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 h

e
lp

lin
e
 t
o
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 q

u
e
ri
e
s
 f
ro

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

.

9
.2

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 t
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 f
o
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
ro

u
n
d
 I
B

 &
 D

P
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
 &

 4
O

c
t-

0
8

M
a
r-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

o
f

1
/ 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 

2
 /
 F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 T
a
rg

e
ts

:0
8
/0

9
 7

5
9
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
ts

, 
0
9
/1

0
 2

,4
1
7
 

re
c
ip

ie
n
ts

.

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
:4

3
%

 s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 

b
e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 D

P
. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
.

J
e
m

im
a
 S

p
a
rk

s
 (

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
5
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
a
d

u
lt

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
0
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 p
ro

m
o

te
 m

o
re

 a
m

b
it

io
u

s
, 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f

o
c
u

s
e
d

 c
a
re

 p
la

n
n

in
g

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
2
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
li
s
e
d

 c
a
re

 p
la

n
s
 u

ti
li
s
in

g
 d

ir
e
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

lw
a
y
s
 s

e
iz

e
d

3
0
%

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 s

h
o
w

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

s
e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

J
e
m

im
a
 S

p
a
rk

s
 (

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

Y
r 

1
 Q

tr
  
to

 

Y
r 

3
 Q

tr
 4

8
.3

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
s
 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 G

o
o
d
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
n
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d

b
y
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 9
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 m

o
re

 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
li
s
e
d

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
.

A
p
r-

0
8

M
a
r-

1
1

9
.1

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k

P
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
o
le

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n

th
ro

u
g
h
 S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 C

a
re

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 D

M
T

 (
S

U
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
B

o
a
rd

, 
T

e
a
m

 &
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 l
e
v
e
l)
.

S
e
p
-0

8
M

a
y
-0

9

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
E

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 

w
ill

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd

. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 p

la
n
, 

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 

y
e
a
r.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 8
: 

T
h

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 b
o

a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 i
ts

 l
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 r
o

le
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

.

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
/ 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

7

Page 139



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

9
.3

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k

J
o
in

 ‘
In

 C
o
n
tr

o
l' 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
O

c
t-

0
8

M
a
r 

0
9

O
c
t 
0
8

L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 j
o
in

e
d
 t
h
e
 ‘
in

 C
o
n
tr

o
l,
’ 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

J
e
m

im
a
 S

p
a
rk

s
 (

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
) 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

9
.4

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
re

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

p
e
rs

o
n
, 
in

 a
 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r,

 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

m
e
t 
p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
y
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
y
 a

re
 

m
o
re

 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l

A
g
re

e
 m

e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 t
o
 s

ta
ff

.

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
:

1
/ 
T

im
e
lin

e
s
s

2
/ 
C

h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

3
/ 
R

e
s
p
e
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

h
o
 f
u
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 

c
a
re

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
D

e
c
-0

8
A

u
g
-0

9

M
e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 

a
n
d
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 0
8
/0

9
:O

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 4

 w
e
e
k
s
 

- 
8
5
%

 S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 h
a
p
p
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

- 
9
0
%

 S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 S

W
 

is
 c

o
u
rt

e
o
u
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

fu
l

- 
9
0
%

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 q

u
a
lit

y
 f
a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 s

e
lf
 f
u
n
d
e
rs

.

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
J
im

 T
ra

y
n
o
r,

P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

,

J
a
n
e
 M

o
ra

n
,G

ra
h
a
m

 

H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 
S

te
v
e
 B

a
rd

s
le

y

(S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

A
 b

ro
a
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
re

g
u
la

rl
y
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

/c
a
re

rs
/a

n
d
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 

th
e
y
 r

e
a
c
h
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 g

iv
e
s
 t
h
e
m

 

m
o
re

 c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 

0
8
/0

9
 :
 

9
8
%

 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 s
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 s

a
id

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

a
s
 "

 c
le

a
r 

a
n
d
 e

a
s
y
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
".

 

5
6
%

 s
a
id

 t
h
e
y
 w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
le

a
fl
e
ts

 o
r 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s

8
9
%

 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

9
.5

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
, 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l,
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
.

E
n
s
u
re

 S
in

g
le

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
A

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 (

S
A

P
) 

is
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

a
n
 e

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
p
o
lic

ie
s
, 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
, 
to

o
ls

 a
n
d
 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
D

e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

1
0

A
ll 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 u
s
in

g
 o

r 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

S
A

P
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
. 
E

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 f
ile

 a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

J
e
m

im
a
 S

p
a
rk

s
. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
)

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 o

w
n
e
r 

a
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
k
e
y
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 f
u
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
.

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 D

e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
(P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 )

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
3
.0

6
.0

9
 t
o
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

u
t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 

a
c
ti
o
n
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

9
.6

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 h

a
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

a
n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
(S

e
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1

3
).

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 1
 

M
a
r-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 s

h
o
w

s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
a
re

rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 

0
8
/0

9
:O

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 4

 w
e
e
k
s
: 
8
5
%

 S
u
rv

e
y
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 h
a
p
p
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
: 
9
0
%

S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

: 

9
0
%

 T
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

M
ik

e
 S

e
lls

 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

N
e
w

 C
a
re

rs
 W

e
b
s
it
e
 /
 p

a
g
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 w

e
b
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 m

u
c
h
 m

o
re

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
a
 w

h
o
le

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
.(

1
3
/0

7
/0

9
) 

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
- 

s
it
e
 w

ill
 

b
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
  
b
y
 3

1
.0

7
.0

9
. 
  
S

o
ft
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

w
k
 b

e
g
 1

3
/7

/0
9
. 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 w

ill
 f
o
llo

w
 t
o
 

p
u
b
lic

is
e
 f
o
rm

a
l 
la

u
n
c
h
. 
X

-r
e
f 
1
8
.3

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
w

  
p
e
e
r 

to
 p

e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
t

a
n
d
 D

ir
e
c
t 
P

a
y
m

e
n
t 
H

e
lp

lin
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

th
a
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 w

k
 b

e
g
 1

5
th

 J
u
n
e
. 

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

9
.7

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

c
h
o
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 

ra
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
s
e
lf
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 c

a
re

 i
n
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

  
1
 &

 2
A

p
r-

0
9

S
e
p
-0

9

S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 
IB

/D
P

 a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f:
 1

/ 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 2
/ 
F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
  
D

e
liv

e
ry

 t
a
rg

e
ts

:

0
8
/0

9
 -

 7
5
9
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
ts

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
0
9
/1

0
 -

 2
,4

1
7
 

re
c
ip

ie
n
ts

. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 4

3
%

 

s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 b
e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 D

P
. 
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 

b
e
 a

g
re

e
d
.

M
ik

e
 S

e
lls

 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

 

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
J
im

 T
a
y
n
o
r,

 P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
J
a
n
e
 M

o
ra

n
, 

G
ra

h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 
S

te
v
e
 

B
a
rd

s
le

y
  
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

 (
A

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
) 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
) 

  
C

h
ie

f

O
ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

3
,0

0
0
 S

D
S

 /
 D

P
 f
ly

e
rs

 c
re

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

H
 &

 S
C

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 .

1
,0

0
0
 D

P
 D

V
D

s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p
ri
n
te

d
 n

o
w

.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 3

/8
/0

9

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

9
.8

Q
A

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

Q
A

 o
u
tl
in

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 

a
re

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l.
 

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 1
M

a
r-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9

Q
A

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
a
t 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 e

m
p
o
w

e
re

d
 

to
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 a

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f

1
/ 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 2
/ 
F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

3
/D

e
liv

e
ry

 T
a
rg

e
ts

: 

0
8
/0

9
 -

 7
5
9
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
ts

 

0
9
/1

0
 -

 2
,4

1
7
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
ts

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
: 
4
3
%

 o
f 
s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 

b
e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 D

P
. 
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
.

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 E

S
C

R
 i
n
to

 

fi
le

 a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

 o
f 
ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

ta
rg

e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
s
s
u
e
s
.

F
ile

 A
u
d
it
 t
o
o
ls

  
fi
n
a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

8

Page 140



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
D

e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

F
ro

m
 a

n
 0

7
/0

8
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
6
3
%

In
 Y

e
a
r 

1
: 
7
6
%

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 

re
v
ie

w
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 1
M

a
r-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9
In

 Y
e
a
r 

2
: 
8
0
%

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 

re
v
ie

w
.

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

m
ig

h
t 
b
e
 m

o
re

  
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

s
 t
h
a
n
 l
iv

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

re
 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
..

U
s
in

g
 C

P
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 t
o
 p

o
p
u
la

te
 E

S
C

R
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
s
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

Y
r 

1
/2

Q
tr

 4
/1

D
e
c
-0

8
J
u
n
-0

9
Q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
.

W
o
rk

 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 w

it
h
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 i
t 
is

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 J

u
ly

'0
9

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 2
/3

J
u
n
 0

9
J
a
n
 1

0
7
5
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

re
v
ie

w
s
 m

e
e
t 
c
o
re

 q
u
a
lit

y
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 f
ile

 a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

1
3
.1

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

c
h
o
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.

D
e
te

rm
in

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
J
a
n
-0

9
A

u
g
-0

9

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
: 
- 

C
ri
s
is

- 
T

a
s
k
 o

r 
Is

s
u
e
. 

- 
R

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
S

h
o
rt

 T
e
rm

 o
r 

L
o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 

- 
In

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
M

e
n
ta

l 
 C

a
p
a
c
it
y
 A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y

(I
M

C
A

)

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

 (
H

e
a
d
 o

f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

P
ro

je
c
t 
B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 m

e
t 
a
g
a
in

. 
A

g
re

e
d
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 

A
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
. 
F

o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
. 

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

1
4
.1

1
/ 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 

c
le

a
r 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
, 
o
ff
e
r 

g
o
o
d
 c

a
re

 v
a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 

lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 O

u
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
O

u
r 

C
a
re

, 
O

u
r 

S
a
y
, 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
.

2
/ 
A

lm
o
s
t 
a
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 t
h
e
ir
 

c
a
re

rs
 a

re
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

, 
re

v
ie

w
 

&
 a

re
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

P
ro

c
u
re

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
e
x
p
e
rt

 a
d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
 a

n
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 s

te
p
s
 t
o
 s

h
if
t 
th

e
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 

c
a
re

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

w
a
y
 f
ro

m
 b

u
ild

in
g
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
1
/ 
L
A

 c
e
a
s
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

o
f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

2
/ 
M

in
im

a
l 
&

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 r

o
le

 f
o
r 

L
A

 i
n
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

Y
e
a
r 

2

Q
tr

 1
-2

A
p
ri
l 
0
9

O
c
t 
0
9

T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 

o
f 
it
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 S

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

le
c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
g
re

e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 

o
f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

th
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
a
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
),

L
y
n
d
a
 B

o
w

e
n
 (

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 E

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(S
u
p
p
o
rt

 &
 E

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t)

E
x
p
e
rt

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 5

th
 

J
u
n
e
.

P
ro

je
c
t 
p
la

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
N

o
v
-0

8
A

p
r-

0
9

J
a
n
-0

9
S

e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r:

 

0
8
/0

9
 H

o
m

e
c
a
re

,
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 1
/4

A
p
r 

0
9

M
a
r 

1
0

0
9
/1

0
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 D

a
y
c
a
re

1
.J

o
in

t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ri
c
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 

b
y
 A

S
C

 a
n
d
 N

H
S

-L
e
e
d
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

2
. 
W

o
rk

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 d

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 c
a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 s

e
lf
 

d
ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

.

X
-r

e
f 
1
4
.5

, 
2
0
.3

 a
n
d
 2

0
.5

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

1
4
.5

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 f
o
rm

a
l 
jo

in
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

s
 

w
it
h
 h

e
a
lt
h
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 S

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

jo
in

tl
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 P

C
T

 f
o
r 

 -
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

a
n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

l)
 c

a
re

,

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
J
a
n
-0

9
O

c
t-

0
9

F
o
rm

a
l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 L

P
C

T
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g

jo
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

s
, 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

h
o
m

e
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

k
e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
),

M
a
rk

 P
h
ill

o
tt
 

(C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

O
n
g
o
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h
 N

H
S

- 
L
e
e
d
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

.

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
3
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
u

il
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

id
e
 a

v
a
il
a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
a
d

v
o

c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 s

p
e
c
if

y
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
o

c
u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 i
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 e
m

p
o

w
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

.
  
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
)

1
1
.2

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 T

ra
y
 n

o
r,

P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
J
a
n
e
 M

o
ra

n
,

G
ill

 C
h
a
p
m

a
n
, 
  
  
  
  
 S

te
v
e
 

B
a
rd

s
le

y
  
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

A
g
re

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

ri
s
k
 f
a
c
to

rs

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

E
x
te

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

c
o
v
e
r 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 T

ra
y
n
o
r,

 P
h
i

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
J
a
n
e
 M

o
ra

n
, 

G
ra

h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 
S

te
v
e
 

B
a
rd

s
le

y
  
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 &

 e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
re

g
u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 

m
e
t

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 &

 e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

re
g
u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 m

e
t.

1
4
.4

D
ir
e
c
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 c

le
a
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 Q

A
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
4
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 a

n
d

 c
h

o
ic

e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 r

e
c
o

n
fi

g
u

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
o

d
e
rn

is
in

g
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a
l,
 b

u
il
d

in
g

s
-b

a
s
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
1
.1

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

lig
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 a

 

ti
m

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

in
lin

e
 w

it
h
 F

A
C

's
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
1
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ta
l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
li
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

re
g

u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 m

e
t.

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

9

Page 141



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

1
5
.1

P
e
o
p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 P

la
n
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 U

rg
e
n
t 
C

a
re

 G
ro

u
p
 

is
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 r

e
v
is

in
g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

to
c
o
l,
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t:
 1

/ 
th

e
 r

o
le

s
 o

f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 a
re

 c
le

a
r.

  
2
/ 
th

e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t
im

e
ly

, 
s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 a

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 

d
ig

n
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l.
 3

/ 
a
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

re
s
o
lv

in
g
 d

is
p
u
te

s
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
 &

 4
 O

c
t 
 0

8
N

o
v
 0

8
 N

o
v
 0

8

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
im

e
ly

 &
 s

a
fe

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
in

ta
in

s
 d

ig
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
e
c
t.
  
R

e
g
u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

A
d
u
lt
s
.

P
h
ili

p
 S

c
h
o
fi
e
ld

  
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

(L
e
e
d
s
 N

H
S

)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

Y
r 

1
&

2

Q
tr

 4
/1

-3
N

o
v
 0

8
M

a
r 

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

Y
r 

1
&

2

Q
tr

 4
/1

-3
M

a
r 

0
9

N
o
v
 0

9

N
e
w

 D
e
la

y
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
P

ro
to

c
o
l 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
  
w

it
h
 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

.

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
  
g
o
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
  
ra

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

1
5
.3

T
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 a

re
 

le
a
rn

e
d
 f
ro

m
  
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
.

R
e
g
u
la

r 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

P
la

n
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 U

rg
e
n
t 
C

a
re

 G
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

J
o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 (
J
S

C
B

)

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
J
a
n
-0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 f
o
r 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 o

f 
2
7
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 i
n
it
ia

te
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 

to
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 i
n
fo

 f
ro

m
: 

- 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

.

- 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

.

- 
U

s
e
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 J

S
C

B

P
h
ili

p
 S

c
h
o
fi
e
ld

  
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

R
e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

rg
e
n
t 

c
a
re

 g
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 p

la
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
re

s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
a
t 
re

p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

m
a
d
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

ill
  
b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 j
o
in

t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 b

o
a
rd

 i
n
 N

o
v
'0

9
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

1
8
.1

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 e
n
a
b
lin

g
 a

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 w
h
e
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 g
a
p
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

, 
in

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 c

a
re

rs
 &

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ra

is
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

w
h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 i
t.

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 1
A

p
r-

0
9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 &

 M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 a

re
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

, 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
.

M
ik

e
 S

e
lls

 (
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

O
u
tl
in

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 
T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 g
a
p
s
 i
n

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
o
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

 f
o
r 

th
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
.

X
-r

e
f 
to

 9
.6

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

Y
e
a
r1

  
Q

tr
 4

D
e
c
 0

8
M

a
r 

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

N
e
w

 C
a
re

rs
 W

e
b
s
it
e
 /
 p

a
g
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 w

e
b
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 m

u
c
h
 m

o
re

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
a
 w

h
o
le

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
- 

s
it
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

. 

X
-r

e
f 
to

 9
.6

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

Y
e
a
r 

3

Q
tr

 1
-2

A
p
r-

 1
0

S
e
p
-1

0

1
9
.1

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 ,
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 c
a
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
e
a
m

s
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
lo

c
a
lit

y
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 A

S
C

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 

s
o
c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
o
lk

it
 w

h
ic

h
 s

p
e
c
if
y
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

Y
e
a
r 

2

Q
tr

 1
A

p
r-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9

R
e
le

v
a
n
t 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

is
 a

s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 1

9
.3

.

M
ik

e
 S

e
lls

 (
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

,

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

 (
H

e
a
d
 o

f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

.

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

1
,5

0
0
 c

o
p
ie

s
 o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
Is

o
la

ti
o
n
 T

o
o
lk

it
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

, 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
  
S

e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 t
o
 

a
ll 

G
P

s
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
. 

T
h
is

 t
o
o
lk

it
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 w
h
o
 a

re
 o

r 
m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 s

o
c
ia

lly
 i
s
o
la

te
d
, 
a
n
d
 

h
o
w

 b
e
s
t 
c
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
y
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

e
le

v
a
te

 s
o
c
ia

l 

is
o
la

ti
o
n
 o

r 
p
re

v
e
n
t 
th

e
m

 f
ro

m
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 s

o
c
ia

lly
 

is
o
la

te
d
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

1
9
.2

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 

p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 

c
o
m

m
o
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
(C

A
F

)

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
 t
o
o
l 
 i
s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 a
ll 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
/ 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

o
 

th
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

a
ta

 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
T

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 C

A
F

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
(A

ls
o
 s

e
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 9

.5
)

Y
e
a
r 

2
 

Q
tr

s
 2

-3
A

u
g
-0

9
M

a
r-

1
0

S
ta

ff
 i
n
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 u

s
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 1

9
.3

. 

J
e
m

im
a
 S

p
a
rk

s
. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r/

 

G
ill

 S
id

e
b
o
tt
o
m

. 

(C
A

F
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
)

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 A

u
g
'0

9
. 
It
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
is

 

a
c
ti
o
n
.

X
-r

e
f 
to

 9
.5

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
5
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 h
o

s
p

it
a
l 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 b

y
 f

o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

s
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e
s

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
6
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 h
o

s
p

it
a
l 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 b

y
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
u

t 
c
le

a
r 

re
c
ip

ro
c
a
l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 w

it
h

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
7
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 h
o

s
p

it
a
l 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 b

y
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 a

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

re
s
o

lv
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

m
u

lt
i-

d
is

c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 w
o

rk
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
9
 :

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 b

y
 s

ta
ff

 o
f 

th
e
 w

id
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
p

re
v
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

 p
re

v
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
c
k
a
g

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
.

1
8
.3

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

P
e
o
p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
s
e
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 

a
n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
im

e
ly

 &
 s

a
fe

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 

w
h
ic

h
 m

a
in

ta
in

s
 d

ig
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t.

P
h
ili

p
 S

c
h
o
fi
e
ld

  
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

h
e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 

w
e
llb

e
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

 9
0
%

 o
f 
s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
s
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 a
s
 a

n
 

in
it
ia

l

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
8
: 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

v
a
il
a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

r'
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

N
e
w

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 

lo
c
a
l 
h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
, 
te

rm
s
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

T
H

T
, 
N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 A

S
C

.

N
e
w

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
o
u
t 

o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
e
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 A

S
C

 

a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 

d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
, 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 

d
is

p
u
te

s
 r

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 
P

ro
to

c
o
l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 

a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 A

S
C

 a
n
d
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

P
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 a
n
d
 A

S
C

, 
i.
e
.,
 

H
a
rr

o
g

a
te

, 
B

ra
d
fo

rd
, 
W

a
k
e
fi
e
ld

.

M
ik

e
 S

e
lls

 (
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

(L
e
e
d
s
 N

H
S

)

C
a
re

rs
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 

th
e
ir
 c

u
lt
u
re

, 
s
e
x
u
a
lit

y
, 
a
g
e
, 
g
e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
lig

io
n
.

P
u
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 
m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
u
re

 

u
p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 ,
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
s
u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 c

a
re

rs
.

1
5
.2

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

1
0

Page 142



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

1
9
.3

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
fo

c
u
s
 u

p
o
n
 e

a
rl
y
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 v

ia
 Q

A
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
J
a
n
-0

9
J
u
l-
0
9

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 

s
h
o
w

 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 u

p
o
n
 e

a
rl
y
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 &

 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
T

o

in
c
lu

d
e
 d

a
ta

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
:

1
/ 
s
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n

2
/ 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

3
/ 
s
u
rv

e
y
s

4
/ 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 c

a
s
e
 f
ile

 a
u
d
it
s

5
/ 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 &

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 e
n
te

ri
n
g
 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
),

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

T
h
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
tr

ix
 o

n
 

a
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
T

h
is

 s
ta

rt
s
 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
s
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

2
0
.1

 T
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 

L
e
e
d
s
 a

re
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 J

A
N

A
 &

 s
h
a
p
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 O

u
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 

O
u
r 

C
a
re

, 
O

u
r 

S
a
y
, 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

A
g
re

e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
J
S

N
A

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
P

u
b
lis

h
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 i
n
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
 &

4
D

e
c
 0

7
 

F
e
b
-0

9
F

e
b
-0

9

A
ll 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 

o
f 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
w

h
o
le

 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

c
a
n
 l
in

k
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
.

J
o
h
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
, 
D

e
p
u
ty

 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
(P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

2
0
.2

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 d
e
liv

e
r 

jo
in

t 
&

 s
in

g
le

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

h
a
re

d
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
 &

4
O

c
t 
0
8
 

J
u
l-
0
9

S
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 j
o
in

t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

1
/ 
V

ir
tu

a
l 
te

a
m

s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p
s
.

2
/ 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
.

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
),

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

 (
H

e
a
d
 o

f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

  
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

,

C
a
ro

l 
C

o
c
h
ra

n
e
 (

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 &

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 

G
ro

u
p
s
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 

3
0
th

 J
u
n
e
'0

9
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

2
0
.3

D
e
te

rm
in

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

s
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

c
h
o
ic

e
, 
c
o
n
tr

o
l,
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 &
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

.

Y
r 

1
 Q

tr
 3

 &
4

N
o
v
 0

8
S

e
p
-0

9

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

o
f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
m

a
rk

e
t,
 c

o
s
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
, 

q
u
a
lit

y
 f
a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 l
in

k
 t
o
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
s
.

1
/ 
P

u
b
lis

h
 j
o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
.

2
/ 
R

e
v
is

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
u
b
lis

h
 O

ld
e
r 

B
e
tt
e
r.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 l
in

k
 

jo
in

t 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
.

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
),

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

 (
H

e
a
d
 o

f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

1
. 
J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 3

0
th

 J
u
ly

'0
9
.

2
. 
O

ld
e
r 

B
e
tt
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
.

3
.O

ld
e
r 

B
e
tt
e
r 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

la
n
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

4
. 
F

o
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 T

a
c
k
lin

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
Is

o
la

ti
o
n
, 
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
In

te
r 

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
w

o
rk

.

X
-r

e
f 
to

 1
4
.1

 

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
p
r 

0
9

O
c
t 
0
9

M
a
y
-0

9
1
/ 
U

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
ti
c
 p

h
a
s
e

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

C
o

m
p

le
te

d

2
/ 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
h
a
s
e

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 

a
n
d
/o

r 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
re

s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
.

O
c
t 
0
9

2
0
.4

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 s
h
a
re

d
 a

g
re

e
d
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
jo

in
t 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
 

in
 L

e
e
d
s

E
n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h
a
m

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
jo

in
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3

A
p
r 

1
0

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s
 D

e
p
u
ty

 

D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
te

v
e
 H

u
m

e
 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
0
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

g
re

e
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 

jo
in

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e
t 

o
u

t 
c
le

a
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 w

it
h

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 j
o

in
t 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 j
o

in
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

ts
 (

re
fe

re
n

c
e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
4
) 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
1
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
e
t 

o
u

t 
a
 c

le
a
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

).

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

1
1

Page 143



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

R
e
v
ie

w
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 t
ie

r,
 J

C
M

T
, 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

e
a
m

s
, 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
D

is
c
h
a
rg

e

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
 

 J
a
n
 0

9
J
u
l-
0
9

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n
 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 &

 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

 (
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

,

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 
C

a
re

 (
T

O
C

) 
P

ro
to

c
o
l 
in

 f
in

a
l 
d
ra

ft
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

/a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
o
f 
C

IC
 b

e
d
s
 i
s
  
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
S

C
 a

n
d
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 

a
  
jo

in
t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

IC
 (

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 C

a
re

) 

b
e
d
s
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

A
g
re

e
d

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 j
o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
/ 
m

a
rk

e
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
h
o
m

e
c
a
re

. 
  
(c

ro
s
s
 r

e
f 
to

 2
0
.3

)

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4
 

A
p
r 

0
9

O
c
t 
0
9

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

1
. 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
.

2
. 
In

te
rm

e
d
ia

te
 T

ie
r 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 g

ro
u
p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

w
it
h
 N

H
S

 -
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n
.

3
. 
J
o
in

t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ri
c
in

g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 

b
y
 A

S
C

 a
n
d
 N

H
S

-L
e
e
d
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

4
. 
W

o
rk

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 d

o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 c
a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 s

e
lf
 

d
ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

.

X
-r

e
f 
1
4
.5

 a
n
d
 2

0
.3

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

2
2
.1

 E
x
p
lic

it
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

re
 m

e
t.
 

T
h
e
y
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
, 
le

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

Q
A

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
 w

ill
 

fo
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
ile

 a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

.2
 &

 2
.3

.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 3
 &

 4
O

c
t 
0
8

M
a
r 

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

E
n
s
u
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 1

0
0
%

 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

ff
.

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n
 (

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

Y
r 

1
 Q

tr
 4

O
c
t 
0
8

M
a
r-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

Y
r 

2
 

M
a
r 

0
9

M
a
r 

1
0

A
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 n

o
w

 s
e
tt
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 

d
a
te

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
  
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 b

y
 D

M
T

 o
n
 

1
2
th

 M
a
rc

h
'0

9
. 
G

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
. 
T

h
e
 O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 

fo
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 b

y
 

A
u
g
u
s
t.

X
-r

e
f 
to

 2
4
.3

N
o
 r

is
k
 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

2
3
.1

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
.

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
te

a
m

s
 a

re
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4

to
  
  
  
  
  
  
Y

r2
 

Q
tr

 1

F
e
b
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
: 

ro
a
d
 s

h
o
w

s
; 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
; 
te

a
m

 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

E
a
c
h
 a

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 p
la

n
 

w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 p

o
p
u
la

te
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
ir
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
. 
 T

e
a
m

s
 k

n
o
w

 a
n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
. 
P

la
n
s
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 t
e
a
m

 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

T
ra

c
y
 C

a
rt

m
e
ll 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
, 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
a
s
c
a
d
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
to

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 /
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 e

v
e
n
ts

, 
P

e
e
r 

to
 p

e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

,.
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 w
a
s
 

a
ls

o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

e
n
to

ri
n
g
, 
th

is
 i
s
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 A

u
g
u
s
t'
0
9
.T

h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

ro
u
n
d
 f
e
e
d
in

g
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 

a
n
d
 S

A
S

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
to

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 /
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
. 
 T

h
is

 

w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 t
e
a
m

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

.

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
2
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a
 s

y
s
te

m
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
li
c
y
.

S
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 j
o
in

t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 s
a
fe

 d
ig

n
if
ie

d
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

.

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 
to

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
, 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
re

v
ie

w
s
, 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
.

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

re
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 o

n
 a

 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 J

o
in

t 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

.

R
e
v
is

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
.

R
e
v
is

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 a
ll 

fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

 s
ta

ff
. 
 B

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 
T

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
  
  
  
 1

/F
ile

 a
u
d
it
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

2
/E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
.

3
/ 
In

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
3
: 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 m
a
k
e
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h

e
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 b

y
 c

a
s
c
a
d

in
g

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
in

te
n

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 v
is

io
n

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
 i
n

to
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
  
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

1
/ 
A

lig
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
.

2
/ 
A

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 c

o
d
ic

il 
o
f 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

 s
ta

ff
. 

3
/ 
A

lig
n
 w

it
h
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
.

2
2
.2

E
x
p
lic

it
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

re
 m

e
t.
 

T
h
e
y
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
, 
le

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 &

 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
) 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
(S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

2
0
.5

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 j
o
in

t 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 b

e
s
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

1
2

Page 144



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

2
4
.1

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 s

k
ill

e
d
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
,

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

C
re

a
te

 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 a

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
p
s
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
, 

s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 &

 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 (

s
e
e
 R

e
c
. 
1
4
).

Y
r 

1

Q
tr

 4

&

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 1

N
o
v
-0

8
J
u
n
e
-0

9
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
.

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
re

a
te

d
, 
a
ll 

ro
le

s
 m

a
p
p
e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
. 
N

e
w

 

P
e
o
p
le

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 

a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
. 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

 l
e
a
d
s
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
. 
C

u
lt
u
re

 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

e
in

g
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 f
o
r 

'f
ir
s
t 
5
0
0
'

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

P
u
b
lis

h
 o

u
r 

3
 y

e
a
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 

(2
0
0
9
 t
o
 2

0
1
2
) 

Y
r 

1
 Q

tr
 4

 &
 

Y
r 

2
 Q

tr
 1

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
y
-0

9

F
ir
s
t 
v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

s
h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 D

M
T

 o
n
 2

3
rd

 A
p
ri
l,
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 
1
2
 

m
o
n
th

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

 n
e
w

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 m

o
d
e
l.
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 w

id
e
ly

 s
h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
e
a
m

s
. 
O

ff
ic

ia
l 
re

le
a
s
e
 w

ill
 

b
e
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 i
n
 O

c
t 
2
0
0
9
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 R

e
c
o
m

 1
4

Y
r 

2

Q
tr

 3
O

c
t 
0
9

D
e
c
 0

9

2
4
.3

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 a

n
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 s

k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
a
b
le

 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e

A
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

. 
N

e
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
.

 Y
r 

1
 Q

tr
 4

 
O

c
t-

0
8

A
p
r-

0
9

A
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 s

e
t 
o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 e

x
is

t 
a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 c
a
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 r

o
le

 a
n
d
 c

a
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 s
ta

ff
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 e

x
is

t.
 M

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
: 

1
/ 
S

ta
ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

2
/ 
In

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
.

3
/ 
O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 d

a
ta

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
w

o
rk

e
d
  
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 u
s
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 P

e
o
p
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

o
v
e
rs

e
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 B

o
a
rd

, 

w
it
h
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
u
p
d
a
te

s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

 i
n
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

. 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 d

ra
w

in
g
 o

n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
:

• 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
s
 –

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 (

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
)

• 
In

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 (

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
- 

re
g
a
in

e
d
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
)

• 
E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
s
 (

e
v
e
ry

 1
8
 m

o
n
th

s
, 
n
e
x
t 
d
a
ta

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
)

• 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 (

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
)

• 
A

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

la
n
s
 

(a
n
n
u
a
lly

)

• 
B

a
la

n
c
e
d
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

s
 r

a
ti
n
g
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
n
io

r 
le

a
d
e
rs

 

(q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
)

• 
H

R
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
u
rv

e
y
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 (

a
n
n
u
a
lly

 -
 l
a
te

s
t 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
rm

 2
0
0
9
)

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 n

o
t

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 

ti
m

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
ie

s

A
g
re

e
d

2
4
.4

A
ll 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
s
k
ill

s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s

A
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 A

 c
le

a
r 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
is

 o
n
 o

ff
e
r 

to
 

b
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
. 
E

x
p
e
c
te

d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 Y
r 

1
 Q

tr
 4

 
N

o
v
-0

8
J
u
n
-0

9

W
e
b
 s

it
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
; 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
ro

m
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 s

k
ill

e
d
 s

ta
ff
 w

h
o
s
e
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 i
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n

 (
D

e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

S
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 

(p
u
rp

o
s
e
, 
a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
, 
c
o
n
te

n
t)

. 
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 t
o
 

b
e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 J
u
n
e
.

N
o
 r

is
k
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 s

k
ill

e
d
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 e

q
u
ip

p
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

g
e
n
d
a
. 
 G

a
p
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

.

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
4
: 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 p
u

b
li
s
h

 a
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e
fl

e
c
ts

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
h

a
p

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
h

o
w

 r
e
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 j
o

b
 r

e
d

e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 u

ti
li
s
e
d

 t
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

k
il
ls

 n
e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 r
e
c
o

n
fi

g
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

2
4
.2

M
a
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

- 
F

in
a
l

1
3

Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board 
 
Date:  29th July 2009 
 
Subject:  Personalisation – Update to Terms of Reference and Appointment of  
co-opted member to the Personalisation Working Group  
 

        
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 8 October 2008, the Executive Board received an update on the 

work undertaken in Leeds to prepare for the personalisation agenda, since the 
publication of the concordat “Putting People First” in December 2007.  At that 
meeting, the Executive Board resolved: 

 
(a) That progress made in Leeds towards the development of a more personalised 

system of social care through the Self Directed Support project and other 
initiatives be noted. 

(b) That, acknowledging the scale and scope of the transformation agenda and the 
challenge it presents, the approach taken in Leeds to deliver successful 
change be endorsed. 

(c) That the direct engagement of elected members in these developments be 
continued by the submission of further reports to this Board, involvement in 
workshops, seminars, conferences and in the recently established members’ 
forum. 

(d) That the Board notes the impact Self Directed Support will have on existing 
service provision including directly provided services and commissioned 
services in Leeds and the need to accelerate the transformation of these 
services to meet the challenges and impact of personalisation and customer 
choice. 

(e) That it be noted that progress and the pace of change regarding the delivery of 
Personalisation in Leeds will be the subject of some detailed feedback from the 
recent inspection of Older People’s Services. 

(f) That the Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult Social Care) be requested to 
monitor progress of the personalisation agenda. 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Sandra Newbould  
 

Tel: 247 4792  

Agenda Item 11

Page 147



 
1.2 The report presented to the Executive Board on 8 October 2008 is appended to this 

report for information. 
 
1.3 To assist the Board in monitoring progress of the personalisation agenda, in line with 

the Executive Board request, the Board requested a scoping paper be presented for 
discussion.  As such, an initial scoping discussion was held with the Proposals 
Working Group at its meeting on 12 December 2008.   

 
2.0 THE PERSONALISATION AGENDA 

 
2.1 As a result, subject to the agreement of the full Scrutiny Board, the working group 

agreed to focus on the following areas: 
 

Ø The common assessment framework; 
Ø Resource allocation system (linked to the Council’s stock of directly provided 

care); 
Ø Progress of the early implementer project. 
 

2.3  At the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board meeting in June 2009, it was recommended 
that further areas of inquiry were added to the scope of the inquiry as part of the 
work programme discussions. These have been incorporated under section 3. 
Included in section 3 are additional elements of inquiry identified by the 
Personalisation Working Group.  
 

3.0        SUBMISSION OF EVIDENCE 
 
3.1 The following formal evidence gathering sessions have been undertaken: 
 

Session one – 16th March 2009  
 
During the first session of the inquiry the working group examined: 
 

• A presentation of information relating to Personalisation in order to promote 
understanding  

• The work of the Self Directed Support Members Forum and progress made to 
date.  

 
Session two – 22nd April 2009  
 
During the second session of the inquiry the working group examined: 

 

• A Personalisation Update Report  

• The Resource Allocation System.  
 
Towards the end of both sessions, consideration was given to further and/or specific 
information required as part of the inquiry. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 148



3.2 The following formal evidence gathering sessions are scheduled: 
 
Session three – 30th July 2009 
 
During the third session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 

 

• Self Assessment Questionnaire   

• The Process of assessment and review. 

• Early Implementer Trial progress update 
 
Individuals receiving SDS  will be asked to attend the working group to provide an 
account of their experiences of managing an individual budget. 
 
Session four – August 2009 
 
During the fourth session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 
 

• Customer and stakeholder engagement and involvement. 

• Peer Group Support 

• Consultation 

• Changing Perceptions and Promotion of Individual Budgets – plans and progress to 
encourage customers and providers to think differently about care provision. 
Publicity and the provision of information and advice. 

 
Customers involved in the development of SDS will be asked to attend the working 
group to provide details of the projects they are involved with.  
 
Session five – September 2009 
 
During the fifth session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 
 

• The Single Assessment Process - so people 'only need to tell their story once'. 

• Brokerage Services and the pathways to establishing and managing support. 

• Partnership Working 
 
Session six – October 2009  
 
During the six session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 
 

• Commissioned Services and Social Enterprise – The requirement to adapt and 
change.  

• Financial Budgets and Value for Money.  

• Early Implementer evaluation update 
 
Session seven – Nov 2009 
 
During the seventh session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 
 

• Performance management and reporting mechanisms. 

• How the challenge of meeting Government SDS targets will be met. 

• Workforce Transformation and Development update and experiences of Care 
managers and support officers. 

 
 

Page 149



Session eight – December 2009 
 
During the eighth session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 
 

• Risk Enablement Framework and Safeguarding.  
 

Towards the end of each session, consideration will be given to any further and/or 
specific information required as part of the inquiry and if any further sessions are to be 
scheduled into the work programme. 
 

3.3  To ensure that a full and detailed inquiry is undertaken input from service users, 
representatives, carers, and service providers will be sought. 

 
4.0 Personalisation Working Group  
            

The Personalisation Task Group was established in September 2008 as a mechanism 
for elected members to: 

• receive information 

• be consulted on the discharge of relevant delegated authority relating to the 
modernisation of Adult Social care and Self Directed Support services 

• be advised and consulted on local implementation of legislation, regulation, 
national guidance or Best practice 

• disseminate and cascade information from the Director of Adult Social Services 
to their respective political groups and provide feedback. 
 
The group has now been disbanded following the establishment of the Scrutiny Board 
inquiry and the Personalisation Working Group. Cllr Valerie Kendall has requested 
that she be co-opted onto the Personalisation Working Group as a former member of 
the Task Group adding value to the inquiry due to the accumulated knowledge gained 
since September 2008. 

 
5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1      The Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

• note updated information relating to the submission of evidence contained within 
this report. 

• note the terms of reference may incorporate additional information should the 
working group or the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board identify any further scope for 
inquiry within the area of Personalisation. 

• Agree Cllr Valerie Kendall be co-opted to the Personalisation Working Group until 
such time as the inquiry is concluded. 

 
6.0 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
7.0        FURTHER RECOMMENDED READING  
 

• Executive Board report – Putting People First – Vision and Commitment to the 
Transformation of Adult Social Care (23 January 2008). 

• Executive Board report – Putting People First – Vision and Commitment to the 
Transformation of Adult Social Care (08 October 2008). 

• Putting People First – Working to Make it Happen (23 June 2008)  

Page 150



 

 

Report of the Director of Adult Social Services 
 
Executive Board  
 
Date:  8 October 2008 
 
Subject:  Putting People First – Vision and Commitment to the Transformation of 

Adult Social Care 
 

        
 
Eligible for Call In                                                 Not Eligible for Call In 
                                                                              (Details contained in the report) 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to update Executive Board on the work undertaken 

in Leeds, since the publication of the concordat “Putting People First” in 
December 2007 and the Executive Board report in January 2008 which outlined 
the vision and direction for the development of adult social care services in the 
future.   

 
2. It provides a summary of the national and local drivers for this programme of 

work and summarises the main issues that have to be addressed by all Local 
authorities if they are to deliver successful change. 

 
3. The main issues are accompanied by descriptions of other allied policy 

initiatives that support empowerment and enablement of individuals and the 
communities they live in and as such are contributors to the overall 
transformation agenda. This serves to highlight the fundamental nature of the 
reform agenda, the significant changes in the kind of relationship the Local 
Authority will have with its customers/service users and contracted providers of 
care services and its impact on all aspects of Adult Social Care Services (ASC) 
and the wider Local Authority service provision. 

 
 
 
 

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
All 

Appendix 1 
 
Originator: John Lennon/ 
 

Tel: 78665 

√ 

 

√ 

√  

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Page 151



 

4.   The specific work streams are described and summarised to provide some 
detail on the scale, scope and timeline associated with this work. 

 
5.   The report recommends Elected members note the progress made so far, 

continue their support through future Executive Board reports, involvement in 
workshops, conferences, seminars and through the elected member forum.  
Acknowledge the scale and scope of the transformation challenge ahead and 
endorse the approach we are taking in Leeds to deliver successful change and 
improve the outcomes for the people of Leeds. 

 
1. Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Executive Board on the work undertaken 
in Leeds to prepare for the personalisation agenda, since the publication of the 
concordat “Putting People First” in December 2007.  This requires significant 
whole system change with impact across all parts of the social care system.  It 
highlights the implications for the budget setting cycle, directly provided services 
and workforce development.   

2.0  Background Information 

2.1 On 23 January 2008 Executive Board received a paper advising them of the 
publication of “Putting People First” which outlined the vision and direction for 
the development of adult social care services in the future. 

 
2.2 Elected members agreed the endorsement of the principles and direction of 

travel and that they be engaged in developing the way forward through 
information, seminars, establishing a members forum, and scrutiny under the 
leadership of the Executive Board and Lead Member for Adult Social Care 
(ASC). 

 
2.3  There have been 13 national pilot sites developing the arrangements for 

Individual budgets.  Additionally, a number of other local authorities have 
developed innovative ways of supporting people with learning disabilities under 
a Government initiative called ‘in Control’.  All local authorities have been 
modernising social care services to enable people to have more choice and 
control over their care services and have been working in close partnership with 
other council services, health services and the voluntary and independent 
sector.  These initiatives together represent the direction towards the delivery of 
a more personalised adult social care system. 

 
2.4    In the last year the service has made good progress in raising the numbers of 

individuals in receipt of a direct payment. However, the full transformation to 
offer of individualised budgets and choice and control in decision making for 
individuals refusing social care services requires a further step change of 
progress. The changes Local Authorities are introducing are being supported by 
a range of Department of Health led initiatives. A National Director for 
personalisation / self directed support has been appointed to work jointly with 
the Department of Health and the Association of Directors of Adult Social 
Services (ADASS). Regional Representatives are working with the National 
Director and finance to find developments will be available via the Regional 
Joint Improvement Partnerships (JIP) and Regional Efficiency and Improvement 
Partnership (REIP).  

 
 

Page 152



 

 
2.5 A resource available to support Local Authorities is the organisation ‘in Control’.  

In Control was set up as a social enterprise by a number of partners, including 
the Department of Health, in 2003. Its primary focus was “to explore ways in 
which the current system of social care might be reformed, in particular to 
develop a pragmatic and universal model of Self Directed Support”. Leeds 
became a Level 1 member of ‘in Control’ in August 2007 when the Self Directed 
Support project was initiated. To progress the personalisation of social care 
services, Leeds were invited to be one of the local authorities moving to Phase 2 
membership – Total Transformation Project 2008 – 2010, a challenge that we 
have now accepted, this was reported as a delegated decision taken by the 
Director of Adult Social Services on the 27 August 2008. This will support the 
accelerated pace of transformational change required to enable Adult Social 
Care (ASC) to achieve the targets laid down in the Local Authority Circular 
‘Transforming Social Care for 2011’. This was issued on 17th January 2008 to 
support the transformation of Social Care and makes clear that “by 2011 person 
centered planning and self directed support to become mainstream, with 
individuals having choice and control over how best to meet their needs”. This 
approach has been signaled in the Department of Health’s Social Care Green 
Paper, Independence, Well Being and Choice (2005) and reinforced in the White 
Paper, “Our Health, Our Care, Our Say” published in 2006, which set a new 
direction for community services. This approach was subsequently confirmed in 
the concordat “Putting People First’ published in 2007. 

 
3.0 Main Issues 

3.1 Putting People First’s guiding principle is to build on best practice and replace 
paternalistic reactive care with a system that focuses on prevention, early 
intervention, enablement and high quality personally tailored services.  Adult 
social care has a championing and leadership role in creating a new high quality 
care system that is fair, accessible and responsible.  This can only be 
successfully achieved by working with partners including other services within 
the council, NHS, other statutory agencies, third and private sector providers, 
users and carers and the community of Leeds as a whole. 

3.2 Putting People First is one of a number of initiatives contributing to system wide   
transformation which are at varying stages of progress.  These include:    

• Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) is a process that will identify the 
current and future health and wellbeing needs of a local population, 
informing the priorities and targets set by Local Area Agreements and 
leading to agreed commissioning priorities that will improve outcomes and 
reduce health inequalities.  Work on this has commenced and the three 
Scrutiny Boards, Children, Health, and Adult Social Care are being made 
aware and consulted upon the implementation plan.  This work will be 
ready for implementation by April 2009.   

• A locally agreed approach to prevention, early intervention and enablement 
which has focussed on health and well being initiatives, provision of 
information to support self management and avoid unnecessary ill health, 
tackling social isolation, and a recovery and enablement approach to 
support.  This has particularly being targeted at disadvantaged groups, 
including older people with mental health needs, people from black and 
minority ethnic communities and people with physical and/or sensory 
impairments.   

Page 153



 

• Universal information, advice and advocacy services which will build on the 
work developed through Linkage plus and the development of the web 
based info store and the development of Local Involvement Networks 
(LINks), jointly with the PCT. 

• A common assessment process which is being worked on through the 
interagency Integrated Assessment Group.  This work stream is designed 
to provide one assessment document held by the service user that will be 
used and updated by any professional in contact with a service user or 
carer.  It is designed to avoid individuals feeling they have to restart the 
process of requesting a service every time their circumstances change. 

• Person centered planning, self directed support, direct payments and 
personal budgets. (See Paragraph 3.3) 

• Families, service users and their carers to become experts and care 
partners with us.  (Experts by Experience).  A Self Directed Support (SDS) 
peer group has developed with current users of Direct Payments.  
Membership of this group has now been extended to include those users 
and potential users of social care services who are involved in the 
development of SDS support in Leeds.   

• Changes in the Community Equipment Service-Leeds Social Care and the 
PCT are carrying out an options appraisal of the current joint service, which 
includes considering the potential to adopt in whole or in part the Retail 
Model proposed by Care Services Efficient Delivery (CSED).  The options 
appraisal will be completed by October 2008 and recommendations will be 
made to the Council and the PCT as to the most appropriate model that will 
best service the interests of Leeds residents. 

• Integrated working with children’s services for improved transition planning.  
This will include the involvement of young people in transition in the early 
implementer for SDS. 

• Continued support of User led networks.  The Centre for Integrated Living 
(CIL) is a good example of a User Led Organisation (ULO) that we will 
need to develop in the future but which will also need to be able to express 
their independence from the Local Authority by becoming an independent 
organisation   

• Continued development of robust safeguarding systems to ensure care and 
support for those who are most vulnerable in line with “Independence, 
Choice and Risk”, the Department of Health guide to best practice in 
supported decision making. An Executive Board report in June 2008 on 
Safeguarding in Leeds received information on the  action plan that has 
been drawn up  to update out current procedures, improve  multi agency 
and multi disciplinary working and improve the safeguarding arrangements 
in Leeds.   

3.3  Development of Self Directed Support (SDS) in Leeds 

Central to the delivery of personalisation is the development of SDS.  Leeds has 
made positive progress in preparation for the delivery of SDS and since the 
paper to Executive Board in January work has progressed in each of the current 
10 workstreams: 

Page 154



 

• Support Planning – A draft Self Assessment Questionnaire (SAQ) has been 
developed which can be used for all service user groups.  The introduction 
of a new SAQ will provide service users with a simpler method by which 
people who need social care support can identify and show their day to day 
needs for support at the start of the assessment process.  A workshop has 
been held with service users, ASC and the voluntary and independent 
sector to identify the key features of a support plan and quality standards.  
Further work is planned to ensure all safeguarding issues are addressed 
through establishing a risk management panel. 

• Care Management – This is focusing on the impact of SDS on the current 
care management service and proposing how this will be delivered.  We 
anticipate SDS will have a significant impact on the way assessment and 
care management will be delivered in the future and have already identified 
new brokerage, advocacy, reviewing and support planning skills which will 
require different skill sets, competencies and new training for the ASC 
workforce of the future. 

• Children and Young People – This group have identified those young 
people rising 18 who wish to pursue an individual budget.  A joint working 
group between ASC and Children and Young People’s Social Care has 
been established to look at the joint commissioning issues that will deliver a 
more personalized, community based service.  This work sits within the 
context of the wider work within children’s services to develop more 
personalized services to children and young people, being developed 
through integrated local services within a citywide framework for strategic 
commissioning.  This approach has previously been outlined in a report to 
Executive Board and was part of a joint children’s and adults services 
seminar held earlier in 2008. 

• Commissioning and Contracting – SDS poses significant challenges for our 
current commissioning and procurement arrangements.  The move from 
block contracts and “one size fits all” to a bespoke and customized 
approach will require change to our current arrangements.  Our relationship 
with our providers will change as in the future individual service users will 
be exercising their choice to buy from them as a customer rather than 
passive recipients of the services they provide.  To facilitate this change a 
series of workshops are being held in Leeds with adult social care 
providers, in the private and voluntary sector including directly provided 
services, to deliver the changes to the market and build the flexible and 
creative services which will allow people the choice and control regarding 
their social care support.  These are being jointly led with experts by 
experience.  Work is also starting on developing transparent pricing and 
costs for directly provided services within the finance workstream. 

• Assistive Technology – Learning from other local authorities is helping 
inform progress which includes working out the route from identification of 
needs to the provision of assistive technology when this is required.  Unit 
costs will be identified and the links into individual budgets, including 
housing costs across all tenures. This will be undertaken alongside the 
option appraisal for Leeds Community equipment service. 

• Workforce Development and Human Resources - The key challenges for 
the workforce are being captured from the work within the other 
workstreams to ensure a workforce development strategy to raise skills and 

Page 155



 

promote career development to ensure that the capacity, competency and 
commitment of the social care workforce can empower and support people 
who use services and to exercise choice and control.  A conference was 
held on 18 September 2007 to launch SDS in Leeds for all ASC staff and 
this will be followed up with a second event in September 2008.  We are 
aware of the work being done nationally by the Department of Health on 
developing an Adult Social Care Workforce Strategy and how other 
Councils are redesigning their Assessment and Care Management service 
and other services as a result of the impact of Personalisation – these will 
serve as our templates against the Leeds picture. 

• Brokerage – In Leeds brokerage is described as ‘the types of support, 
information and advice that people may need to obtain and take control of 
their own personal budget, develop their own support plan and take the 
action needed to set up the support and services outlined in their support 
plan’.  A literature search of brokerage in other areas is in progress and 
information collated about services available or being planned in Leeds.  
Options for a model of brokerage in Leeds will be developed with 
stakeholders. 

• Finance – A Resource Allocation System (RAS) for Leeds is currently being 
tested with information from existing care plans.  The RAS offers an 
alternative and simplified methodology for allocating money to customers in 
relation to risks and needs.  It uses the level of need determined by the 
SAQ.  Work is also progressing on formalising payment methods including 
consideration of the use of the ‘city card’. 

• Management Information – The impact of SDS on current systems on the 
Electronic Social Care Record (ESCR) is being considered to ensure 
information is collected in ways that can be measured and shared with 
others and inform our future commissioning intentions as appropriate. 

• Communication and Consultation – A communication plan for the SDS 
project has been developed to ensure that there is clarity and consistency 
of information within the project and with all stakeholders.  This is needed 
to maintain awareness and commitment to the principles of SDS and 
manage the process of change effectively.  A SDS Reference group has 
been established which initially consisted of people using direct payments 
but now extended to include those experts by experience who are directly 
involved in the project board, team and workstreams.  Presentations are 
being made to established user groups across the city and involvement in 
the project has been encouraged.  

3.4 Two additional areas of work are being established; 

• Members Forum – Elected member engagement will be aided  by a cross 
party Members Work Group chaired by an Independent Social care expert 
and supported by the Director of Adult Social Services and Chief Officer – 
Access and Inclusion.  An initial meeting was held in early September and 
members invited to attend an ‘in Control’ event on 8 September 2008 
focusing on ‘building the infrastructure in public services’ for 
personalization”.  

• Early implementer – To test out the methodology developing as outlined in 
3.3 an early implementer project is planned for the late autumn.  This will 

Page 156



 

include implementation of self directed support to a representational group 
of about 50 people across all user groups, including current recipients of 
direct payments.  A number of service users from this group have already 
expressed interest in being part of this first cohort. 

3.5  The direction of travel for the transformation of adult care services was 
described in Putting People First and the LAC (DH) (2008).  The landscape for 
the delivery of SDS changes rapidly and since the publication of Putting People 
First in December 07 further challenges have been set down by the Department 
of Health who have recently advised that by 1 April 2009 that there will be an 
expectation that all people in receipt of a social care package will know the 
amount of money allocated to their care plan, and be informed they have a 
choice to spend the money differently.  The implications of this are that the pace 
of change will need to be significantly increased to meet these challenges and 
hardening of targets, and will impact on all parts of ASC business and functions.  
We recognise there are particular challenges for a city the size of Leeds with the 
current levels of directly provided services and the requirement for us to 
modernise and transform these services. The framework for these changes will 
be exacting given the Government’s target of being able to offer personalised 
services to everyone by 2011.   

3.6  Although Leeds is making good progress towards having the infrastructure 
needed to deliver all the elements of SDS to assist us further we have entered a 
partnership with “in Control’ to gain access to the benefits provided by Phase 2 
membership to help meet this challenging agenda.  Early indications from the 
national ”in Control” pilot sites  that about 50% of people chose to keep their 
existing services, 35% made some adjustments and 15% opted for a total 
change. This indicates that some 50% of existing pilot site service users have all 
or in part, changed the way their services are provided.  We can reasonably 
anticipate customer expectations in the future around choice, personalisation 
and an increasing awareness will cause these numbers to rise.  The risk to the 
Local Authority, in not transforming our exisiting provision at a similar pace to 
these changing customer expectations, will be having fully funded directly 
provided services that people may not wish to purchase leaving insufficient 
funding to give to individuals who wish to purchase. The transformation of this 
service will require exceptional financial and business forecasting linked to 
excellent intelligence on service user performance 

4.0 Implications For Council Policy And Governance 

4.1 The workstreams outlined in 3.3 above signal the changes required.  This  
agenda will support the achievement of improvements in relation to the strategic 
outcomes for vulnerable people outlined within the Council’s Strategic Plan and 
include contributing to the development of a Health and Wellbeing Plan; and a  
commitment to the Council’s value of Putting Customers First as articulated 
within the Council’s Business Plan.  There will be significant challenges to be 
met both within the Council’s People’s Strategy and workforce planning 
arrangements to ensure the necessary changes in focus and skills is achieved 
among the workforce. 

4.2 As detailed at 4.1 above there will be an impact on a number of the Council’s 
policies although in particular this programme of transformation will have 
significant implications for the Council’s Financial and Asset Management Plans 
as these proposals seek to release resources from within existing service 

Page 157



 

provision to provide both more person centred care and individualised budgets 
and direct payments.   

5.0  Legal And Resource Implications 

5.1 Investment priorities for the use of the Social Care Reform Grant have been 
agreed within the Directorate. These priorities reflect the significant investment 
requirements to deliver the outcomes from the Putting People First agenda, 
including the development of SDS, together with the range of personalisation 
initiatives outlined within this report.   

5.2 The proposals outlined within this report signal a radical change in how 
resources currently employed, both within adult social care and the wider 
Council, are used to meet the needs of vulnerable people.  To support the 
transformation of adult social care outlined in paragraph 2.5 above will clearly 
require the reconfiguration and/or decommissioning of existing services.  
Detailed estimates of both the size and timing of resource realignment is 
currently being considered as part of the directorate’s investment planning to 
inform the Council’s medium term financial plan.   

6.0  Conclusions 

6.1 This report updates members on the progress made by ASC and its partners in 
developing a more personalised system of social care support for people in 
Leeds.  The increasing pace of change required to meet challenging government 
targets is highlighted and recognition given to the particular challenges for a city 
the size of Leeds with a high level of directly provided services together with the 
range of personalisation initiatives outlined within this report. 

7.0 Recommendations 

7.1 Members are requested to: 

i) Note the good progress made in Leeds towards the development of a 
more personalised system of social care through the SDS project and 
other initiatives. 

ii) Acknowledge the scale and scope of the transformation agenda, the 
challenge it presents and endorse the approach taken in Leeds to deliver 
successful change. 

iii)   Support the continuing direct engagement of elected members in these 
developments by inviting future executive board reports, and involvement 
in workshops, seminars, conferences and the recently established 
members’ forum. 

iv)   Note the impact SDS will have on existing service provision including 
directly provided services and commissioned services in Leeds and the 
need to accelerate the transformation of these services to meet the 
challenges and impact of personalisation and customer choice.    

v) Note that progress and the pace of change regarding the delivery of 
Personalisation in Leeds will be the subject of some detailed feedback 
from our recent inspection of Older Peoples Services. 

Page 158



 

vi) Recommend that progress be monitored by the Adult Social Care 
Scrutiny Board. 

Background Documents 

• Department of Health’s Social Care Green Paper – Independence, Well Being and 
Choice (2005) 

• Department of Health’s White Paper – Our Health, Our Care, Our Say (2006) 

• Putting People First – The Vision and Commitment to the transformation of Adult 
Social Care (2007) 

• Local Authority Circular (LAC(DH)(2008)1) Transforming Social Care  

Page 159



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) 
 
Date:  29 July 2009 
 
Subject:  Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) –  Work Programme  
 

        
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Attached at Appendix 1 is the current work programme for the Scrutiny Board (Adult 
Social Care) for the remainder of the current municipal year.   

 
1.2 Also attached for Members consideration is an extract from the Forward Plan of Key 
Decisions for the period 1st August 2009 to 30 November 2009 as Appendix 2.  

 
1.3 The Executive Board Minutes for the meeting held on the 17th June 2009 are presented 
at Appendix 3.   

 
2.0 WORK PROGRAMME MATTERS 

 

2.1 The current work programme (Appendix 1) provides an indicative schedule of items/ 
issues to be considered at future meetings of the Board.  The work programme should be 
considered as a live document that will evolve over time to reflect any changing and/or 
emerging issues that the Board wishes to consider.   

 
2.2 The work programme also provides an outline of other activity being undertaken on 
behalf of the Board outside of the formal meetings cycle. 

 
3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

3.1 From the content of this report, its associated appendices and discussion at the meeting, 
Members are asked to: 

 

3.1.1 Note the general progress reported at the meeting;  
3.1.2 Receive and make any changes to the attached work programme; and, 
3.1.3 Agree an updated work programme. 

 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

 

 

Originator: Sandra Newbould 
 

Tel: 247 4792  

Agenda Item 12

Page 161



4.0 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 

Page 162



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 17th June 2009 

Legislation and 
Constitutional Changes 

To receive and consider a report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development on proposed changes to the 
Council's Constitution in relation to 
Scrutiny. 

 B 

Co-opted Members  

To receive and consider a report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development on Co-opted Members. 
 

 B 

KPMG Audit Report 

To receive and consider a report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development on a scrutiny review by 
KPMG as at May 2009. 

 PM/B 

2009/10 Work Programme 

Input to the Boards Work Programme 
2009/10 - Sources of Work and 
Establishing the Boards Priorities and 
Determining the Work Programme 2009/10 

 B 

Draft Adaptation Inquiry 
Report 

Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) has 
now completed its inquiry on Major 
Adaptations for Disabled Adults . The draft 
report is brought before the board for 
consideration and where the content is 
agreed, its approval. 

 PM/D 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
3



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

VCFS Report  
 
 
 
 

Executive Board resolved that the Scrutiny 
Board (City and Regional Partnerships) 
inquiry report into the role of the voluntary, 
community and faith sectors in Council led 
community engagement be referred to 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) and 
Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) for 
consideration. 

Lead Officer – Sue Wynne RFS 

Meeting date – 29th July 2009  

Performance Management  
Quarter 4 information for 2008/09 (Jan-
March) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

Independence, Well-being 
and Choice – action plan 
update 
 
 

To consider progress against the action 
plan arising from the inspection report  

Outcome of the ASC Proposals Working 
Group meeting (20 July 2009) to feed into 
this item. 
 

RFS/PM 

Personalisation Working 
Group updated Terms of 
Reference.  

To consider the revised terms of reference 
for he 2009/10 municipal year for the 
Personalisation Working Group.  

 PM/DP 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
4



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

LINk Annual Report 
To consider the content of the LINk Annual 
Report and the potential impact on the 
2009/10 Scrutiny Work Programme 

Copies of LINk annual reports must be made 

available to the public and sent to the Secretary of 

State and the Care Quality Commission. 
Copies must also be sent to relevant Local 
Authorities, Primary Care Trusts, Strategic Health 
Authorities and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees. 

PM 

Safeguarding Board – 
Annual Report 

The board is requested to consider the 
Annual report and make recommendation 
as necessary.  

The report is scheduled to be presented  
at the July’s Executive Board. 

PM 

Meeting date – 9th September 2009 

Performance Management  
Quarter 1 information for 2009/10 (April-
June) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

Commissioning in Adult 
Social Care 

To consider an update report on 
commissioning within Adult Social 
Services. 

6-monthly report. – Previous March 09 
Additional focus on IWC Action Plan. 
Procurement timetable to be included in 
this report. 
Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes/ Tim 
O’Shea 

PM 

The Mental Capacity Act 
Update since  
implementation 

To consider a further report on progress 
made implementing the requirements of 
the MCA.   

Further update from May 2009  

Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes. 
B 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
5



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Inquiry into Adaptations – 
Response from Director 
and Executive Board  

To receive and update on the formal 
response to the inquiry by the Director(s) 
identified in the recommendations and the 
views of the Executive Board  

This report is due to go to Executive 
Board in August 2009 

PM 
 

Care Quality Commission 
– self assessment report 

To receive an update on the self 
assessment report due to be submitted to 
the Care Quality Commission which will 
determine the annual rating for the service. 

Lead Officer – Sandie Keene 

 

 

 

PM 

Meeting date –  7th October 2009 

Independence, Well-being 
and Choice – action plan 
update 

To consider progress against the action 
plan arising from the inspection report  

Outcome of the ASC Proposals Working 
Group meeting September 2009 to feed 
into this item. 
 

RFS/PM 

Personalisation Working 
Group Update  

To consider the progress of the working 
group. 

Outcome of the ASC Personalisation 
Working Group meetings up to 
September 2009 to feed into this item 

PM/DP 

    

    

P
a
g
e
 1

6
6



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 11th November 2009 

Income Review – Impact 
of price increases on 
Service users. 

To receive an update on the impact of 
price increases on services users. 

Report requested from April 2009 
Scrutiny Board Meeting 

RP 

Dignity in Care - delivery 

To receive an update on the current work 
and developments across the City  
highlighting how dignity is being delivered, 
what improvements are being made and 
the challenges ahead. 

 B 

Homecare provision 
Performance report on homecare provision 
across the City, including independent 
sector providers. 

Further update from May 2009 
Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes 

PM 

    

Meeting date –  16th December 2009 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
7



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Adult Social Services- 
Annual Review Report 
(2008/09) 
 
 

To consider the outcome of the annual 
rating review undertaken by the Care 
Quality Commission ( formerly the 
Commission for Social Care Inspection 
(CSCI)) for 2008/09  

Report  will be scheduled for Executive 
Board meeting on 9th December 2009. 
 

 

PM 

Inquiry into Adaptations – 
Performance Updates and 
Recommendation 
Tracking  

To receive a performance update and 
consider  progress made from 
recommendations made by ASC Board 
17th June 09 

This is dependant on scheduling for Exec 
Board (currently scheduled for August 
2009). 

PM 
MSR 

Performance Management  
Quarter 2 information for 2009/10 (July - 
Sept) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

    

Meeting date –  13th January 2010 

Personalisation Working 
Group Update  
 

To consider the progress of the working 
group.  

Outcome of the ASC Personalisation 
Working Group meetings October - 
December to feed into this item 

PM/DP 

    

P
a
g
e
 1

6
8



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

    

 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Meeting date – 10th February 2010 

Safeguarding Update  
To consider an update report since the 
implementation of performance measures 
to improve Adult Safeguarding. 

Quarterly update since the last 
Independence Wellbeing and Choice 
update on the 7th of October. 
 
Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes  

 

Personalisation 
Statement  

Board to agree a statement/report on 
progress so far. Response to Executive Board   

    

 
 
 

   

P
a
g
e
 1

6
9



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date –   17th March 2010 

Commissioning in Adult 
Social Care 

To consider an update report on 
commissioning within Adult Social 
Services. 

6-monthly report. – Previous September 
09. 
Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes/ Tim 
O’Shea 

PM 

Performance Management  
Quarter 3 information for 2009/10 (April - 
June) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

    

    

Meeting date – 14th April 2010 

Personalisation Working 
Group Update  

To consider the progress of the working 
group.  

Outcome of the ASC Personalisation 
Working Group meeting to feed into this 
item 

PM/DP 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
0



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Annual Report 
To agree the Board’s contribution to the 
annual scrutiny report 

  

    

    

 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
1



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Working Groups 

Working group Membership Progress update Dates 

Personalisation Working 
Group 

Cllr. Judith Chapman 
Cllr Alan Taylor 
Cllr James McKenna 
Cllr Veronica Morgan 
Joy Fisher (co-optee) 
Sally Morgan (co-optee) 
 
 

Terms of reference to be updated and 
agreed. Meetings to be scheduled. 

Confirmed  dates  
 
1) 30th July 
    9:30am – 12:00 
Committee Room 3 
 
2) 14th Aug  
    10.00am – 12:00 
 
3) 18th Sept 
    2:00pm – 4:00 pm 

Proposals working group 

Cllr. Judith Chapman 
Cllr. Penny Ewens 
Cllr. Clive Fox 
Joy Fisher (co-optee) 
Sally Morgan (co-optee) 
 
 

Meetings to be scheduled up to and inc.  
November. 

Confirmed Dates  
 
1) 20th July  

3pm – 5pm 
 Committee Room 5 
 
2) 29th Sept 
    10am - 12 

Mental Health Inquiry Membership required Terms of reference to be drafted. 

Meetings to be 
Scheduled 
September 2009 – 
December 2009 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
2



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Unscheduled / Potential Items from 2009/10 

Item Description Notes 

Traditional buildings based 
services – Potential for inquiry 
for day services and care home 
provision.  

To consider the provision of directly provided 
buildings based services. The provision of 
range and choice. Quality of care and the 
impact of personalisation. 

Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes 

Annual complaints report  
To consider the annual report and any emerging 
issues. 

Report published on 20 August 2008 

Continuing Care Implementation 
To consider the local impact and future activity 
associated with implementing the national 
framework for continuing NHS care.  

Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes. 

Report presented to the Executive Board in 
October 2007. 

Valuing People Now 

To consider progress against the implications 
outlined in the report presented to the Executive 
Board in February 2008, alongside any future 
proposed actions. 

Lead Officer - Paul Broughton replacement 

Executive Board scheduled to receive an 
update in February 2009. 

 

Suggest that Day care provision is 
scheduled at some point into the annual 
programme for 2009/10 due to staff 
reduction and potential reduction in 
provision. 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
3



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Unscheduled / Potential Items from 2009/10 

Item Description Notes 

No Secrets Review  
To consider the outcome and implications of the 
No Secrets Review the outcome of which will be 
announced by the Government.  

Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes 

Transitional arrangements for 
Children (up to 25 years of age) 
with learning disabilities into 
Adult Social Care Services. 

Terms of reference to be drafted and agreed.  

Items to be scheduled into the ASC Board 
work programme October 09 – December 
09.  Representative from Childrens 
Scrutiny Board to be requested to join the 
board for this item. 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
4



LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
For the period 1 August 2009 to 30 November 2009 
 

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 
representations to) 

Care and Support Services 
to 3 adults with learning 
disabilities 
To enter into a contract 
with a support provider for 
Care and Support Services 
to 3 Adults with learning 
disabilities following a 
competitive tendering 
exercise 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

3/8/09 Adult Commissioning 
Board 
 
 

Evaluation and Award 
Report 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
mark.phillott@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

A City for All Ages, The 
Leeds 50+ Strategy 
Approve strategic 
framework and woder 
public consultation. 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Adult 
Health and Social 
Care) 
 

26/8/09 Public Consultation 
 
 

Report to Executive Board 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
john.england@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
5



 
 
NOTES 

 
Key decisions  are those executive decisions: 

• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 

• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards 
 

Executive Board Portfolios Executive Member 
 

Central and Corporate Councillor Richard Brett 

Development and Regeneration Councillor Andrew Carter 

Environmental Services Councillor James Monaghan 

Neighbourhoods and Housing Councillor John Leslie Carter 

Leisure Councillor John Procter 

Children’s Services  Councillor Stewart Golton 

Learning Councillor Richard Harker 

Adult Health and Social Care Councillor Peter Harrand 

Leader of the Labour Group Councillor Keith Wakefield 

Leader of the Morley Borough 
Independent Group 

Councillor Robert Finnigan 

Advisory Member Councillor Richard Lewis 

 
In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such 
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.  

P
a
g
e
 1

7
6



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 17TH JUNE, 2009 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor R Brett in the Chair 

 Councillors A Carter, J L Carter, 
R Finnigan, S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, 
K Wakefield and J Monaghan 

 
   Councillor R Lewis – Non-Voting Advisory Member 
 
 

1 Chair's Announcement  
In opening the meeting the Chair welcomed Councillor Monaghan to his first 
meeting as a member of the Board and Councillor R Lewis to his first meeting 
in his new role. 
 

2 Exclusion of the Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated exempt on the 
grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted 
or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so designated as 
follows: 
 
(a) Appendices 1 and 2 to the report referred to in minute 5 under the 

terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(2) and on the 
grounds that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information by reason of the fact 
that 

 
(i) Appendix 1 identifies each property address that it is proposed 

be leased to LHC and as such could be used to identify the 
supported tenants who already live at those addresses 

(ii) Appendix 2 identifies each property address that it is proposed 
to be leased to GIPSIL and as such could be used to identify the 
supported tenants who already live at those addresses. 

 
(b) Appendix 2 to the report referred to in minute 16 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
it contains detailed sensitive information about the financial position of 
the Council and it is considered that the public interest in maintaining 
confidentiality outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
because release of this information at this time could prejudice the 
ongoing negotiations with the vendor. 

 
(c) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in minute 7 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 

Page 177



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

interest in disclosing the information because it refers to the Invitation 
To Qualify document which sets down the minimum requirements of 
FIFA which host cities must meet, England 2018 advises that the 
contents of the Invitation To Quality must not be made public and that 
Applicant Host Cities in breach of this condition may be disqualified 
from the Host City bidding competition, accordingly some of the 
information provided for Members is contained in the exempt section of 
this report on the basis that disclosure could prejudice the  outcome of 
the bid and the commercial interests of the Council. 

 
(d) Appendix A to the report referred to in minute 10 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
it is considered not to be in the public interest to disclose this 
information at this point in time as it could undermine the Council’s 
position in negotiating with the building owner, the release of this 
information could also prejudice the Council’s interests in relation to 
this or other similar transactions in that the land owner of this or other 
similar properties would obtain information about the nature and level 
of consideration which may prove acceptable to the Council. It is 
considered that whilst there may be a public interest in disclosure, 
much of this information will be publicly available from the Land 
Registry following completion of any transaction and consequently the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing this information at this point in time. 

 
3 Declaration of Interests  

Councillor Wakefield declared a personal interest in the item relating to the 
Outline Business Case for the West Leeds Academy as a governor of Leeds 
City College. 
 

4 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 13th May 2009 be 
approved. 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

5 Lease at Less Than Best Consideration - Agreement to Lease 28 
Miscellaneous Properties to GIPSIL and Leeds Housing Concern on a 25 
Year Lease Agreement  
The Director of Neighbourhoods and Environment submitted a report on a 
proposal to grant a long lease at less than best consideration for 28 Council 
owned miscellaneous properties to GIPSIL and LHC, for the purpose of 
refurbishment and improvement for accommodation for vulnerable tenants. 
 
The report presented the option of the Council retaining the properties with 
the only alternative of open market disposal in the absence of funding to 
renovate them. 
 

Page 178



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

Following consideration of appendices 1 and 2 to the report designated as 
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(2) which were 
considered in private at the end of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – That the 28 properties listed in appendices 1 and 2 to the 
report be leased to GIPSIL and Leeds Housing Concern, at a peppercorn rent 
for a 25 year period at less than best consideration and that authority be given 
for formal negotiations to complete the leasing arrangements. 
 

6 Area Committee Roles for 2009/2010  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report outlining 
the proposed delegated Area Functions and other roles for the ten Area 
Committees during 2009/10. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Area Functions and Well Being Function be delegated to Area 

Committees for 2009/10 as summarised in the submitted report. 
(b) That the enhanced roles of Area Committees as summarised in the 

report and the newly defined roles as detailed in Appendix 1 be 
endorsed. 

(c) That this information be reported to the Area Committees at the next 
cycle of meetings. 

(d) That the Area Functions referred to be incorporated into the Council’s 
Constitution at the next available opportunity. 

(e) That a report be brought to a future meeting of the Board with regard to 
the issue of advertising on lampposts. 

 
DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

7 Football World Cup 2018  
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing an update on 
the new information received from the Football Association and seeking 
approval from the Board to take forward the bid response. 
 
Following consideration of appendix 1 to the report designated as exempt 
under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the additional information provided by England 2018 in relation to 

the Host City bidding process be noted. 
(b) That a bid from Leeds be formulated on the basis that the City wishes 

to be selected as a Host City for World Cup 2018. 
(c) That all necessary steps be taken to publicise the Leeds bid and to 

seek support from the community for the bid, in particular by 
encouraging all those in favour to register their support on the England 
2018 website. 

(d) That the Director of Resources identify an appropriate revenue budget 
to facilitate the delivery of the Leeds bid document by the end of 
October 2009. 

Page 179



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

(e) That the Chief Executive commence dialogue with City Region partners 
to establish how they wish to be involved in the Leeds bid. 

(f) That, in view of the fact that the deadline for submission of the (draft) 
Outline Bid will not allow for the submission of a further report to this 
Board, the Chief Executive be authorised, in consultation with the 
Leader of the Council, to approve the submission. 

 
8 Planning Appeals at Royds Lane, Rothwell and Fleet Lane, Oulton  

The Director of City Development submitted a report on the outcome of recent 
planning appeals on greenfield sites at Royds Lane, Rothwell and Fleet Lane, 
Oulton, and the implications, if any, for the Council’s approach to greenfield 
developments. 
 
The report presented the following options:-  

(a) accepting the need for greenfield release recognising a deficit in the 
5 year housing land supply; and  

(b) concluding that greenfield release, in the circumstances outlined 
within the report, would be inappropriate. 

 
RESOLVED – That option (b), as detailed within paragraph 8.11 of the 
submitted report and as detailed above, be approved. 
 

9 South Leeds Regeneration Area Governance Arrangements  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Director of City 
Development submitted a joint report outlining a proposal to establish a 
governance framework for an informal partnership covering the regeneration 
of a large area of South Leeds. 
 
In presenting the report, Councillor A Carter reported receipt of a message 
from the Chair of Renew on the day of this meeting and undertook to address 
the comments made in that message. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the opportunities for regeneration and investment in South Leeds 

and the findings outlined in the work already undertaken be noted. 
(b) That the establishment of appropriate governance arrangements in 

order to co-ordinate the Steering Group be approved. 
(c) That officers be authorised to establish the Management/Investors’ 

Group, Partnership Engagement Group with MPCL and other 
interested private sector organisations. 

(d) That the joint working with MPCL and the production of an Investment 
Strategy for South Leeds be supported. 

(e) That the Executive Member for Regeneration and Development be 
appointed as Chair of the Steering Group and that the Member 
Management Committee be requested to appoint four further political 
representatives from the South Leeds Area to the Steering Group. 

 
 
 
 

Page 180



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

10 47-57 Chapel Hill, Morley: Acquisition, Demolition and Development  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report outlining 
the proposed scheme design and related expenditure for the acquisition of 47-
57 Chapel Hill, Morley and 1-8 Bank Court, Bank Street, Morley. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix A to the report designated as exempt 
under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was considered at 
the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the project brief and scheme design as presented be approved 

and that the Asset Management Board be authorised to approve the 
final detailed design of Phase 2. 

(b) That authority be given to spend the amount referred to in exempt 
Appendix A to the report and that the Director of Resources be 
authorised to approve expenditure of the balance remaining shown in 
exempt Appendix A in the Town and District Regeneration Scheme 
12154/MOR/000. 

 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

11 Playbuilder Initiative  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report on the Playbuilder 
Project and the intended programme to build or significantly refurbish twenty 
two playgrounds or informal play spaces across the City. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given for the injection of £1,145,914 into the Capital 

Programme (capital scheme no: 15390) fully funded by DCSF grant. 
(b) That authority to spend be given in respect of the sixteen play sites 

identified in appendix 2 to the report. 
(c) That approval be given to the Play Partnership recommendation to 

seek working solutions for the development of the remaining six sites 
with partners in the Council. 

(d) That a further report be brought to the Board recommending the 
location and provider of the remaining six sites. 

 
12 Proposal to Add Specialist Community Provision at Whitkirk Primary 

School for Pupils with Complex Physical Difficulties and Medical Needs  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on a proposal to 
establish specialist community provision at Whitkirk Primary School for pupils 
with complex physical difficulties and medical needs. 
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given for consultation on a proposal to make 
a prescribed alteration to Whitkirk Primary School so as to establish a 
resourced base for primary age children with complex physical needs. 
 
 
 
 

Page 181



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

13 Submission of the Outline Business Case for Leeds West Academy  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the Outline 
Business Case for Leeds West Academy as part of the Council’s Wave 1 
Building Schools for the Future Programme and on associated expenditure. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the Outline Business Case for Leeds West 

Academy of the Council’s Wave 1 Building Schools for the Future 
Programme and authority be given for its submission to the 
Department for Children, Schools and Families and to Partnerships for 
Schools. 

(b) That approval be given to the injection of additional expenditure of 
£17,018,000 financed by additional BSF Capital Grant Funding from 
DCSF into the Capital Programme, arising from the change from 
school to academy status as detailed in section 8 of the report. 

(c) That scheme expenditure of £31,128,000 from capital scheme number 
15414 for Leeds West Academy be authorised. 

(d) That approval be given to the application of the previously approved 
City Council contribution of £2,529,000 to be committed elsewhere in 
the Leeds BSF Wave 1 Programme. 

(e) That the Board notes that further reports relating to 14-19 provision will 
be submitted to Executive Board for consideration, including a report to 
the next meeting on confederation arrangements. 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)  
 

14 Children and Young People's Plan 2009/14  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report presenting the 2009-
2014 Children and Young People’s Plan for approval, prior to its submission 
to Full Council and Government Office. 
 
RESOLVED – That Council be recommended to adopt the Children and 
Young People’s Plan for Leeds 2009-2014, as attached to the report, as part 
of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework. 
 

15 Expanding Primary Place Provision  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on trends in  
population growth and the changing context for planning primary school 
places in Leeds; on the proposed immediate response to the pressures for 
additional reception places in 2010/2011; and outlining planning 
arrangements to ensure sufficient places to meet future needs. 
 
In presenting the report Councillor Harker indicated that he had requested that 
this matter should be the subject of Scrutiny. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the changing context for the provision of primary school places 

and the potential  demands on capital programmes in the future be 
noted. 

Page 182



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

(b) That approval be given to communications with relevant stakeholders 
and the Schools Adjudicator and the DCSF as outlined in section 6 of 
the report. 

(c) That further reports be brought to the Board on proposed expenditure 
and future planning proposals, including a report to the next meeting of 
the Board regarding the arrangements being made to manage the 
provision of reception places required for September 2010. 

 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)  
 
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

16 Roundhay Road Relocation Project  
Further to minute 198 of the meeting held on 12th March 2008 the Director of 
Adult Social Services submitted a report providing an update on the proposed 
accommodation solutions in place, and the costs associated with the 
implementation of these, to support the relocation of remaining services from 
the Roundhay Road site to alternative ‘fit for purpose’ accommodation. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix 2 to the report designated as exempt 
under the terms of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) which was 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting it was 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the contents of the report and the proposed accommodation 

solutions outlined in Appendix 1 be noted. 
(b) That expenditure of £1,100,000 on this scheme as outlined in the 

exempt appendix 2 to the report be approved. 
(c) That the Roundhay Road site be declared surplus to  requirements 

subject  to the completion of the acquisition of the property at 
Killingbeck. 

(d) That the demolition of the building be approved subject to the 
completion of the appropriate option appraisal taking into account both 
the potential impact on the asset value and the ongoing costs of 
security. 

 
17 Response to Council Deputation - Provision of Changing Place Toilets in 

Leeds  
The Director of Adult Social Care submitted a report in response to the 
deputation to Council by the ‘All Means All’ organisation on 22nd April 2009. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the actions being taken to provide city centre based changing 

places toilets be noted. 
(b) That the work undertaken to agree a specification for a changing 

places toilet be noted. 

Page 183



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

(c) That a further report be brought to this Board in six months time which 
will recommend a strategy for the provision of changing places toilets in 
Leeds. 

(d) That a further report be submitted to the Board providing an update on 
the current position prior to the end of this year. 
 

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

18 Taxi and Private Hire Licensing: Age Criteria Proposals - Deputation to 
Council  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report in 
response to the deputation to Council from the GMB Trade Union on 22nd 
April 2009. 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report, the rationale behind the 
proposals and the information that will be available to the decision makers be 
noted. 
 

19 Financial Performance Provisional Outturn 2008/09  
The Director of Resources submitted a report on the Council’s financial 
outturn position for 2008/09, including both revenue and capital and the 
Housing Revenue Account. The report also detailed revenue expenditure and 
income compared to the approved budget, and reported on the outturn for 
Education Leeds and the ALMOs. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the report be noted. 
(b) That the transfer of £4,800,000 to general reserves be agreed in 

accordance with paragraph 3.8 of the report. 
(c) That the carry forward of £1,300,000 Area Based Grant be agreed as 

outlined in paragraph 3.7 of the report. 
(d) That contributions to and the use of Housing Revenue Account 

Reserves be agreed as outlined in the report. 
 
(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on this matter)  
 

20 Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11 Refresh: Amendments to Partnership 
Agreed Indicators  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report proposing a number of amendments to the partnership agreed targets 
in the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11, the Local Area Agreement for Leeds. 
 
RESOLVED – That appendix 1 to the report be approved as the Council’s 
proposed revisions and additions to the partnership agreed targets in the 
Leeds Strategic Plan. 
 

21 Annual Report on Risk Management  
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing an overview of the key 
risk management developments for the Council over 2008/09, reporting on the 

Page 184



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

corporate risk register and highlighting future areas of work to improve the 
Council’s risk management arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and the progress made on further embedding 
risk management across the authority be noted. 
 

22 Review Process for the Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Licensing 
Policy  
The Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) submitted a report 
providing information on the review process for the Gambling Act 2005 
Statement of Licensing Policy and advising of the methodology and timeframe 
for the final approval of the revised Policy, taking into account the statutory 
requirements for consultation and the expressed expectations of Full Council. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the methodology and timeframe for the adoption of the gambling 

policy be noted. 
(b) That the draft policy be referred to Full Council for Members to 

comment on the draft as part of the initial consultation process with 
stakeholders. 

(c) That the Assistant Chief Executive (Corporate Governance) be 
authorised to undertake public consultation as outlined in the report. 

(d) That the revised policy and the results of any subsequent consultations 
on the draft policy be referred to Scrutiny Board (Central and 
Corporate) with a request that Scrutiny report back to the Executive 
Board on the 9th December 2009. 

 
23 Procurement of a Corporate Interactive Voice Response (IVR) Solution  

The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Planning and Improvement) submitted 
a report providing an update on the steps taken to date to procure a corporate 
IVR solution, providing responses to the recommendations of the Scrutiny 
Board (Central and Corporate Functions) and seeking support for the release 
of the funding necessary for this project to continue. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the development of a corporate IVR solution for the Corporate 

Contact Centre be approved. 
(b) That authority be given for the allocation and expenditure of £262,000 

from the ICT capital development pot to support the development of a 
corporate IVR solution. 

 
(Under the provision of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillor Wakefield 
required it to be recorded that he voted against the decisions taken in this 
minute) 
 
(The matters referred to in this minute were responding to a previous Call In 
decision, and were therefore not eligible for further Call In)  
 
 
 

Page 185



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 22nd July, 2009 

 

 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  19TH JUNE 2009 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 26TH JUNE 2009 
 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00 noon on 
29th June 2009) 
 
 

Page 186


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 17th June 2009
	7 Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk) - Annual Report (2008/09)
	Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk) Annual Report (2008-09) - Appendix 1

	8 Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008/09
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008-09 - Appendix 1 a
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008-09 - Appendix 1 b
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008-09 - Appendix 2
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008-09 - Appendix 3

	9 Leeds Safeguarding Adult Partnership Board report 2008/09
	Leeds Safeguarding Adult Partnership Board report 2008-09 - Appendix 1
	Leeds Safeguarding Adult Partnership Board report 2008-09 - Appendix 2

	10 Independence Wellbeing and Choice Inspection Action Plan: May 2009
	Independence Wellbeing and Choice Inspection Action Plan - May 2009 - Appendix 1
	Independence Wellbeing and Choice Inspection Action Plan - May 2009 - Appendix 2

	11 Personalisation - Update to Terms of Reference and Appointment of Co-opted Member to the Personalisation Working Group
	Personalisation - Update to Terms of Reference and Appointment of Co-opted Member to the Personalisation Working Group - Appendix 1

	12 Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) - Work Programme
	Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) - Work Programme - Appendix 1
	Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) - Work Programme - Appendix 2
	Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) - Work Programme - Appendix 3


